S~ Measure M G _
;3;" Taxpayer Oversight Committee ,5“‘"»
at the Orange County Transportation Authority <€
600 S. Main Street, Orange CA, Room 103/4

October 13, 2015
6:00 p.m.

AGENDA

1. Welcome
Pledge of Allegiance

Approval of Minutes/Attendance Report for August 11, 2015

p W DN

Action Items

A. AER Subcommittee Eligibility Report FY 15-16
Terre Duensing, Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Chair

5. Presentation ltems

A. OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan
Presentation — Jim Beil, Executive Director, Capital Projects

B. Measure M1 Closeout
Presentation — Andrew Oftelie, Executive Director, Finance

C. Measure M2 Comprehensive Ten-Year Review Report/ Proposed Amendment
Presentation — Tamara Warren, Measure M Program Manager, Planning

6. OCTA Staff Updates (5 minutes each)
e Sales Tax Forecast — Andrew Oftelie, Executive Director, Finance
e Other

7. Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Report

8. Audit Subcommittee Report

9. Environmental Oversight Committee Report
10.Committee Member Reports
11.Public Comments*

12.Adjournment

*Public Comments: At this time, members of the public may address the Taxpayers Oversight Committee (TOC) regarding any items within
the subject matter jurisdiction of the TOC, provided that no action may be taken on off-agenda items unless authorized by law. Comments
shall be limited to three (3) minutes per person, unless different time limits are set by the Chairman, subject to the approval of the TOC.

Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA
Clerk of the Board, telephone (714) 560-5676, no less than two business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable
arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting.



Measure M
Taxpayer Oversight Committee

INFORMATION ITEMS

1. Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation
Funding Programs — 2016 Annual Calls for
Projects

2. Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program —
2015 Tier 1 Water Quality Grant Funding
Allocations

3. Capital Programs Division — Fourth Quarter
FY 14-15 and Planned FY 15-16 Capital Action
Plan Performance Metrics

4. Measure M2 Progress Report for the Period of
April 2015 Through June 2015 and Ten-Year
Review

5. Measure M2 Fare Stabilization Update

6. Federal Incentive Payment Program. Modified
Settlement Delegation Authority, and Adoption of
CEQA Findings for the 1-405 Improvement Project

*Public Comments: At this time, members of the public may address the Taxpayers Oversight Committee (TOC) regarding any items within
the subject matter jurisdiction of the TOC, provided that no action may be taken on off-agenda items unless authorized by law. Comments
shall be limited to five (5) minutes per person and 20 minutes for all comments, unless different time limits are set by the Chairman, subject

to the approval of the TOC.

Any person with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should contact the OCTA
Clerk of the Board, telephone (714) 560-5676, no less than two business days prior to this meeting to enable OCTA to make reasonable

arrangements to assure accessibility to this meeting.

ORE

)
T 7
PLS >
-

Aug. 10, 2015

Sept. 14, 2015

Sept. 28, 2014



Measure M

Taxpayer Oversight Committee
At the Orange County Transportation Authority
600 S. Main Street, Orange CA, Room 103/4
August 11, 2015
6:00 p.m.

AGENDA

Committee Members Present:

Eric Woolery, Orange County Auditor-Controller, Co-Chairman
Narinder “Nindy” Mahal, First District Representative
Anthony Villa, First District Representative

Margie Drilling, Second District Representative

Alan Dubin, Second District Representative

Terre Duensing, Third District Representative, Co-Chairman
Dr. Ron Randolph, Third District Representative

Cynthia Hall, Fourth District Representative

Sony Soegiarto, Fourth District Representative

Guita Sharifi, Fifth District Representative

Nilima Gupta, Fifth District Representative

Committee Member(s) Absent:
None

Orange County Transportation Authority Staff Present:

Jim Bell, Executive Director, Capital Programs

Marissa Espino, Community Relations Officer

Janice Kadlec, Public Reporter Specialist

Kia Mortazavi, Executive Director, Planning

Sean Murdock, Director, Finance and Administration

Dan Phu, Section Manager, Strategic Planning

Andrew Oftelie, Executive Director, Finance and Administration
Alice Rogan, Strategic Communications Manager, External Affairs
Tamara Warren, Program Manager, M Program Management Office

1. Welcome
Chairman Eric Woolery welcomed everyone to the Orange County Transportation
Authority (OCTA) Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) meeting at 6:00 p.m.
Chairman Eric Woolery said there were four new TOC members in attendance and



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Page 2
Minutes/Attendance Report for August 11, 2015

asked all the members to go around the table and introduce themselves and their
supervisorial district. The new members are:

Anthony Villa, Representing the First District
Alan Dubin, Representing the Second District
Sony Soegirto, Representing the Forth District
Guita Sharifi, Representing the Fifth District.

2. Pledge of Allegiance
Chairman Eric Woolery asked everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance to
the Flag.

3. Approval of the Minutes/Attendance Report for June 9, 2015
A motion was made by Cynthia Hall and seconded by Ron Randolph to approve the
June 9, 2015 TOC Minutes/Attendance report. Chairman Eric Woolery asked if
there were any additions or corrections to the June 9, 2015 Minutes and Attendance
Report. There were no additions or corrections and the June 9, 2015 Minutes and
Attendance Report was carried unanimously as presented.

4. Subcommittee Selection
The following TOC members volunteered to sit on the TOC subcommittees:

Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Audit Subcommittee
Alan Dubin Margie Drilling
Terre Duensing Nilima Gupta
Cynthia Hall Narinder “Nindy” Mahal
Guita Sharifi Dr. Ron Randolph
Dr. Ron Randolph Sony Soegiarto

5. Action ltems

A. TOC Co-Chair Election
Chairman Eric Woolery nominated Terry Duensing for TOC Co-Chairman. He
asked if there were any other nominations. There being no further nominations
Dr. Ronald Randolph asked that the nominations be closed.

Terre Duensing was confirmed as TOC Co-Chair by a unanimous vote.
6 Presentation Items

A. Capital Action Plan Update
Jim Beil gave and update of the Capital Action Plan and Capital Action Plan



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Page 3
Minutes/Attendance Report for August 11, 2015

Performance Measures. This report is given to the OCTA Board of Directors on
a quarterly basis and it lays out the work plan for all the Rail and Highways
Programs.

Nilima Gupta asked why the use of the term ‘milestones.” Jim Beil said it's a
measurement point for progress which ties to budgeted resources and funding.

Margie Drilling asked why the West County Connector project received so many
comments from Caltrans. Did they not see the plans at 25 and 60 percent? Why
did they have so many concerns? Jim Beil said the big issue is that they were
asking for additional scope be included in the project. Caltrans wants to include
additional irrigation systems in areas not impacted by the West County
Connector project. OCTA is working through the comment process.

Narinder Mahal asked why the right lanes of the Redhill bridge near the airport
over the 1-405 has been closed for over eight months. Jim Beil said Caltrans
has experienced repeated subterranean settlement. So they have repeatedly
repaired the retaining walls on the approach to the bridge. They still have
settlement problems and their geologist have not found the cause.

B. Measure M2 Environmental Mitigation Program Update
Dan Phu, Section Manager, Strategic Planning and Marissa Espino, Community
Relations Officer, gave an update of the M2 Environmental Mitigation Program.

Guita Sharifi asked who will be funding the endowments for the properties. Dan
Phu said OCTA will fund the endowment through Measure M2. The M2
Environmental Mitigation Program generates approximately five to six million
dollars a year. During the next 10 to 12 years when the endowment is being
established, the management and maintenance of the acquired properties will
need to be paid for through existing M2 revenues. Once the endowment is fully
established, then the interests earned off the endowment will be used to pay for
the long-term land management.

Cynthia Hall asked how prepared is OCTA for the ups and downs of the market
and other emergencies. Dan Phu said someone on the ground will have to
manage the properties until the endowment kicks in. Within the Conservation
Plan there are safeguards which will address, drought years, fires, and
unexpected natural occurrences. OCTA also has an economic forecaster. On
the financial side, safeguards have been built-in to allow OCTA to ramp-up or
ramp-down management efforts as needed.

A committee member asked if the seven properties purchased will be the extent
of the program or will other properties be purchased. Dan Phu said there may
be some money left to fund additional acquisitions, but that will be a decision of
the Environmental Oversight Committee in the future.



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Page 4
Minutes/Attendance Report for August 11, 2015

A committee member asked for the definition of a transportation Nexus. Dan
Phu said by widening a freeway they sometimes have to go out of the existing
footprint and take out the natural habitat of plant or animal species. If this
occurs, they have to go to other places in the county and replace or protect what
was taken with a similar existing footprint.

C. Measure M 2 Environmental Clean-up Program (Project X)
Dan Phu gave a report on the Measure M2 Environmental Clean-up Program
(Project X). The purpose of this program is to fund projects beyond mitigation.
The administration of Project X is similar to the OCTA Streets and Roads
Program.

Margie Drilling asked who sat on the Environmental Cleanup Allocation
Committee (ECAC) that makes some of the decisions on the applications. Off
the top of his head, Dan Phu said the committee is comprised of five Orange
County city members, and the following non-city members:

Two Sanitary Districts

Two non-voting Regional Water Quality District

A member of the Orange County Watersheds

A member of the Orange County Costal Keeper
A member from the University of California, Irvine
Caltrans

An Environmental Consultant

7. OCTA Staff Updates

e Finance Directors Workshop — Sean Murdock gave an update on the
Finance Directors Workshop.

8. Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee Report
The AER had nothing to report.

9. Audit Subcommittee Report
Chair Eric Woolery reported the Audit Subcommittee met earlier and received
information on the following:

e Approve revised Measure M1 Status Report — Agreed-Upon Procedures for
Fiscal Year 2015

e Approve revised Measure M2 — Agreed Upon Procedures related to Projects
Q and U and Timing changes for these Procedures beginning with Fiscal
year 2016



Taxpayer Oversight Committee Page 5
Minutes/Attendance Report for August 11, 2015

10. Committee Member Reports
There were no other committee member reports.

11. Public Comments
There were no Public Comments.

12. Adjournment
The Measure M Taxpayer Oversight Committee meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m.



Taxpayer Oversight Committee
Fiscal Year 2015-2016
Attendance Record

X = Present E = Excused Absence  * = Absence Pending Approval U = Unexcused Absence -- = Resigned
Meeting Date 7-Jul | 11-Aug| 8-Sep | 13-Oct | 10-Nov | 8-Dec | 12-Jan | 9-Feb | 8-Mar | 12-Apr [ 10-May| 14-Jun
Margie Drilling X
Alan Dubin X
Terre Duensing X
Nilima Gupta X
Cynthia Hall X
Nindy Mahal X
Ronald Randolph X
Guita Sharifi X
Sony Soegiarto X
Anthony Villa X
Eric Woolery X

Absences Pending Approval

Meeting Date Name Reason




Action
[tems






OCTA

October 13, 2015

To: Taxpayer Oversight Committee
From: Annual Eligibility Review Subcommittee

Subject: Fiscal Year 2015-16 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review
Subcommittee Recommendations

Overview

The Measure M2 ordinance requires all local jurisdictions in Orange County to
annually satisfy eligibility requirements in order to receive Measure M2 net
revenues. The Annual Eligibility Review subcommittee review process for fiscal
year 2015-16 has been completed.

Recommendations

Approve Pavement Management Plans for odd numbered year agencies,
Mitigation Fee Programs, and Congestion Management Programs for all local
jurisdictions in Orange County; and find all local jurisdictions eligible to receive
Measure M2 net revenues net revenues for fiscal year 2015-16.

Background

The Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) is responsible for reviewing local
jurisdictions Local Signal Synchronization Plan (LSSP), Mitigation Fee Program,
Expenditure Report, Congestion Management Plan, and Pavement
Management Plan (PMP) for compliance with the ordinance. The Annual
Eligibility Review (AER) subcommittee has been designated by the TOC to
review the eligibility submittals with support from Orange County Transportation
Authority (OCTA) staff. The AER subcommittee members include Terre
Duensing (Chair), Alan Dubin, Cynthia Hall, Guita Sharifi and Ronald Randolph.

The three eligibility components due this eligibility cycle include the PMPs for
odd numbered year agencies (Attachment A), Mitigation Fee Programs, and
CMPs for all the local jurisdictions in Orange County. After the annual eligibility
review, the determination of the TOC committee is forwarded to the Orange
County Transportation Authority Board of Directors for final eligibility
determination.

Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)



Fiscal Year 2015-16 Measure M2 Annual Eligibility Review Page 2
Subcommittee Recommendations

Discussion

Local jurisdictions are required to annually submit eligibility packages by June 30™.
OCTA staff reviewed the CMP, Mitigation Fee Program, and PMP submittals to
ensure each eligibility package was complete and accurate; and worked with the
local jurisdictions to obtain information and/or back up materials as needed. The
AER subcommittee convened on September 23, 2015 to review and discuss the
PMP certifications, Mitigation Fee Programs, and CMPs. The AER subcommittee
found these submittals to be in compliance with the Ordinance and recommend
to the TOC for eligibility approval.

Upon TOC approval, OCTA staff will present the eligibility findings to the
Regional Planning and Highways Committee on December 7, 2015 and to the
OCTA Board of Directors on December 14, 2015. Eligibility determination is
conditional upon review of the expenditure reports due December 31, 2015, with
the exception of city of Huntington Beach that has an expenditure report due by
March 31, 2016.

Summary

All local jurisdictions in Orange County have submitted FY 2015-16 Measure M2
eligibility packages. The Annual Eligibility Review subcommittee reviewed the
necessary Pavement Management Plan, Mitigation Fee Program, and
Congestion Management Program documentation; and all local jurisdictions
meet the eligibility requirements for fiscal year 2015-16.

Attachment

A. Local Jurisdiction Pavement Management Plan Submittal Schedule



Local Jurisdiction Pavement Management Plan

Submittal Schedule

Local Jurisdiction Updated PMP

Aliso Viejo June Even Year
Anaheim June Odd Year
Brea June Odd Year
Buena Park June Even Year
Costa Mesa June Even Year
County of Orange June Odd Year
Cypress June Odd Year
Dana Point June Odd Year
Fountain Valley June Even Year
Fullerton June Even Year

Garden Grove

June Even Year

Huntington Beach

June Even Year

Irvine June Odd Year
Laguna Beach June Even Year
Laguna Hills June Even Year

Laguna Niguel

June Even Year

Laguna Woods

June Even Year

Lake Forest

June Odd Year

La Habra June Odd Year
La Palma June Even Year
Los Alamitos June Odd Year

Mission Viejo

June Even Year

Newport Beach

June Odd Year

Orange

June Even Year

Placentia

June Even Year

Rancho Santa Margarita

June Even Year

San Clemente

June Odd Year

San Juan Capistrano

June Odd Year

Santa Ana

June Even Year

Seal Beach June Even Year
Stanton June Odd Year
Tustin June Odd Year
Villa Park June Even Year

Westminster

June Even Year

Yorba Linda

June Even Year

Attachment A







Presentation
[tems






OCTA

COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL

August 24, 2015

To:

From:

Members of the Board of Directors

)

W
Laurena Weinert,‘"‘»@lerk of the Board

Subject: OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan

Transit Committee Meeting of August 13, 2015

Present: Directors Do, Jones, Katapodis, Murray, Pulido, Shaw, Tait, and
Winterbottom
Absent: None

Committee Vote

This item was passed by the Members present.

Director Tait voted to oppose.

Director Shaw was not available to vote on this item.

Committee Recommendations

A.

Approve the use of up to $55.92 million of Measure M2, Project S
funds as part of the match required for federal New Starts funds.

Direct staff to pursue state cap-and-trade and other state and federal
funding sources to reduce the use of Measure M2, Project S funds as
the required match for federal funding.

Direct staff to submit the required New Starts project application and a
letter to the Federal Transit Administration requesting entrance into
project Engineering, the next phase of the New Starts program.

Authorize staff to make all necessary amendments to the Federal
Transportation Improvement Program and execute any required
agreements or amendments to facilitate the recommendations above.

Authorize the Chief Executive Officer, or his designee, to initiate
discussions with property owners and utility companies, make offers,
and execute agreements for the acquisition of all necessary interests
to implement the OC Streetcar project.

Orange County Transportation Authority

550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan

Board Transmittal



OCTA

BOARD TRANSMITTAL

August 24, 2015

To: Members of the Board of Directors
From: Laurena Weinert, Clerk of the Board

Subject OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan

At the August 24, 2015 Board meeting, the Board stated concerns regarding
property acquisitions for the OC Streetcar project.

Board Recommendations (Reflects a change from Committee’s Recommendation.)

Director Tait voted in opposition, and Director Nelson was absent from the meeting.
Note: Recommendation F was added

A. Approve the use of up to $55.92 million of Measure M2, Project S funds as
part of the match required for federal New Starts funds.

B. Direct staff to pursue state cap-and-trade and other state and federal funding
sources to reduce the use of Measure M2, Project S funds as the required
match for federal funding.

C. Direct staff to submit the required New Starts project application and a letter
to the Federal Transit Administration requesting entrance into project
Engineering, the next phase of the New Starts program.

D. Authorize staff to make all necessary amendments to the Federal
Transportation Improvement Program and execute any required agreements
or amendments to facilitate the recommendations above.

E. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer, or his designee, to initiate discussions
with property owners and utility companies, make offers, and execute
agreements for the acquisition of all necessary interests to implement the
OC Streetcar project.

F. Authorize the Chief Executive Officer, or his designee, to initiate discussions
with property owners and utility companies, make offers, and execute
agreements for the acquisition of all necessary interests to implement the
OC Streetcar project. All agreements for full property acquisitions shall be
brought to the Board of Directors for approval prior to execution.

Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan

Staff Report



OCTA

August 13, 2015

To:

From:

Transit Committee , /A A

Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive’ Officer

Subject: OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan

Overview

On August 11, 2014, the Orange County Transportation Authority Board of
Directors approved the Orange County Transportation Authority to serve as the
lead agency for the project development and implementation, and operations
and maintenance of the OC Streetcar, and also directed staff to pursue federal
New Starts funding. Staff has prepared a project update and is seeking Board of
Directors’ approval for the proposed funding plan and direction for continued
advancement of the OC Streetcar project.

Recommendations

A.

Approve the use of up to $55.92 million of Measure M2, Project S funds
as part of the match required for federal New Starts funds.

Direct staff to pursue state cap-and-trade and other state and federal
funding sources to reduce the use of Measure M2, Project S funds as the
required match for federal funding.

Direct staff to submit the required New Starts project application and a
letter to the Federal Transit Administration requesting entrance into
project Engineering, the next phase of the New Starts program.

Authorize staff to make all necessary amendments to the Federal
Transportation Improvement Program and execute any required
agreements or amendments to facilitate the recommendations above.

Authorize the Chief Executive Officer, or his designee, to initiate
discussions with property owners and utility companies, make offers, and
execute agreements for the acquisition of all necessary interests to
implement the OC Streetcar project.

Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)



OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan Page 2

Background

In August 2014, the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) Board
of Directors (Board) took significant action to advance the OC Streetcar
project (Project). Specifically, the Board approved OCTA to serve as the lead
agency for the project development and implementation, and operations and
maintenance (O&M) for the Project. The Board also directed staff to pursue federal
New Starts funding, including requesting entrance into Project Development, the
initial phase of the New Starts program.

Since that time and based on Board direction, a number of activities have
occurred. In February 2015, the Board approved the selection of a project
management consultant (PMC) to assist staff in developing and implementing the
Project. In May 2015, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) approved OCTA’s
request to enter into Project Development and has since assigned a project
management oversight consultant (PMOC). The PMOC works on behalf of FTA
to ensure that the Project is fully adhering to all requirements as it proceeds
through the rigorous New Starts program. Staff, with support from the PMC, has
also been working on a number of tasks to advance the Project. In early
June 2015, the Project team held a Cost and Risk Assessment and Value
Engineering (CRAVE) workshop to assess the capital cost estimate for the
Project, and to evaluate scope of work items that may pose a cost or schedule
risk. Additionally, the overall Project was evaluated to identify potential areas of
efficiency and cost savings.

Staff is also in the process of developing the required application to enter
Engineering, the next phase of the New Starts program. The application requires
a number of technical reviews and documentation, a detailed project schedule,
updated cost estimate, and commitment for the required match equal to the level
of funding requested from the New Starts program. In preparing the application
and informed by the results of the risk assessment and value engineering process,
staff has also developed a draft funding plan demonstrating the commitment to
provide the required match.

Discussion

In May 2015, the Project was approved by FTA to enter the New Starts program
and was granted entry into Project Development. FTA’s Program is a rigorous and
extremely detailed program that requires a significant and specific level of project
development, and provides FTA multiple opportunities to evaluate a project.



OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan Page 3

CRAVE Analysis

The New Starts program requires all projects to undergo a CRAVE analysis. This
requirement assists project sponsors and FTA in identifying and properly
accounting for risks and opportunities within the project’'s cost estimate and
schedule. Staff and the PMC undertook the required CRAVE analysis in early
June 2015, with the goal to identify elements of the Project that contain risk and
are more likely to experience a variation in cost or schedule over what was
assumed in the environmental impact report (EIR). Additionally, the CRAVE
analysis identified opportunities that would enable the Project to operate more
efficiently and/or accomplish the Project’s scope at a lower cost. The following key
project elements were identified as having both risks and opportunities and a
potential for a change in scope or operating conditions assumed in the EIR.

. Tied Arch Bridge at Westminster

o Reconfiguration of Track at the Santa Ana Regional Transportation
Center (SARTC)

Traffic Signal Prioritization

Number of Vehicles

Drainage Improvements

Weekend Service Plan

The evaluation of each of these elements and the associated opportunities and
conclusions is discussed in Attachment A. These elements have been refined to
more adequately meet the Project goals while minimizing local impacts.

Capital Cost Estimate

The capital cost estimate for the Project, as developed through the EIR process
was approximately $250 million, in year 2011 dollars. FTA is very specific about the
cost categories and elements included in the capital cost estimate. FTA has
established both a checklist and multi-layered work books that include the standard
cost categories to ensure that projects proceeding through the New Starts program
comply with FTA requirements. In order to complete the application to enter the
New Starts Engineering phase, two capital cost estimates are required: a base year
estimate in 2015 dollars, and an estimate in year of expenditure (YOE) dollars.
YOE dollars are cost estimates that are adjusted annually for inflation from the base
year to the expected YOE.



OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan Page 4

The table below represents the year-over-year change to the original 2011
$250 million capital cost estimate included in the EIR to a 2015 base year estimate.
An industry standard three percent inflation factor was used to calculate the
year-over-year change. This is consistent with other rail projects in this region.

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

$250.00 $257.50 $265.20 $273.20 $281.40
2011 dollars to 2015 dollars (millions)

Assuming no additional changes in scope from the EIR-driven capital cost
estimate, the capital cost estimate is now $281.40 million in 2015 dollars.
To obtain the YOE capital cost estimate, it is necessary to understand the
approximate distribution of costs by year during design and construction.
The design and construction schedule will span 2015 to 2020. The proportions
of costs spent in each of these years, as well as the estimated inflation factor,
are presented in the table below.

Capital Cost Estimate Conversion from Base Year to YOE Dollars ($ Millions)

2015 | 2016 | 2017 2018 2019 | 2020 | Total
Percenpage

Ogg{gc‘ 1.60% | 7.80% | 14.7% | 40.0% | 33.70% |2.20% | 100%
Spent

Base VoAl | $4.50 | $21.95 | $41.36 | $112.55 | $94.82 | $6.19 | $281.38
Cumulative

Inflaton | 0.00 | 0.03 | 0.06 0.09 0.13 0.16 -

Factor

Inflation | ¢4 00 | $0.66 | $2.52 | $10.44 | $11.90 | $0.99 | $26.50
Amount* ) ) ) ) ' ) )

YOE Cost | $4.50 | $22.61 | $43.88 | $122.99 | $106.73 | $7.18 | $307.88

*Inflation factor is derived from FTA past practices and other New Starts project templates, and
is reasonably consistent with the California Department of Transportation construction cost
indices and forecasts.

As reflected in the table above, the updated capital cost of the Project as
developed through the EIR in YOE dollars is $307.88 million.

Capital Cost Estimate — Refined Project Scope

As a result of the refinements and cost savings identified in the CRAVE analysis,
the Project’s capital cost estimate has decreased when adjusted into base year



OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan Page 5

and YOE dollars. The cost estimate presented in the table below includes the
following significant capital refinements:

Reduced scope of tied arch bridge at Westminster

Reconfiguration of track at SARTC

Traffic Signal Prioritization

Vehicle fleet size, increased from seven to eight vehicles

Removal of costs associated with drainage improvements beyond those
absolutely necessary for the Project

Capital Cost Estimate Comparison: EIR and Refined Project ($ Millions)

EIR Project Refined Project Difference
Base Year (2015) $281.40 $263.91 -$17.49
YOE $307.88 $288.75 -$19.13

Based on the results of the CRAVE analysis and appropriate escalation to YOE,
the current cost estimate for the Project that is proposed to be included in the
Project application is $288.75 million. Any adjustments to this cost estimate
necessary as further refinements are made to the elements evaluated and refined
through the CRAVE analysis will be reported back to the Board.

New Starts Engineering Phase

The next phase of the New Starts program is Engineering, which also requires
FTA approval for entry. Consistent with Board direction in August 2014, staff, in
coordination with the PMC, is currently preparing an FTA application to enter
Engineering. On August 5, 2015, FTA released final Interim Policy Guidance for
the New Starts program in response to the changes imposed by the Moving Ahead
for Progress in the 215t Century Act. The final guidance implements the measures,
definitions, and rating criterion used to evaluate and rate a project’s merit, as well
as the thresholds for funding. A summary of the criteria used to evaluate and rate
a New Starts’ project is provided in the chart below and further discussed in
Attachment B. Staff will utilize the final guidance document to complete OCTA'’s
application to enter Engineering. It is anticipated that the draft application will be
due at the end of September 2015, and will be followed by a comment and review
period between FTA and OCTA. Once all comments have been resolved, FTA
will then request OCTA to prepare and submit a letter to FTA formally requesting
entry into Engineering.



OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan Page 6

New Starts Rating and Local Financial Commitment

Individual
Criteria Summary Overall
Ratings Ratings Rating

Mobility Improvements
(16.66%)

| Benefits
%)

l Project Justification'
(50% of Overall Rating)

"Must be at lzast *Medium’
for project to get “Medium”
or better Overall Rating

Overall Project Rating

Current Condition
{25%)
Commitment of Funds ) Commitment!
LG, (50% of Overall Rating)
Must be at least “Medium”

for project to get “Medium”
or better Overall Rating

Local Financial ‘

Reliability/ Capacity
{50%)

Source: FTA

There are two major categories of New Starts rating as noted in the “Summary
Ratings” above: Project Justification and Local Financial Commitment. The Local
Financial Commitment accounts for 50 percent of the overall rating and is a
key component to a project’s success in the New Starts program. Projects are
required to show a committed and reasonably anticipated funding plan for the
required local match. Consistent with Board-adopted programming policies and
the Measure M2 (M2) ordinance, which specifically states, “the Authority shall
make every effort to maximize state and federal funding for transit projects”, staff
has developed a proposed funding plan. The current YOE project cost estimate
is $288.75 million, of which $144.37 million would be requested from the
New Starts program, and the $144.37 million balance will be provided through other
non-New Starts federal, state, and local sources. The Board previously approved
the use of $48.45 million of Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds
as part of the funding for the Project, leaving a balance of $95.92 million to be
funded from other federal, state, and local sources.

Future state cap-and-trade competitive grant opportunities are available for the
Project. Based on the current criteria for the competitive cap-and-trade funding,
the Project should compete well. Staff recommends pursuing up to $40 million
in cap-and-trade funds as a portion of the required match for the Project.



OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan Page 7

This leaves a balance of $55.92 million for the required local match, which staff
further recommends to be funded through the use of M2, Project S funds.
A summary of the proposed Project capital funding plan, including proposed local
financial commitment is reflected in the table below.

Funding Source (millions) Amount
Federal New Starts* $ 144.37
Federal CMAQ $ 48.45
State Cap-and-Trade* $ 40.00
M2 — Project S $ 55.92

TOTAL** $ 288.74

*Contingent on state and federal approvals.
** Total has been rounded.

If the pursuit of cap-and-trade funds results in a lower than requested funding
level, or if it is unsuccessful, staff will return to the Board with a revised Project
capital funding plan for the local financial commitment. As previously reported to
the Board, there is capacity within the M2, Project S line item that could provide
additional funding for the Project. However, the M2 Ordinance directs staff to
“make every effort to maximize state and federal funding for transit projects”.
Consistent with that direction, staff will also continue to seek alternate sources
of funds to provide the required local match, as well as fund O&M.

The Capital Funding Plan, which provides funding information for OCTA-funded
capital projects and also highlights the recommended changes included in this
item, is provided in Attachment C. Confirmation of federal New Starts and state
cap-and-trade funding is contingent on state and federal approvals, but will be
included now as OCTA Board-approved funding.

Right-of-Way

The Project design identifies the need for three full fee right-of-way (ROW)
acquisitions, six to eight partial fee ROW acquisitions, access easements, utility
easements, and temporary construction easements (TCE). The full fee ROW
acquisitions are required for the Project’'s maintenance and storage facility, and
the partial fee ROW acquisitions are required for the permanent installation of
traction power substations needed to power the streetcar system. The TCE’s and
various other easements are required for construction of various project elements
and for the installation of underground facilities such as water, sewer, storm drain,
gas, electric, and communication lines. If there are occupants displaced by the full
fee ROW acquisitions relocation, advisory assistance and benefits will be
provided. OCTA will be acquiring the property interests in accordance with federal
and state laws and regulations, FTA guidelines, as well as OCTA’s Real Property
Department policies and procedures. OCTA will exercise pre-award authority



OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan Page 8

under FTA’s fiscal year 2015-16 Apportionments, Allocations, and Program
Information Guidance (Federal Register/Vol 80, No. 26) since the Project was
granted entrance into the New Starts program by FTA on May 5, 2013. Beginning
the ROW acquisition under pre-award authority will mitigate ROW acquisition risks
to the Project’s schedule.

Streetcar Vehicle Procurement and Industry Forum

As identified in the CRAVE analysis, the optimal fleet size for the Project consists
of eight vehicles, and the procurement of the vehicles is on the Project’s critical
path schedule. The lead time for vehicle procurement and manufacturing can be
extensive, requiring 36 months or more. The first step in the procurement of
streetcar vehicles is to solicit information and feedback from manufacturers of
vehicles. In the coming months, staff will be scheduling an industry forum for all
streetcar vehicle manufacturers to attend. This will be the initial step to assist
OCTA in obtaining information on the number of available manufacturers and
types of vehicles to best fit the operating conditions identified in the Project.

Next Steps

The Project team will continue to develop the application to enter Engineering and,
upon resolution of FTA comments, will submit a letter formally requesting entry
into Engineering. This request is anticipated to be made in early November 2015.
During this time, staff will also continue to evaluate and refine project elements
and adjust capital and operating cost estimates consistent with those refinements.

In the next two months, staff will begin necessary preliminary efforts to secure the
ROW for the Project. Staff will begin working with the vehicle manufacturing industry
in preparation to begin vehicle procurement work and report back to the Board on
the results of that effort.

Summary

Consistent with prior Board direction, staff has completed a CRAVE analysis for
the Project, and is currently working to complete the required Project application
and request for entry into the next phase of the New Starts program,
Engineering. Staff has also developed a funding plan for the required local match
commitment and is seeking Board approval.



OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan Page 9

Attachments
A. OC Streetcar — Cost, Risk Assessment, and Value Engineering Elements
B. Criteria Used to Evaluate and Rate a New Starts Project

C. Capital Funding Program

Prepared by:

Jennifer L. Bergener

Director, Rail Programs & Facilities
Engineering

(714) 560-5462

Approved by:

% ////‘4/(

Jim Beil, P.E.
Executive Director, Capital Programs
(714) 560-5646



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan

Attachment A



ATTACHMENT A

OC Streetcar — Cost, Risk Assessment, and Value Engineering Elements

Tied Arch Bridge at Westminster:

o Opportunity identified: The type of bridge assumed at the OC Streetcar
project’s (Project) western terminus — what is called a Tied Arch Bridge — is
a larger, more elaborate structure than what is necessary to cross
Westminster.

o0 Resolution: The Project team working with the City of Garden Grove has
determined it was appropriate, as a cost-saving measure, to change the
scope of the bridge to reflect a crossing in scale with the Project.

Reconfiguration of Track at the Santa Ana Regional Transportation Center (SARTC):

o Opportunity identified: By changing the layout of the Project’s track at
SARTC, the Project is able to save three minutes of running time. This will
assist in reducing the operations and maintenance cost of the Project.

0 Resolution: The track layout has been modified to reflect the time-saving
design.

Traffic Signal Prioritization (TSP):

o Opportunity identified: This opportunity was not discussed in the
environmental impact report (EIR), however, was identified as a result of
the Project team analyzing ways to make the Project’'s operations more
efficient. TSP would enable the streetcar to proceed through selected
intersections on its own signal that is not affected by surrounding traffic.

0 Resolution: The cost of TSP has been included in the Project’s cost at a
number of intersections along the Project’s rail corridor.

Number of Vehicles:

o Risk identified: The Project team calculated the time it would take a
streetcar vehicle to travel the length of the rail corridor, given the conditions
in the corridor. The number of vehicles identified in the EIR were not enough
to operate the full length of the corridor at the frequency and within the
proposed street and track configuration. Additionally, the Federal Transit
Administration requires that a transportation agency hold approximately
20 percent of the total number of vehicles in its fleet as a spare.

0 Resolution: The number of vehicles assumed to be necessary for the
Project, given the requirements noted above, increased from seven to eight.

Drainage Improvements:

0 Risk Identified: The scope of the drainage improvements proposed in the
EIR, and planned to be a part of the Project, have the potential to create
flooded streets in the downtown area. This is due to low capacity
in down-stream water lines. Additionally, increasing capacity to the
down-stream lines is not a currently planned or programmed improvement.
Thus, water may back up and release onto the street. A streetcar is not able
to operate when standing water on a street exceeds four inches. Currently,
the City of Santa Ana is working to update the Drainage Master Plan.

0 Resolution: It is proposed that the inclusion of costs associated with
drainage improvements in the Project’s rail corridor be removed from the
Project’s budget. It is also proposed that should there be flooding in the



Project’s rail corridor, the Project will not operate and buses will be placed
into service on the same schedule and along the similar routing as the
streetcar.
Weekend Service Plan

o Risk Identified: The currently proposed operating plan includes the
operation of the Project every ten minutes for extended hours on Saturdays
and Sundays. The Project team researched the frequency with which peer
systems operated on the weekend and found that service every
15-20 minutes was the average.

o0 Resolution: Itis proposed that the frequency at which the streetcar operates
on Saturdays and Sundays is 15 minutes throughout the day.



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan

Attachment B



ATTACHMENT B

Criteria Used to Evaluate and Rate a New Starts Project

Project Justification Rating

(0}

Mobility Improvements: This is measured by the total number of trips that
people make using the project. Federal Transit Administration prioritizes the
trips made by those users who do not have access to an automobile — trips
made by this group are counted as two trips.

Environmental Benefits: This measure is an indicator of how the project
would improve not only air quality but also human health, safety, and energy
consumption within the region.

Congestion Relief: This measure includes the number of new transit trips
added to the region as a result of the project. This includes not only those
trips made on the project, but also trips made on bus and rail services
connecting to the streetcar that would not have been made without the
Project’s implementation.

Cost Effectiveness: This measure is the cost per trip on the project. The
costs include both the costs to design and construct the project, as well as
costs associated with the operations and maintenance of the project.
Economic Development: This is the only project justification measure that
is qualitative. The measure includes the evaluation and the efficacy of plans
and policies that encourage transit investment in the region and the rail
corridor, in particular.

Land Use: This measure assesses the existing conditions of the rail corridor
relative to a number of characteristics: population, employment, parking
inventory, and cost, as well as the amount of affordable housing in the rail
corridor relative to the County as a whole.

Local Financial Commitment Rating

(0]

Current Capital and Operating Condition of the Agency: This includes an
assessment of the age of buses in the fleet, the history of service changes,
and the agency'’s ratio of current assets to its current liabilities.
Commitment of Funds: This measure is based on the amount of capital and
operational funding budgeted or committed to the project versus amounts
that are planned or unspecified.

Reasonableness of Financial Plan: This includes an assessment of the
reasonableness of the capital cost estimate for the project, how the agency
plans to meet State of Good Repair needs for the transit fleet, and the
agency’s ability to make up for any increase to the project’s cost or a
shortfall in regional funding.



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

OC Streetcar Project Update and Capital Funding Plan

Attachement C



Capital Funding Program

Pending Board of Directors Approval - August 24, 2015

(in thousands) FEDERAL LOCAL
RAIL CAPITAL FUNDING PROGRAM Total
M STIP/Other State RSTP/ Federal Local/
Programmed M1 M2 CURE
Code . State Bonds CMAQ Other Other
Funding
Control point at 4th Street - $ 4,000 - - - 4,000 - - - -
Laguna Niguel to San Juan Capistrano Passing Siding Project = $ 25,274 3,000 2,483 19,791 - - - - -
M2 Project S fixed-guideway Anaheim Rapid Connection S $ 19,452 - - - 10,682 6,000 1,335 - 1,435
M2 Project S OC Streetcar prelimiary studies and enviornmental M1/S [ § 12,129 = = = 4,433 6,000 554 - 1,142
OC Streetcar® (proposed New Starts) M1/S [ $ 289,000 40,000 - 48,453 144,500 - 56,047 - -
M2 Project S transit extensions to Metrolink (rubber tire) S $ 733 = = = = = 733 - -
Anaheim Regional Intermodal Transportation Center (ARTIC) M1/T | $ 184,164 29,219 - 35,000 40,754 43,900 35,291 - -
Anaheim Canyon Station improvements - $ 22,050 - - 18,049 2,001 - - - 2,000
Placentia Commuter Rail Station R $ 23,420 2,500 400 50 - - 8,000 - 12,470
Fullerton Transportation Station expansion planning, environmental, planning study report (PSR) M1 $ 875 - - 775 - 100 - - -
Fullerton Transportation Center Parking Expansion Project’ M1 $ 33,667 11,250 11,035 - - 9,718 - - 1,664
Orange Transportation Center Parking Structure M1 $ 27,257 13,762 - 2,938 1,850 - - 8,707
Laguna Niguel-Mission Viejo Station parking improvements and expansion (Camino Capistrano) M1 $ 15,134 - - 6,500 - 8,634 - - -
Laguna Niguel-Mission Viejo Station parking expansion (south lot) M1 $ 4,344 = 695 = = 3,649 - - -
Metrolink Station and track improvements, and rehabilitation - $ 2,230 - - - 1,784 - - - 446
Positive train control (Metrolink) - $ 39,916 - 34,190 - 5,726 - - - -
San Clemente wayside horn R $ 4,802 - 2,250 - - - 1,976 - 576
State College Grade Separation (LOSSAN) R $ 79,284 - 46,000 - - - 33,284 - -
Sand Canyon Avenue Grade Separation Project M1R | $ 64,013 - 30,155 10,536 - 3,116 5,352 - 14,854
17th Street grade separation environmental R $ 3,500 - - - - - 3,500 - -
Santa Ana grade separation planning and environmental PSR M1 $ 1,500 - - 1,328 - 172 - - -
Video surveillance systems at Commuter Rail Stations - $ 4,300 - - - 3,440 - - 860 -
Future video surveillance systems - $ 1,531 - - - 1,288 - - 243 -
Metrolink rehabilitation/renovation - fiscal years 2011-12 to 2013-14 - $ 22,541 - - - 22,541 - - - -
Slope Stabilization Laguna Niguel-Lake Forest - $ 2,000 - - - 2,000 - - - -
o pleted Proje 0seo P e
Metrolink rolling stock M1 |§ 158,009 - 36,300 42,230 35,390 44,089 - - -
Metrolink service track expansion® M1 $ 119,957 - 51,399 - - 68,558 - - -
Control point stadium crossover - $ 6,490 - 3,245 - 3,245 - - -
Go Local S $ 7,730 - - - - 7,730 - - -
ARTIC environmental, right-of-way (ROW), program management’ support, site plan M1 [§ 42,888 - - - - 42,888 - - -
Tustin Rail Station parking expansion M1 $ 15,389 1,100 7,181 - - 7,108 - - -
Santa Ana Transportation Station planning and environmental PSR M1 $ 1,500 - - 1,328 - 172 - - -
Fiber optics installation (Metrolink) M1 $ 24,600 - 12,300 - 10,903 1,397 - - -
Metrolink grade crossing safety improvements (OCX)" MIR | $ 85,009 - 18,595 - - 6,305 36,299 13,609 10,201
Metrolink grade crossing safety improvements ROW R $ 3,025 - N - N - 3,025 - -
North Beach crossings safety enhancements® R $ 348 S 166 S = - 182 - -
LOSSAN corridor grade separations PSR in Anaheim, Orange, and Santa Ana R $ 3,050 - - - - - 3,050 - -
Rail crossing signal lights and pedestrian gates > $ 252 = 252 - - - - - -
Rail station platform safety improvements (Fullerton, Irvine, and Tustin) - $ 788 - 788 - - - - - -
Safety repairs for San Clemente Pier Station = $ 122 - 122 - - - - - -
Transit rail security (monitors, fencing, video surveillance) - $ 310 - 310 - - - - - -
RAIL CAPITAL FUNDING TOTAL $ 1,356,583 $ 100,831 $257,866 $ 186,978 $292,687 $261,386 $188,628 $ 14,712 $ 53,495
State Funding Total 358,697 |M Code - M1 = Measure M1, otherwise Project Codes in Measure M2 Program
Federal Funding Total 479,665 [STIP - State Transportation Improvement Program
Local Funding Total 518,221 |RSTP/CMAQ - Regional Surface Transportation Program/Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
Project Notes: M1/M2 - Measure M1/Measure M2
1. Includes the elevator phase at $4.0 million: $1.718 million Proposition 116, $1.782 million M1, CURE - Commuter and Rail Endowment Fund
and $0.500 million Proposition 1B Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement, and Service OCX - Rail-Highway Grade Crossing/Safety Enhancement Project
Enhancement Account. LOSSAN - Los Angeles-San Diego-San Luis Obispo Rail Corridor

2. Includes ROW costs.

Includes previously expended ARTIC ROW.

Includes Dana Point and San Clemente Crossing Safety Enhancements Project at $4.2 million -
$2.1 million in Highway Rail Crossing Safety Account and $2.1 million in M2.

5. Part of the Orange County Transportation Authority OCX.

~w

Note for Project included in Board Item:
6. Programs $144.5 million in Federal New Starts, $40.0 million in State Cap and Trade, and $56.0 million in M2 Project S funds for the project along with previously approved $48.5 million in CMAQ. Cap and Trade and
New Starts funding is contingent on State and Federal approvals.

J LINJNHOVLLVY



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report

Staff Report



OCTA

October 5, 2015

To: Executive Committee

27
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer . ). - 7
Subject: Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report
Overview

Measure M2 Ordinance No. 3 includes a provision to review the project and
program elements of the Transportation Investment Plan at least every
ten years. Consistent with the triennial performance review cycles, the
ten-year period is assumed to have begun on November 8, 2006 (effective date
of Ordinance No. 3), and would conclude on November 7, 2016. The review has
been conducted, and the final report is provided for the Board of Directors
information along with an action plan for consideration.

Recommendations

A. Receive and file the Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report as an
information item.

B. Direct staff to initiate the process to amend the Measure M2
Transportation Investment Plan to adjust funds within the transit category
to ensure commitments to the voters can be upheld.

C. Direct staff to return to the Board of Directors to set a date for a public
hearing for action to adopt amendments to the Measure M2
Transportation Investment Plan.

Background

In November 2006, Orange County voters approved the Renewed Measure M
Ordinance No. 3 and the Transportation Investment Plan (Plan), also called
Measure M2 (M2). The Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) is
committed to fulfilling the promises made in M2. This means delivering all the
projects and programs described in the Plan, and complying with the specific

Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)



Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report Page 2

requirements identified in Ordinance No. 3. Within Ordinance No. 3 there is a
requirement to conduct a comprehensive review at least every ten years of all
project and program elements included in the Plan. This requirement is found within
Section 11 of Ordinance No. 3:

TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE PROGRAM REVIEW - At least every
ten years the Authority shall conduct a comprehensive review of all projects and
programs implemented under the Plan to evaluate the performance of the overall
program and may revise the Plan to improve its performance. The review shall
include consideration of changes to local, state and federal transportation plans
and policies; changes in land use, travel and growth projections; changes in
project cost estimates and revenue projections; right-of-way constraints and
other project constraints; level of public support for the Plan; and the progress of
the Authority and jurisdictions in implementing the Plan. The Authority may
amend the Plan based on its comprehensive review, subject to the requirements
of Section 12.

With the start of sales tax revenue collection on April 1, 2011,
M2 is in year five of the 30-year Plan. However, work on program delivery began
in 2006, with the OCTA Board of Directors (Board) adoption of the Early Action
Plan, which initiated the early implementation of M2. Following the precedent
set with the required triennial performance reviews under Ordinance No. 3,
the ten-year period is assumed to have begun on November 8, 2006 (effective
date of Ordinance No. 3), and will conclude on November 7, 2016.
In November 2014, staff provided the Board with an overview of the ten-year
review schedule, objectives, and approach as part of the regular M2 Quarterly
Report, and an update and status report were provided in April 2015. Regular
updates on the review progress were included with each M2 Quarterly Report
with the most recent taking place last month.

Discussion

The Measure M Program Management Office led the ten-year review,
with staff participation from throughout OCTA. Based on the language in
M2 Ordinance No. 3, the following five objectives were established to ensure all
elements were analyzed as required by Section 11:

1. Research and identify external policy and/or regulatory changes at the
local, state, and federal level, as well as changes in land use, travel, and
growth projections that require consideration.

2. Evaluate current project and program cost estimates and the financial
capacity of the sales tax revenue through 2041 to confirm Plan delivery.

3. Review M2 program and project elements to determine if there are
performance issues or constraints to the promised delivery.

4, Identify OCTA'’s and local jurisdictions’ progress in implementing the Plan.

5. Assess public and stakeholder support for the Plan.



Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report Page 3

With the recent completion of Orange County’s 2014 Long-Range
Transportation Plan (LRTP), and the understanding that M2 is the cornerstone
of that Plan, OCTA staff capitalized on this effort and used research and
outreach conducted as part of the 2014 LRTP to serve as a baseline for the
M2 Ten-Year Review. Information gleaned from the LRTP included changes to
land use, travel, and growth projections, as well as public input. Staff also looked
to the recently completed (January 2015) update of OCTA’'s Comprehensive
Business Plan (CBP), which includes a section that specifically analyzes M2 to
ensure it is financially viable, as well as performed an updated financial review
to confirm plan delivery. Additional research, analysis, and public outreach was
conducted to ensure a comprehensive review of elements identified in Section 11
of Ordinance No. 3.

Ten-Year Review Report

The Ten-Year Review Report (Attachment A) addresses purpose, background,
and the review process, and reports on changes that have occurred to determine
any effect on the M2 Plan performance and delivery of the program. A summary
of findings covering the objectives is included below.

Situation Analysis: Reviewing the Changes Impacting Orange County’s
Transportation Systems

The ten-year review examined federal and state legislation, demographics and
land use, emerging transportation-related issues, and state transportation
policies. Upon review, it was determined that none of the changes in
demographics, land use, federal or state laws, or regulations passed or issued
since the passage of M2 (2006) would prompt a recommendation to change the
M2 Program. Because of the flexibility built into the M2 ordinance and guidelines,
OCTA has been able to adapt to changes while keeping with the intent of the
voter commitment and continuing to advance locally-prioritized M2
transportation projects.

While guidelines implementing legislation related to sustainability, reducing
greenhouse gas, addressing high-occupancy vehicle degradation, and a new
push towards managed lanes are evolving, the M2 Plan is currently contained in
the 2012 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)/Sustainable Community
Strategies (SCS), which complies with known requirements. It is likely that
additional requirements could make it more difficult for upcoming highway and
roadway capacity projects to be completed. In the event that this happens,
additional plan reviews and actions may be warranted.

It is important to recognize that M2 is a balanced plan that includes freeways,
streets and roads, transit, and environmental elements. M2 was developed with
sustainability elements in mind. Working with the environmental community, M2
includes two significant environmental elements in the overall program.



Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report Page 4

The Freeway Mitigation Program provides comprehensive (not piecemeal)
mitigation to freeway improvements, and the Environmental Cleanup Program (ECP)
provides funding to address clean water standards due to urban runoff that goes
over and above required mitigations.

The Plan also was approved through a programmatic environmental impact
report which evaluated the program as a whole, and the Plan went through a
rigorous process of analyzing air quality benefits. Additionally, the Plan elements
are included in the most recent 2012 RTP, which is in place to ensure
environmental conformity and consistency with the SCS.

While the ultimate outcome of this emphasis on sustainability and managed lanes
is yet to be determined, this will likely change the make-up of future sales tax
measures. What is unclear is how these policy changes will apply to existing
measures that predate these policies as in the case of M2, that contains
considerable environmental sustainability measures. Moving forward, it will be
important for both OCTA and the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
to work together to ensure the commitment made to voters is upheld.

Financial Analysis: Evaluating OCTA’s Capacity to Complete Measure M
Commitments

The financial capacity of the M2 Program to meet the commitments made to the
voters of Orange County was analyzed as part of the CBP and then again for
the ten-year review. Revenue and expenditure assumptions were analyzed at
the project and mode (category) level to ensure adequate financial capacity to
deliver the M2 Program. Despite the significant impact of the 2008 Great
Recession (resulting in a 36 percent decrease in forecasted revenue), OCTA
anticipates that the sales tax generated for the M2 Program, along with the
support of external funding, will be able to meet the intent of commitments made
to Orange County voters. While program levels have been reduced, the M2 Plan
remains deliverable due to the scalability of the Plan to revenue received. The
areas that are not scalable are the freeway category due to set project scopes,
and one program element in the transit category. The freeway program will need
to capitalize on external funding to minimize risk to overall project delivery. The
transit program will need to move funds within the category to remain deliverable.
A brief analysis is provided below.

Freeways

The freeway category represents the largest area of risk for the M2 Program. All
freeway projects within the M2 freeway category are well defined with set scopes
and need to be completed despite the substantial decrease in forecasted sales
tax revenue. OCTA has historically been successful in obtaining external
funding to maximize the use of M2 funds. The plan going forward will be to
continue to seek external funding. Based on current revenue and expenditure



Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report Page 5

assumptions, OCTA anticipates being able to deliver all freeway projects
included in the M2 Program, assuming external funding expectations hold and
project costs are contained.

Streets and Roads

Unlike the freeway program of projects which has a specific set of projects
defined in the M2 Ordinance, expenditures for the streets and roads category
can be scaled to match available revenue. As a result, going forward, OCTA will
continue to issue calls for projects for the Regional Capacity Program and the
Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program, as well as fund the Local Fair
Share Program as outlined in the M2 Ordinance based on available M2 revenue.

ECP

Similar to the streets and roads category, expenditures within the ECP can be
scaled to match available revenue as defined by the M2 Ordinance.

Transit

Similar to the streets and roads category, expenditures within the transit category
can generally be scaled to match available revenue, with some exceptions.
As a result, expenditures supporting programs such as High-Frequency
Metrolink Service, Transit Extensions to Metrolink, Metrolink Gateways, Senior
Mobility Program, Senior Non-Emergency Medical Transportation Program,
Community-Based Transit Circulators, and Safe Transit Stops have been scaled
to match available revenues or will be funded based on a formula defined by the
M2 Ordinance and Board direction.

The only program that cannot be scaled back to available revenue is the Fare
Stabilization Program under Project U. The M2 Ordinance states that one
percent of net revenues will be dedicated to provide fare discounts for seniors
and persons with disabilities. The M2 Ordinance also provides specific guidance
that fares will be stabilized “in an amount equal to the percentage of partial
funding of fares for seniors and persons with disabilities as of the effective date
of the ordinance.” As a result of the reduction in projected M2 revenues,
one percent of the net revenues is not sufficient to fund the requirements outlined
in the M2 Ordinance. Currently, the transit category as a whole is forecasted to
have sufficient funding and remains deliverable; however, the shortfall in Project U
needs to be addressed.

Shortfall and Need within the Transit Category
The original projections in 2005 estimated that $232 million would be

collected for the Fare Stabilization Program. Current projections estimate
that only $147 million will be generated. Based on current ridership



Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report Page 6

projections, the need to fulfill the requirement outlined in the M2
Ordinance is $221 million, leaving a shortfall of $74 million. The Board
has already taken one step to begin to fill the shortfall
On February 14, 2011, the Board approved M2 Project U Funding and
Policy Guidelines. At that time, a potential shortfall in the Fare
Stabilization Program was already being forecasted due to the drop in M2
sales tax collections. As a result, the Board directed staff to utilize
unallocated funds from the Senior Mobility Program, also a Project U
Program, to help backfill the shortfall in the Fare Stabilization Program.
During the 30-year period of M2, this source will provide approximately
$5 million to the Fare Stabilization Program, leaving a projected shortfall
of approximately $69 million.

Another area of need is Metrolink Service Expansion (Project R), which
is the program that supports ongoing capital requirements and operations
of Metrolink service. This program has been scaled back to the available
revenue which has limited the level of additional service that can be
added. This program also faces regulatory risks as well as high operating
costs. Providing additional funds to this program would allow the service
to grow to meet future demand and also support sustainability goals by
providing an attractive option for commuters using the freeway.

Recommended Solution

Within the M2 Plan, all projects and programs are moving forward. Not
including individual freeway projects, the transit category is the only
category that has a program which is complete. Per the M2 Ordinance,
Project T is to be utilized for converting Metrolink Station(s) to regional
gateways that connect Orange County with high-speed rail systems.
OCTA has contributed Project T funds for the construction of the Anaheim
Regional Transportation Intermodal Center, which is already complete
and operational. This station is designed to be the southern terminus for
the planned high-speed rail system in California. Since no other stations
in Orange County are to be served on the planned route and no other
high-speed rail systems have moved forward in the planning stages,
given the defined shortfall in Projects U and R, it is recommended that the
remaining funds in Project T be reallocated to other M2 transit line items.
It is anticipated that approximately $219 million will be available in Project T.

Ordinance No. 3 spells out the process for plan amendments.
Amendments within a category do not require voter approval but require
a two-thirds vote of the Taxpayer Oversight Committee (TOC) and a
two-thirds vote of the OCTA Board, as well as a public hearing and
notification process. Amendments to the Ordinance can be made at any
time it is determined to be needed.



Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report Page 7

As a result of this review, it is recommended that $69 million be
transferred from Project T to Project U to cover the shortfall in the Fare
Stabilization Program. The balance of the Project T funds ($150 million)
is recommended to be transferred to Project R, which funds the ongoing
operation of Metrolink service in Orange County. If there becomes a need
in the future to convert a Metrolink Station to a Regional Gateway that
connects with high-speed rail, the first look for funding should be within
the High-Speed Rail Plan. If this is not available and improvements are
justifiable, funding could be available out of Project R with OCTA Board
approval.

Project Delivery Analysis: Identifying Progress and Project Constraints

Progress

Implementation of the M2 Plan continues at a fast pace. While M2 is only in year
five of the 30-year program (revenues started flowing in 2011), every program in
the M2 Transportation Expenditure Plan has been initiated, with some already
complete. More than $900 million has been allocated to improving freeways.
Every freeway project listed in the plan is in one stage or another of project
implementation (27 segments total). More than $1 billion has been invested in
streets and road projects. Approximately $1 billion has been allocated for transit,
and a significant commitment to sustainability through environmental programs
has been made available through the Freeway Mitigation Program and the Water
Cleanup Program.

Constraints

The most significant area of concern for the M2 Plan is the conflicting priorities
between OCTA and Caltrans regarding the delivery of M2 freeway projects. As
part of the project development process, Caltrans is now requiring a broader
range of alternatives be studied to meet broader state highway system needs
and/or requirements, which is different than the assumptions that went into the
development of the M2 Freeway Program. These considerations can expand
project footprint, change intent, add costs, and/or have scheduling impacts. It is
imperative that OCTA and Caltrans remain coordinated and find common ground
despite differing interests.

OCTA and Caltrans have made progress during the past year to reach consensus;
however, there are still a number of issues that remain a challenge. Staff will
continue to work with Caltrans to manage scope, schedule, and funding concerns.
However, it is key to ensure that M2 projects are delivered as promised to the
voters.



Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report Page 8

Public Priority Analysis: Assessing Public and Stakeholder Continued Support
for M2

To gauge the level of public support, a comprehensive public outreach plan was
designed to elicit direct feedback from a variety of stakeholders from April 2015
through September 2015. In addition, outreach results were combined with
results from the recently completed 2014 LRTP public involvement program.
Target audiences included government officials, community and business
leaders, transportation professionals, multicultural leaders, and the general
public.

The public was encouraged to contribute comments through a multi-facetted
approach that included an online questionnaire, roundtables, outreach meetings,
letters, a public opinion survey, and promotion on traditional and digital media.

Public Feedback

Outreach participants consistently echoed their support for M2. Many
participants generally felt that OCTA should continue to develop and expand
multi-modal options that include everything from transit services, to street and
freeway improvements, and investments in active transportation. In addition,
participants articulated the need to consider how to utilize new and emerging
technologies to both enhance current services and maximize efficiency in
construction. Participants also mentioned how important it is to continue, and
perhaps expand upon, allotting resources to educate and inform the public about
M2 transportation improvements and options.

Just as when M2 was passed by nearly 70 percent of Orange County voters in
2006, the public still supports the plan as approved. In addition, the priorities that
have emerged from the ten-year review align with those that surfaced as part of
the 2014 LRTP. Participants also acknowledged that Measure M must have
flexibility to accommodate future trends while maintaining the balance of the
M2 Plan and promise to the voters.

Conclusions

After completing the comprehensive review of OCTA’s M2 Program and the
requirements listed in Ordinance No. 3 related to the ten-year review, no major
external changes related to legislation, land use, travel and growth projections,
project cost/revenue projections or right-of-way, and/or other constraints have
been identified that would require substantial changes to the M2 Plan as
approved by the voters in 2006, and as amended November 23, 2013. The
review also highlighted that M2 as a whole is supported by the public as
approved, and that OCTA has made substantial progress in delivering the
program as promised to the voters with all elements initiated and a number of
projects delivered.



Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report

Page 9

In reviewing the financial capacity of the M2 Plan by category, the transit
category has been identified as in need of a shift in funding between transit
programs. Ordinance No. 3 spells out the process for Plan amendments.
Amendments within a category do not require taking the amendment to the

voters, but instead requires a two-thirds vote of the TOC,

and a two-thirds vote

of the OCTA Board, as well as a public hearing and notification process.

Proposed Amendment

Staff recommends amending the transit category within the M2 Transportation

Investment Plan along with the following actions:

. Determine that the intent of Project T has been fulfilled and the remaining
balance is available to support a shortfall in Project U, and a long-term

need in Project R

o Initiate the amendment process of the M2 Transportation Investment Plan
J $69 million from Project T to Project U to address shortfall
. Remaining amount in Project T ($150 million) to Project R to address

future demand and also support sustainability goals by providing an

option for commuters using the freeway

Amendment Process

Date

OCTA Board Receives Ten-Year Review Report

October 12, 2015

TOC hears ten-year review and findings related to
amendment proposal

October 13, 2015

OCTA Board considers amendment and sets a public hearing
date for December 14, 2015

October 26, 2015

Proposed amendment sent to local agencies for public review
prior to public hearing

October 27, 2015

TOC considers/acts on amendment (requires two-thirds vote)

November 10, 2015

Public hearing on amendment and roll call vote by Board
(requires two-thirds vote)

December 14, 2015

Adopted amendment transmitted to local agencies

December 15, 2015

Amendment effective 45 days following adoption

January 28, 2016




Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report Page 10

Summary

A comprehensive ten-year review was conducted as required by
M2 Ordinance No. 3, and a report (including an executive summary) has been
prepared with extensive analysis and findings. The report includes a review of
all projects and programs implemented under the Plan to evaluate the
performance of the overall program and recommendations to revise the Plan to
improve its performance. The report concludes that although there have been
legislative and economic changes, they do not warrant any significant changes
in the M2 Plan. Also, outreach performed verifies that there is continued public
support for the priorities in the Transportation Investment Plan. However, to
ensure all elements of the Plan can be delivered as promised, staff is
recommending an amendment to the transit category. The amendment would
closeout Project T (Gateways to Metrolink), and allocate the remaining funds to
backfill the projected shortfall in Project U (Stabilize Fares for Seniors and
Persons with Disabilities) and Project R (High-Frequency Metrolink Service).

Attachment
A. Renewed Measure M Comprehensive Ten-Year Review
Prepared by: Approved by:
A\

_I\'

T 3

o
Fat! | A %
e AW v LU
DA NNBAG S S L | —

Tamara Warren Kia Mortazavi
Manager, Executive Director, Planning
Program Management Office (714) 560-5741

(714) 560-5590



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Report

Attachment A



ATTACHMENT A

Renewed Measure M
Comprehensive Ten-Year Review

Presented to the Board of Directors on

October 12, 2015




MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Table of Contents

L. EXECULIVE SUMMAIY .....oiiiiiiiiiiiiiciieece ettt e e et e e e e e s e st e e e e e e e s e s nabebaneeeeeesessnssanaeeeesessnnsenns 2
1. REVIEW PFOCESS .....coeviiiiiiiiiieeiie ettt ettt e sr e s b e st e s be e s sme e e sreeesnnee s 8
1l. Situation Analysis: Reviewing the Changes Affecting Orange County’s Transportation Systems11
V. Financial Analysis: Evaluating OCTA’s Capacity to Complete Measure M2 Commitments ......... 27
V. Project Delivery Analysis: Identifying Progress and Project Constraints..............ccccccovevieeennnen. 31
VI. Public Priority Analysis: Assessing Public and Stakeholder Continued Support forM2 .............. 40
VI CONCIUSIONS .....neieiiiiietiet ettt ettt ettt et e b e s bttt et e et e e s bt e sbeesatesabe et e e beenbeesbeesaeeeanean 49
Appendix A List of M2 Amendments to Date..........ccocuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii et 50
Appendix B Federal Legislation Potentially Impacting M2 Projects Enacted Since 2006.................... 51
Appendix C  State Legislation Potentially Impacting M2 Projects Enacted Since 2006........................ 53
Appendix D Measure M2 Project and Program Progress and Constraints.................ccccceeeevveeeccnneennn. 61
Appendix E  LRTP Stakeholder Outreach Groups............cccccuviiiiiiiiiecciiee et 77
Appendix F  Measure M2 Infographic FIYer.............coociiiiiiiii it 78
Appendix G Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Questionnaire Draft...............ccccccevviiiiiiiiieicciiee e, 79
Appendix H Media Alert — Measure IM2 SUIVEY .............coeeeciiiiieiiiieeeciteeeecieeeeeeraeeeeeasreeeeesreessenaaeeeas 82
Appendix|  OCTA Blog Post — Learn About M2 and Share Your Thoughts...............ccccoeviiieiiinnn.n. 83
AppendixJ  Newsletter Copy — Learn About M2 and Share Your Thoughts.................coeeiniennnnnnn. 84
Appendix K Letter to State and Federal Transportation Stakeholders..............cccccvveveeiiiiiiiiniennnennnn. 85

9/30/2015 1



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

l. Executive Summary

In November 2006, Orange County voters approved the extension or renewal of Measure M, a
one-half cent transportation sales tax to fund a slate of projects and programs for another 30
years. The Plan included a provision in the Measure M2 Ordinance No. 3 (also known as M2 or
the Plan) requiring that at least every ten-years the Orange County Transportation Authority
(OCTA) to conduct a comprehensive review of all projects and programs implemented under the
Plan to evaluate the performance of the overall program.

OCTA recently concluded the first Ten-Year Review covering the time period from when M2 was
approved by Orange County voters in November 2006 to fall 2015. The comprehensive review
includes four specific areas of analysis, which meet the objectives outlined in the Plan:

e Situation Analysis

e Financial Analysis

e Project Delivery Analysis
e Public Priority Analysis

Situation Analysis

External situations which have had or have the potential to affect M2 were identified and
analyzed, including transportation-related federal and state legislation that was signed into law
as well as emerging transportation issues and state policy changes that have occurred following
the passage of M2. Upon review, it was determined that none of the federal or state laws or
regulations passed or issued since the passage of M2 would prompt a recommendation to change
the M2 program. Because of the flexibility built into the Measure M2 Ordinance and guidelines,
OCTA has been able to adapt to a reduction in sales tax revenues as a result of the 2008 Great
Recession and take advantage of the funding-related legislative changes that have occurred to
date, while continuing to advance locally-prioritized M2 transportation projects. However while
guidelines implementing legislation related to reducing Green Houses Gas (GHG) have yet to be
finalized, these requirements could make it more difficult for additional highway and roadway
capacity projects to be completed. Further OCTA has made adjustments outside of M2 to be
responsive to new state policies.

Legislation

On the Federal side, several laws were passed since 2006 which could have affected M2 projects.
While some legislation, such as the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), provided
new one-time federal funding for transportation projects, the majority of federal legislation
related to the appropriation of federal funds for transportation projects and programs. For
example, the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 215t Century Act (MAP-21) provided $18.8 billion
to fund federal transportation programs until September 30, 2014. As part of MAP-21, several
components of OCTA’s project streamlining initiative — Breaking Down Barriers — were included
in the final bill. Additionally, MAP-21 also included a new mandate to address high occupancy

9/30/2015 2



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

lane degradation which has triggered new managed lane policies from the California Department
of Transportation (Caltrans). Subsequently, a temporary extension of MAP-21 through May 31,
2015 was put in place, but the continued debate on renewal of MAP-21 remains an issue due to
the lack of certainty for long-term transportation funding needs.

On the State side, transportation legislation with a focus towards sustainability and addressing
GHG reduction has emerged. Fortunately, the M2 Investment Plan includes elements that
support and enhance transportation system sustainability: M2 provides expanded transit
services and more efficient street and highway operations, greater and more local funding to
allow local jurisdictions to address local needs, preserves open space through the incorporated
sustainability elements that were important at that time including the freeway mitigation and
water cleanup programs. The Plan also was approved through a Programmatic Environmental
Impact Report which evaluated the program as a whole and went through a rigorous process of
analyzing air quality benefits. Additionally, the Plan elements were included in the most recent
2012 Regional Transportation Plan which is in place to ensure environmental conformity and
consistency with the Sustainable Communities Strategy. Balancing new sustainability regulations
while continuing to keep the promise to the voters will continue to be a priority moving forward.

Demographics and Land Use

The M2 Review did not reveal significant shifts in demographics or land use patterns. While
growth in population, employment and housing has slowed, the general location and pattern of
growth is similar to what was initially projected as part of the M2 Plan process.

State Policy

With regard to state policy, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) recently-
released District Directive on a Managed Lane Policy moves Caltrans into a more direct role in
the planning, design and operations of managed lanes without a known funding source. Caltrans’
growing interest is driven by fiscal, operational, and environmental considerations. While the
ultimate outcome of the emphasis on sustainability and managed lanes is yet to be determined,
it will likely change the make-up of future sales tax measures. What is unclear is how these policy
changes will apply to existing measures that predate these policies. Moving forward, it will be
important for both agencies to work together to ensure the commitment made to voters is
upheld.

Financial Analysis

Recessionary Impacts to M2 Funds

When the extension of Measure M was approved by Orange County voters in November 2006,
sales tax revenue projections during the life of the M2 Program were estimated to be $24.3
billion. As a result of the recession, in 2010 the sales tax revenue assumptions for the M2
Program hit a low of $13.7 billion which represented a 44% decrease in forecasted revenue. Since

9/30/2015 3



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

the recession sales tax revenue has grown consistently and current sales tax forecasts indicate
that the M2 Program will receive $15.7 billion in sales tax revenue during the life of the program.

Financial analysis has shown, despite the significant impact of the 2008 Great Recession, sales
tax generated for the M2 Program in conjunction with external funding is anticipated to be
sufficient to meet the commitments made to Orange County voters. This is possible for three
reasons:

1. As M2 funding projections declined as a result of the recession, project savings were
realized from lower construction costs during the recession;

2. OCTA was able to secure external funding — not originally anticipated or counted upon —
beyond M2 for many freeway projects;

3. Many of the M2 programs are scalable to the available M2 funds, such that the Plan can
be delivered as promised, based on the available revenue while still meeting the intent of
the Plan.

Financial Review by Category

Within the M2 Plan, all projects and programs are moving forward. Of the four program
categories of freeways, streets and roads, environmental cleanup, and transit, the transit
category is the only one that requires consideration of shifting funds. The financial assessment
by category is summarized below.

Freeways

The freeway category could have the largest area of risk for the M2 Program since all freeway
projects within the M2 freeway category are well defined with set scopes and need to be
completed despite the substantial decrease in forecasted sales tax revenue. OCTA has
historically been successful in obtaining external funding to maximize the use of M2 funds. The
plan going forward will be to continue to seek external funding. Based on current revenue and
expenditure assumptions, OCTA anticipates being able to deliver all freeway projects included in
the M2 Program assuming the addition of external funding and managing costs.

Streets and Roads

Unlike the freeway program of projects, which has a specific set of projects defined in the M2
Ordinance, expenditures for the streets and roads category can be scaled to match available
revenue. As a result, going forward OCTA will continue to issue calls-for-projects for the Regional
Capacity and Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Programs, as well as fund the Local Fair
Share Program as outlined in the M2 Ordinance based on available M2 revenue.

Environmental Clean Up
Similar to the streets and roads category, expenditures within the Clean Up program can be

scaled to match available revenue defined by the M2 Ordinance.

9/30/2015 4



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Transit

Also similar to the streets and roads category, expenditures within the transit category can
generally be scaled to match available revenue, including High Frequency Metrolink Service,
Transit Extensions to Metrolink, Metrolink Gateways, Senior Mobility Program, Senior Non-
Emergency Medical Transportation Program, Community Based Transit Circulators and Safe
Transit Stops.

Project U —the Fare Stabilization Program —is the one program that is at risk of not being able to
be delivered. It cannot be scaled to available revenue because the M2 Ordinance states that one
percent of net revenues will be dedicated to provide fare discounts for seniors and persons with
disabilities. The M2 Ordinance also provides specific guidance that fares will be stabilized “in an
amount equal to the percentage of partial funding of fares for seniors and persons with
disabilities as of the effective date of the ordinance.” As a result of the reduction in projected
revenue collections, one percent of the net revenues is not sufficient to fund the requirements
outlined in the M2 Ordinance.

Further, future additional service as part of the Metrolink Service Expansion (Project R), has been
scaled back to correspond with available revenue, which results in a limited ability to provide
more frequent service. This program has also been impacted by difficult negotiations with
Burlington Northern Santa Fe, which owns portions of the railroad tracks, and new federal and
state requirements such as positive train control and clean fuel locomotives. Providing additional
funds to this program would allow the service to grow to meet future demand and also support
sustainability goals by providing an attractive option for commuters using the freeway.

Another transit program, Project T (converting Metrolink Station(s) to Regional Gateways that
connect Orange County with High-Speed rail systems), is complete and has a remaining balance
in its budget allocation. It is anticipated that approximately $219 million will be available in
Project T.

In order to ensure the delivery of the M2 Transit Program, it is recommended to close out Project
T and that $69 million be transferred from Project T to Project U to cover the shortfall in the Fare
Stabilization program. The balance of the Project T funds ($150 million) is recommended to be
transferred to Project R, which funds the ongoing operation of Metrolink service in Orange
County.

Project Delivery Analysis

Implementation of the M2 Plan continues at a fast pace. While M2 is only in year five of the
30-year program (revenues started flowing in 2011) every program in the M2 Transportation
Investment Plan has been initiated with some already complete. More than $900 million has
been allocated to improving freeways. Every freeway project listed in the Plan is in one stage or
another of project implementation (27 segments total). More than $1 billion has been invested
in streets and road projects. Approximately, $1 billion has been allocated for transit and a

9/30/2015 5



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

significant commitment to sustainability through environmental programs has been made
through the Freeway Mitigation Program and the Water Cleanup program.

The most significant area of concern for the M2 Plan is the conflicting priorities between OCTA
and Caltrans regarding the delivery of M2 freeway projects. As part of the project development
process, Caltrans is now requiring a broader range of alternatives to be studied to meet broader
state highway system needs and/or requirements which is different than the assumptions that went
into the development of the M2 freeway program. These considerations can expand project
footprint, change intent, add costs, and/or have scheduling impacts.

OCTA and Caltrans have made progress during the past year to reach consensus; however, there
are still a number of issues that remain a challenge. Staff will continue to work with Caltrans to
manage scope, schedule, and funding concerns.

Public Priority Analysis
Outreach Plan

To gauge the level of public support, a comprehensive public outreach plan was designed to elicit
direct feedback from a variety of stakeholders from April 2015 through September 2015. In
addition, outreach results were combined with results from the recently completed 2014 LRTP
public involvement program. Target audiences included government officials, community and
business leaders, transportation professionals, multicultural leaders and the general public. The
public was encouraged to contribute comments through a multi-facetted approach that included
an online questionnaire, roundtables, outreach meetings, letters, a public opinion survey, and
promotion on traditional and digital media.

Public Feedback

Outreach participants consistently echoed their support for M2. Many participants generally felt
that OCTA should continue to develop and expand multi-modal options that include everything
from transit services, to street and freeway improvements, and investments in active
transportation. In addition, participants articulated the need to consider how to utilize new and
emerging technologies to both enhance current services and maximize efficiency in construction.

Just as when Measure M2 was passed by nearly 70% of Orange County voters in 2006, the public
still supports the plan as approved. In addition, the priorities that have emerged from the Ten-
Year Review align with those that surfaced as part of the 2014 LRTP. Participants also
acknowledged that Measure M must have flexibility to accommodate future trends while
maintaining the balance of the M2 Plan and promise to the voters.

Conclusions

After completing the first comprehensive review of OCTA’s Measure M2 program and the
requirements listed in Ordinance No. 3 related to the M2 Ten-Year Review, no major external

9/30/2015 6



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

changes related to legislation, land use, travel and growth projections, project cost/revenue
projections or right-of-way and/or other constraints have been identified that would require
substantial changes to the M2 Plan as approved by the voters in 2006 and as amended November
23, 2013. The review also highlighted that M2 as a whole is supported by the public as approved
and that OCTA has made substantial progress in delivering the program as promised to the voters
with all elements initiated and a number of projects delivered.

In reviewing the financial capacity of the M2 program by category, the Transit category has been
identified as having delivery issues. Within the Transit category, there are six programs and
although the revenue within the category as a whole is sufficient to deliver all six programs, there
is a shortfall among the Transit program line items that should be addressed. These include
Project R (Metrolink operations); and Project U (fare stabilization for seniors and persons with
disabilities), which the forecast indicates will not have sufficient funding through the 30-year M2
horizon. Another program — Project T (Gateway to High Speed Rail), has been delivered and has
a remaining balance. With the completion of the one qualifying Gateway project through a
competitive call for projects, the Anaheim Regional Transportation Intermodal Center the
program in Project T is complete. The balance in Project T is sufficient to address the two transit
programs that show a funding shortfall during the 30-year timeframe.

Ordinance No. 3 spells out the process for plan amendments. Amendments within a category do
not require voter approval but require a two-thirds vote of the Taxpayer Oversight Committee
and a two-thirds vote of the OCTA Board of Directors as well as a public hearing and notification
process. Amendments to the Ordinance can be made at any time it is determined to be needed.
For a list of M2 Amendments to date see Appendix A.

9/30/2015 7



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

. Review Process

Purpose

In November 2006, Orange County voters approved the extension or renewal of Measure M, the
one-half cent transportation sales tax to fund a slate of projects and programs for another 30
years. The Planincluded strong taxpayer safeguards to ensure strict adherence to the limitations
of the use of Renewed Measure M (M2) sales tax revenues to deliver the projects and programs
outlined in the Plan. These safeguards include an annual independent audit and quarterly status
reports; ongoing monitoring and review of spending by an independent Taxpayer Oversight
Committee; voter approval for any major changes to the Plan; strong penalties for any misuse of
funds; a strict limit of no more than one percent for administrative salaries and benefits; an
annual update on the progress of the Plan; a triennial performance assessment; and a
comprehensive review at least every ten years to evaluate the performance of the Plan.

This report is a result of the analysis conducted to fulfill the requirement for the Orange County
Transportation Authority (OCTA) to conduct a comprehensive review of the work completed
through M2 at least every ten years. The Plan identified specific elements that must be included
in the Ten-Year Review including:

e Consideration of changes to local, state and federal transportation plans and policies;
e Changes in land use, travel and growth projections;

e Changes in project cost estimates and revenue projections;

e Right-of-way constraints and other project constraints;

e Level of public support for the Plan; and

e Progress of the Authority and jurisdictions in implementing the Plan.

The overarching purpose of the comprehensive review is to evaluate the performance of the Plan
while ensuring the intent of the Plan as approved by the voters is not compromised.

Background

Although M2 sales tax collection did not begin until April 1, 2011, the OCTA Board of Directors
adopted an Early Action Plan so that M2 project work could begin as soon as the authorizing
ordinance was effective - on November 8, 2006. As such, the Ten-Year Review is based on this
early start which assumes the review should be completed prior to November 7, 2016.

The first M2 Ten-Year Review is being completed in advance of the ten-year time frame in order
to capitalize on the complementary analyses recently conducted as part of the update to OCTA’s
Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP). OCTA is aligning these two efforts and using the recent
research and outreach performed through the LRTP process as a baseline for the M2 Ten-Year
comprehensive review.

9/30/2015 8



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

M2 includes a process for amending the ordinance and the Transportation Investment Plan at
any time to improve performance or account for any changes. In summary, a set process is
defined that spells out what is required and includes a public hearing, local jurisdictions’
notification, and a two thirds approval vote from both the Taxpayers Oversight Committee and
the OCTA Board of Directors. Amendments within a transportation category (the Freeway
Program, Streets and Roads Program or Transit Program) in the Plan can be made using this
process. An amendment that changes allocation among four major transportation categories
requires taking the amendment to the electorate.

As the review process was initiated, several important considerations were identified as
foundational to this M2 review. These considerations are the following;

e M1 success was centered on delivery of the voter-approved plan (Promises Made,
Promises Kept)

e M2 Investment Plan was based on market research, stakeholder input and approved by
~70 percent of Orange County voters

e M2 is a balanced plan which provides for capacity, preservation and sustainability

e M2-related actions must align with M2 transparency and accountability safeguards

e OCTAs currently in year five of a 30-year plan; it’s early to make wholesale changes

e M2 Early Action Plan and M2020 Plan enabled OCTA to mobilize all M2 projects and
programs from the start of the 30-year plan

Process

The Ten-Year Review kicked off in November 2014 with information on the process provided to
the OCTA Board of Directors. An update on the progress of the review, the planned schedule and
the following five objectives were presented to the Board of Directors in April 2015.

Objectives

1. Research and identify external policy and/or regulatory changes at the local, state, and
federal level, as well as changes in land use, travel, and growth projections that require
consideration.

2. Evaluate current project and program cost estimates and the financial capacity of the
sales tax revenue through 2041 to confirm Plan delivery.

3. Review M2 program and project elements to determine if there are performance issues
or constraints to the promised delivery.

4. ldentify OCTA and local jurisdictions progress in implementing the Plan.

5. Assess public and stakeholder support for the Plan.

9/30/2015 9



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

The review schedule included completing and presenting the final report to the Board in late
2015 with implementation of any findings planned for early 2016.

To complete the Ten-Year Review, OCTA engaged an internal team versed in delivering M2
programs and projects including Capital Programs, External Affairs, Finance and Administration,
Government Relations, Planning, and Transit Divisions. An internal task force was developed to
direct the comprehensive review effort, which included the following activities.

M2 Comprehensive Review Analysis

eResearch and analysis of local, state and federal government regulations and
legislation

Situation Revi fland t l and th cti
Analysis eview of land use, travel and growth projections
N
eEvaluation of revenue forecasts and assumptions, cash flow, and bonding
FlenleElE e Analysis of cost projections to deliver the M2 Plan (planning, capital and operating costs)
Analysis Y,
« Assessment of progress made by OCTA and jurisditions toward achieving the M2 Plan, including
work with partners such as Caltrans
Delivery eReview of all elements of the M2 Plan to determine performance issues or constraints to Plan
Analysis delivery including rail and bus transit, freeways, streets and roads, and environmental programs
N
eAscertainment of public and stakeholder support for and priorities within the Plan through
BHBrity contact with cities, committees, key stakeholders and public opinion surveys
J

Analysis

The following pages describe the findings from each of the four areas of analysis and an
evaluation summary of the findings. Recommendations based on these findings are included in
the accompanying staff report to the OCTA Board of Directors for discussion and consideration.

9/30/2015 10



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

I1l.  Situation Analysis: Reviewing the Changes Affecting Orange County’s
Transportation Systems

To address changes to Orange County’s transportation system, all transportation-related federal
and state legislation that was signed into law as well as state policy changes that have occurred
following the passage of M2 (2006 through 2014) was reviewed. The Ten-Year Review discusses
elements that have had or have the potential to affect M2.

Federal Legislation

On the Federal side, several laws were passed since 2006 which could have affected M2 projects.
While some legislation, such as the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA), provided
new one-time federal funding for transportation projects, the majority of federal legislation
related to the appropriation of federal funds for transportation projects and programs. For
example, the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21°t Century Act (MAP-21) was approved July 6,
2012, and funded federal transportation programs until September 30, 2014. It transferred $18.8
billion in general funds to maintain existing transportation funding levels. As part of MAP-21,
several components of OCTA’s project streamlining initiative — Breaking Down Barriers — were
included in the final bill. These additions included provisions related to contract efficiencies and
the streamlining of federal project and environmental review processes. Additionally, MAP-21
also included a new mandate to address high occupancy lane degradation which has triggered
new managed lane policies from the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans).
Subsequently, the Highway and Transportation Funding Act of 2014 provided a temporary
extension of MAP-21 transportation funding programs through May 31, 2015. The continued
debate on renewal of MAP-21 remains an issue due to the lack of certainty for long-term
transportation funding needs. Another example of federal legislation that affected M2 projects
is the Rail Safety Improvement Act of 2008, which requires the implementation of positive train
control systems by Class | railroad carriers on main lines by December 31, 2015.

Upon review, it was determined that none of the federal laws or regulations passed or issued
since the passage of M2 would prompt a recommendation to change the M2 program. Appendix
B provides a comprehensive list of federal bills potentially affecting M2 projects enacted since
2006.

State Legislation, Policies and Regulations

Since M2 was approved by voters in 2006, several state laws were enacted affecting
transportation funding including the addition of Proposition 1B (2006) which provided new one-
time funding. As a result of Prop 1B, OCTA was able to secure funds for projects which would
have otherwise been funded with M2, other local, state or federal funds. Conversely, when the
sale of Proposition 1B (Prop 1B) bonds was put on hold, having a local sales tax measure in place
provided OCTA with the resources to keep projects moving through the uncertainty. Once

9/30/2015 11



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Prop 1B was back on track, OCTA used these funds first and reprogrammed M2 funds to other
M2 projects within that category (i.e., transit, highway, streets and roads).!

With the flexibility built into the Measure M2 Ordinance and guidelines, OCTA has been able to
adapt to a reduction in sales tax revenues (discussed further in Chapter V) as a result of the 2008
Great Recession, take advantage of the funding-related legislative changes that have occurred to
date, and keep with changes in state policy while continuing to advance locally-prioritized M2
transportation projects.

State legislation has also been signed into law aimed at improving the linkage between land use
and transportation. Much of this effort results from the passage of AB 32 (Chapter 488, Statutes
of 2006), which developed the goal of reducing statewide greenhouse gas emissions to 1990
levels by 2020. This landmark legislation brought about the introduction and passage of specific
statutory requirements to achieve the statewide goal, including SB 375 (Chapter 728, Statutes of
2008), which requires Regional Transportation Plans to meet regional greenhouse gas (GHG)
emission reduction targets through the development of a Sustainable Communities Strategy
(SCS). Each SCS is to include a combination of strategies to better link transportation, housing
and land use planning, attempting to discourage an increase in vehicle miles traveled (VMT) or
induced vehicle travel. Additionally, SB 743 (Chapter 386, Statutes of 2014) eliminates the use
of Level of Service (LOS) in the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) when analyzing the
transportation impacts of a project, in favor of alternative metrics such as VMT or induced vehicle
travel, to encourage infill development and reduce GHG. While guidelines implementing SB 743
have yet to be finalized, these requirements could make it more difficult moving forward.

See Appendix C for a comprehensive list of state bills potentially affecting M2 projects enacted
since 2006.

Linking Transportation and Land Use

In response to SB 375, in April of 2012, the Southern California Association of Governments
(SCAG) adopted the 2012—-2035 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) which includes all of the M2
projects. The 2012 RTP included for the first time a Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS).
Orange County developed its own SCS, which was incorporated into the 2012 SCAG RTP/SCS,
showcasing existing projects focused on sustainability, as well as opportunities for future
transportation and land use projects and activities that promote sustainable communities. Along
with these opportunities come challenges.

It is important to note that OCTA does not have control over the location, type, or intensity of
land use development throughout Orange County. These decisions are under the purview of local
jurisdictions. Growth in population and employment are additional factors that are closely tied
to land use and over which OCTA has little influence. OCTA’s role is to coordinate an efficient
transportation system that provides improvements within the context of financial and

1SB 1266 (Chapter 25, Statutes of 2006) authorized the placement of Proposition 1B on the fall 2006 ballot, which
granted $19.925 billion in general obligation bonds for transportation improvements.

9/30/2015 12



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

environmental constraints and in response to land use and socioeconomic changes. However,
this greater transportation and land use linkage, supported by recent legislation, has required
OCTA and other local and regional organizations (e.g., the Orange County Council of
Governments and SCAG) to more closely coordinate transportation decisions with land use
decisions moving forward.

Implementing Sustainable Communities Strategies

To date, OCTA and local Orange County jurisdictions have responded to SB 375 by engaging in a
collective effort to link transportation and land uses. This effort includes a variety of progressive
measures undertaken by Orange County jurisdictions, agencies, and groups that lead to changes
in the use of automobiles and light duty trucks, resulting in reductions in GHG. The scope of
current and planned strategies is broad and encompasses significant investment by both the
public and private sectors to implement. Strategies either currently being implemented, or that
have potential for future implementation, include the following:

e Using land in ways that make developments more compact and better links jobs, housing
and major activity centers.

e Protecting natural habitats and resource areas.

e Implementing a transportation network of public transit, managed lanes and highways,
local streets, bikeways, and walkways built and maintained with available funds.

e Managing demand on the transportation system (TDM) in ways that reduce or eliminate
traffic congestion during peak periods of demand.

e Managing the transportation system (TSM) through measures that maximize the
efficiency of the transportation network such as signal synchronization.

It is anticipated that these types of efforts will continue to be pursued and implemented in
Orange County as the local contribution to regional strategies to achieve the goals of SB 375.

Specifically for M2, the Plan as a whole includes elements that support and enhance regional
sustainable communities strategies in Orange County. M2 provides expanded transit services and
more efficient street and highway operations, preserves open space through the environmental
mitigation program, and provides supplemental funding for water quality improvements. Brief
summaries of the specific programs are listed below.

v' Projects A through N — freeway improvements and freeway service patrol to provide
emission reductions through congestion relief

v" Projects O and P —signal synchronization and street improvements that provide emission
reductions through congestion relief and allow for bike and pedestrian project elements

v" Project Q - local funding for city selected transportation projects that provides for
preservation of the streets and roads system and includes bike, pedestrian, water quality,
and transit enhancements as eligible expenditures

9/30/2015 13



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

v" Project R — expanded Metrolink train capacity including improvements to stations and
parking to improve transit reliability and convenience and reduce reliance on highways
while also supporting potential transit oriented development

v' Project S — transit extensions to improve access between Metrolink stations and
residential, and employment centers, and provide an alternative to driving

v Project T — station improvements to connect to planned future high-speed rail services

v Project U — sustain mobility choices for seniors and persons with disabilities and provides
an alternative to driving

v' Project V — community based circulators to complement regional transit services with
local communities and provides an alternative to driving

v' Project W — transit stop improvements to support transfers between major bus lines

v' Project X — water quality improvement programs/projects to meet federal Clean Water
Act standards for urban runoff, and augment required mitigations

v' Freeway Mitigation Program — natural resource protection strategy to provide for more
comprehensive mitigation of environmental impacts from M2 freeway improvements

State Department of Transportation’s Managed Lane Policy

On May 29, 2015, Caltrans signed a Directive requiring each of their districts that currently
operates, or expects to operate, managed lanes within the next 20 years to prepare a Managed
Lanes System Plan (MLSP). The MLSP must include each managed lane facility that is currently in
operation or planned for operation within 20 years. Given that Orange County has a managed
lanes system, Orange County’s District 12 must prepare an MLSP. Managed lanes are defined as:
a high-occupancy vehicle (HOV) lane; a high-occupancy/toll (HOT) lane; or an express toll lane
(ETL) where all vehicles must pay a toll to access this lane.

While the Directive requires each District to work with the regional transportation agency (in
Orange County’s case, OCTA) and other stakeholders, it moves Caltrans into a more direct and
integral role in the planning, design and operation of managed lanes.

Historically, Caltrans was responsible for construction, operation and maintenance of the
network of state highways that traverse Orange County. In the 1980s and 1990’s, as state
transportation funding became constrained, several counties, including Orange County, passed
voter-approved sales taxes to fund transportation projects that were local priorities. In Orange
County, this sales tax funding was designated for a range of projects including transit, highways,
arterials, and environmental sustainability. Specifically for highways, OCTA as the administrator
of Measure M and M2, took on the responsibility of conducting and funding highway design and
construction — previously a state responsibility. With design and construction funded locally, the

9/30/2015 14



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

highway system was able to keep pace with growth while being modernized. At the same time,
the state was able to focus its resources towards maintenance and operation of the system.

As the highway system is expanding through local investment, the state’s cost to maintain the
expanded network over time is also increasing. On one hand, the added capacity increases
Caltrans’ long term maintenance needs. On the other hand, the local investments to expand and
rebuild state highway facilities can reduce the State’s operations and maintenance burden as the
facilities are upgraded to current standards. The heightened attention to maintenance costs has
spurred a closer look by the state at planned expansions and questions about how they will fund
increased maintenance costs. In response to this, there are legislative proposals to address
highway maintenance funding needs.

Additionally, there is a recognition by state and local agencies that “We can’t build our way out
of traffic congestion.” Operationally, maintaining mobility requires maximizing the throughput
within the infrastructure footprint currently on the ground, as well as for planned facility
expansions. For the highway system, this translates to the implementation and use of managed
lanes (e.g., High Occupancy Vehicle lanes) to facilitate increased throughput through transit and
carpooling.

Implementing and Operating Managed Lanes in Orange County

As noted, Orange County’s highway system includes managed lanes. In fact, Orange County was
a leader in developing a managed lane system, and as a result, Orange County has one of the
most extensive managed lane systems, including direct connectors, in the State. Not including
managed lanes currently in construction in south Orange County, 88 percent of Orange County’s
freeway system has managed lanes. Future proposed expansion of highways also includes
managed lanes which are designed within the parameters of the M2 transportation improvement
plan and subject to local approval processes.

In recent years, in response to the gradual degradation of the performance of Orange County’s
managed lanes, Caltrans has suggested a range of actions relating to the operation of existing
managed lanes, as well as to the design of expanded and new managed lanes. Implementing any
of the actions suggested by the state would require local approval, as well as local funding, since
the state currently does not have funds designated, nor a source of future funding, to complete
such projects. Caltrans has encouraged OCTA to use M2 funds to modify managed lane
construction and/or operations, which may not be consistent with the improvements outlined in
M2 and the desire of the Orange County community.

The challenge of addressing competing priorities has not yet been resolved. M2 includes
managed lane projects as well as general purpose lane projects. For example, M2 includes the
addition of a managed lane on Interstate 5 between Pico Avenue and Pacific Coast Highway, a
second managed lane between Alicia Parkway and El Toro Road in south Orange County and
between State Route 55 and State Route 57 in central Orange County. OCTA is working with
Caltrans to resolve conflicts with other projects on a case by case basis. An example is the
Interstate 405 project between Interstate 605 and State Route 73 where managed lanes are an

9/30/2015 15



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

“additive” project to the general purpose lane (Project K) and are funded outside of M2. As
highway projects continue to unfold and agency roles evolve, a process is needed to study M2
projects along with Caltrans’ position to make informed decisions. OCTA will work to meet state
goals while also fulfilling M2 commitments to voters and maintaining mobility for Orange County
travelers. Caltrans and OCTA will need to partner on additional improvements or strategies
desired, not taking away from or in conflict with M2, but in addition to the M2 Plan and M2
funding.

Active Transportation

Countywide, there has been greater interest in nonmotorized transportation (bicycling and
walking) also called active transportation. OCTA is responding by expanding and prioritizing
active transportation projects as integral elements of the county’s transportation system. OCTA
is coordinating regional bikeway planning efforts by supporting local jurisdictions’ efforts to seek
state and regional funding to bring projects to fruition, as well as providing a local funding source
for Orange County projects. Additionally, design of freeway projects takes into consideration the
need for bike lanes.

Since the passage of M2 and with the increased interest in active transportation, OCTA has
created a new department within the agency called Transit and Non-Motorized Planning along
with adding a position, Active Transportation Coordinator whose responsibilities are solely to
work with local jurisdictions and the public to support active transportation programs. OCTA
worked with state and regional partners (SCAG, Caltrans and the California Transportation
Commission or CTC) to ensure funding for Orange County projects. California is now providing
$120 million in active transportation funding annually. At least $4 million of this is carved out for
Orange County through the SCAG regional project selection. SCAG also offers sustainability
program grants to agencies which support planning, education and outreach projects, including
bicycle and pedestrian planning projects. Additionally, the OCTA Board of Directors has set aside
10 percent of the annual Congestion Management and Air Quality Improvement funds for bicycle
projects which provides another approximately $4 million per year for Orange County projects.

Linking active transportation with future rail service, OCTA completed the Metrolink Station
Nonmotorized Accessibility Strategy in June 2013, which builds upon other efforts by OCTA and
local cities to expand transportation choices. The Nonmotorized Accessibility Strategy serves as
a reference for local cities to improve safety, address existing barriers, and increase the number
of Metrolink riders who walk or bicycle to and from the stations through changes to the physical
environment. Metrolink also added a bike car for commuters who choose to take a bike on the
train. This provides commuters with a transportation option for the “first and last mile” when
using Metrolink.

The M2 ordinance allows for active transportation improvements through M2 funding provided
to the cities. Cities can use their local fair share funding for these purposes. Additionally, when
cities apply for competitive funding for street widening projects, nonmotorized elements are
eligible components of the overall project. As an incentive and in response to the increased

9/30/2015 16



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

interest in active transportation projects, OCTA applies extra points to cities competing for
funding when they include active transportation project elements in their application.

Complete Streets

The 2008 passage of The California Complete Streets Act requires local jurisdictions, when making
substantive changes to their respective, general plan circulation elements, to plan for a balanced,
multimodal transportation network that meets the needs of all. In response, OCTA updated the
Master Plan of Arterial Highways (MPAH) Guidance document in 2010 to include new Board
policy, stating that “OCTA will encourage all jurisdictions to consider and evaluate all mobility
needs when requesting modifications to the MPAH.” In 2012, the MPAH Guidance document was
updated again, this time providing for a Complete Streets friendly MPAH classification known as
the Divided Collector. The Divided Collector classification allows jurisdictions to reclassify
secondary (four-lane, undivided arterials) to two-lane divided arterials, which allows jurisdictions
to include bike and pedestrian improvements, where appropriate, in right-of-way that was
previously planned and/or allocated for vehicles. The 2012 update to the MPAH Guidance
document also updated MPAH typical cross sections to include Complete Streets components.

Through the MPAH amendment processes, OCTA has worked with jurisdictions to develop
guidelines where cities have expressed interest in developing nonmotorized transportation
improvements. These guidelines are a tool to help transportation planners and engineers
throughout Orange County to design roadways in their cities to have safe access for all users,
regardless of mode of transportation. An example is the most recent development of the Divided
Collector designation within the MPAH. A number of these Divided Collectors have been
implemented throughout the county.

Each year, local jurisdictions must demonstrate their compliance with M2 requirements in order
to be eligible to receive M2 Local Fair Share dollars. Beginning this year, OCTA will inquire of cities
and the County of Orange how they are working toward the ongoing consideration and
incorporation of active transportation and Complete Streets in their jurisdiction.

Changes in Housing, Population and Employment

OCTA updates its Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) every four years, assessing the growth
patterns of Orange County’s population, employment and housing. Between the 2006 and 2014
Plan updates, significant changes are evident in the overall numbers of base year and project
population, employment and housing units.2

The county’s population grew much slower than originally projected in 2006. The 2006 LRTP
estimated Orange County’s population would grow to 3.3 million by 2010, reaching 3.5 million

2t is important to keep in mind that several transportation improvements were completed between the base
years of each document (2000 and 2010).

9/30/2015 17



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

by 2020 and 3.55 by 2030. However, the 2014 LRTP reported a 2010 Orange County population
of just over 3 million, with projections for future population growth much lower than that
projected in 2006 — reaching 3.4 million by 2035.

Similarly, the growth in employment and housing did not occur as predicted in 2006, due in large
part to the 2008 Great Recession from which the county is still recovering. While the 2006 LRTP
projected employment would grow rapidly to 1.75 million jobs in 2010 and 1.92 million jobs by
2030, the 2014 LRTP showed only 1.5 million jobs as of 2010, with projected growth to 1.78
million by 2035. On the housing side, the 2006 LRTP projected slow but steady growth from 1.07
million housing units in 2010 to 1.12 million units in 2030. However, according to the 2014 LRTP,
the actual housing unit count was under one million units as of 2010, with projected growth to
slightly over 1.1 million housing units by 2035.

The current projections for Orange County’s population, employment and housing reflect the
impact of the 2008 Great Recession, with a moderated outlook for growth in the future that
accounts for recovery of lost employment (Figure 1).

Figure 1: Long Range Transportation Plan Demographic Projections, 2006 and 2014

Population

Employment (Jobs)

Housing Units

o

0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5 4

In Millions

W 2006 LRTP 2030 Projections W 2014 LRTP 2035 Projections

Source: OCP-2004 and OCP-2010 Modlified (prepared by the Center for Demographic Research at
California State University, Fullerton)

When looking at where population and housing growth and their related travel impacts have
occurred and are expected to occur in the future, the 2006 and 2014 LRTPs are more closely
aligned (Figures 2 and 3). Similar to the 2006 Plan, the 2014 LRTP shows population growth
around the Great Park in Irvine and Rancho Mission Viejo Planned Community (Figure 3). The
2014 Plan has additional areas with approved housing entitlements for large residential
developments (e.g., La Floresta and Canyon Crest in Brea, the Platinum Triangle in the City of
Anaheim, and the East Orange planned community in the City of Orange and unincorporated
County), as well as redevelopment in central and north Orange County.

9/30/2015 18



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Based on the updated 2014 LRTP, nearly one-third of the housing units projected to be built
between 2010 and 2035 are planned on currently undeveloped land. The remaining approximate
two thirds of projected housing units will be infill or redevelopment projects. There will be
pockets of increasing housing densification, most notably in the Platinum Triangle and East
Orange communities, as well as the unincorporated South County community of Rancho Mission
Viejo.

For employment, while some of the growth projected in the 2006 LRTP already appears in the
2014 LRTP base year, there is not a significant shift in the location of anticipated future job
growth, which is projected to occur primarily in the cities of Irvine, Anaheim, and Tustin, all of
which expand on existing employment centers and are concentrated along major transportation
corridors (Figures 4 and 5).

9/30/2015 19



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Figure 2: 2030 Projected Population Density, 2006 Long-Range Transportation Plan

OCTA Long-Range Transportation Plan

ORANGE COUNTY PROJECTIONS

2030 Orange County Population Density

Date: July 2005
Source: Orange County Projections 2004

Miles

0

2

a

8

12

9/30/2015

Portions of this map copyrighted by Thomas Bros Maps and reproduced with permission.

20




MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Figure 3: 2035 Projected Population Density, 2014 Long-Range Transportation Plan

e N SAN
BERNARDINO
L' BREA
LOS ANGELES
R YORBA LINDA
¥ RIVERSIDE
LOS
ALAMITOS
SEAL BEACH
ORANGE
@
LAKE FOREST 281
.
RANCHO
SANTA
NEWPORT BEACH MARGARITA
73 LAGUNA WOODS MISSION VIEJO
LAGUNA HILLS
ALISOVIEJO
LAGUNA
BEACH 7
v
LAGUNA NIGUEL '
SAN JUAN
CAPISTRANO
DANA
POINT
SAN CLEMENTE

2035 Population

Ml Population Density*
* Darker colors indicate greater
number of persons per square mile S f N

Source: OCP-2010 Modified 3

DIEGO
Q=
—
Miles
January 3. 2013 Portions of this map copyrighted by Thomas Bros Maps and reproduced with permission

9/30/2015

21



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Figure 4: 2030 Projected Employment Density, 2006 Long-Range Transportation Plan

OCTA Long-Range Transportation Plan ORANGE COUNTY PROJECTIONS

2030 Orange County Employment Density

Date: JTuly 2005 4
Source: Orange County Projections 2004 i

1]

Miles

0 2 4 8 12

Portions of this map copyrighted by Thomas Bros Maps and reproduced with permission.

9/30/2015

LAPL.

22



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Figure 5: 2035 Projected Employment Density, 2014 Long-Range Transportation Plan

LOS ANGELES

L

2035 Employment
- Employment Density*

* Darker colors indicate greater
number of jobs per square mile

Source: OCP-2010 Modified

@ ] 2 4
J L Miles

SAN

BERNARDINO

RIVERSIDE

June 11, 2013

9/30/2015

Portions of this map copyrighted by Thomas Bros Maps and reproduced with permission

23



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Changes in Freeway Congestion

There are also similarities between the 2006 and 2014 long-range plans when considering
freeway congestion between the base and horizon years. Common problem areas identified by
both documents are the entire stretch of the I-5 and 1-405 freeways; SR-55 between I-5 and
SR-91; and SR-91 from SR-55 to the Riverside County line (Figure 6). While SR-22 and SR-57 also
stand out as problem areas in the 2006 LRTP, congestion on these freeways shows a smaller
percent increase over the base year in the 2014 LRTP likely due to additional HOV and general
purpose lanes on the SR-22, and early M2 SR-57 improvement projects, as well as lower
population and employment forecasts.

9/30/2015 24



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Figure 6: 2035 Baseline Scenario AM Peak Freeway Congestion Levels, 2014 Long Range

Transportation Plan

L=l = YORBALINSA
FLALERTON 57 )

PLACENTIA

o ) 9' ’ﬁ
LA
FALMA ™
CYPRESS ViLLA
PARK @
. LaS STANTON S S
SEB AAMITOS ORANGE 5
‘
tlAN . GARDEN GROVE
\ 22
SEAL
BEACH w2y WESTMINSTER \
\\
SANTA ANA
FOUNTAIN
VALLEY
HUNTINGTON .
BEAGH ~ @
£
RVINE
COSTAMES
LAKE
FOREST

&

RANCHD
SANTA
NEWPORT - MSSION el
BEACH AGUNA) O
E (73] LAGUNAWOODS QED
LAGURA
ALISO  HILLS
VIEK
LAGUNA
HEACH
LAGUNA
NIGUEL
2036 Bascline AM Peak Freeway SAN JUAN
Congestion Levels CAPISTRAND
— Severely Congested DANA
300 et nat
w—— Consistently Congested POINF i bt
Moderately Congested (L;S,,':g_q; i
we Not Congested
Toll Roads
Source: OCTA
=0 25 §
(D) r————
Mo

oty 28 208 Paryons of D map Copynghied by Thomas INOs NApS N0 SEoo.chd Wil farmistion

9/30/2015

25



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

While the amount of delay that commuters experience on Orange County freeways varies from
year-to-year, in 2013, commuter delay due to freeway congestion (speeds less than 60 mph) was
roughly the same as in 2005 — at about fifteen hours per commuter per year.

ANNUAL HOURS OF DELAY PER CAPITA AND/OR COMMUTER AT SPEEDS OF LESS THAN 60 MILES
PER HOUR ON FREEWAYS IN ORANGE COUNTY: 2005-2013

W Total (Al Hours) W Afternoon Peak M Morning Peak W Offpeak

204

-
bl

/\/\/
—_— -

.--"""'——'_-_

Hours per Capita and/or Commuter
& 3

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2om 2012 2013
MNote: Peak hour delay is calculated by commuter; offpeak delay is calculated for the entire population. The total number of hours of delay is a
combination of per capita and per commuter hours of delay. *“Commuter” is defined as persons commuting to work in personal cars, trucks or vans.

Sources: Caltrans, Performance Measuremeant System (hitp://pems. dot.ca.gov/); U.S. Census Bureau, Population Estimates Program; U.S. Census
Burgau, American Community Survey, 1-Year Estimates (Table B08134)

Note: “Commuter” is defined as persons commuting to work in personal cars, trucks or vans.

Sources: Caltrans Performance Measurement System and U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 1-Year
Estimates

The M2 Review did not reveal significant shifts in demographics or land use patterns. While

growth in population, employment and housing has slowed, the general location and pattern of
growth is similar to what was initially projected as part of the M2 Plan process.

9/30/2015 26



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

IV.  Financial Analysis: Evaluating OCTA’s Capacity to Complete Measure
M2 Commitments

The financial capacity of the M2 Program to meet the commitments made to the residents of
Orange County was analyzed in the development of OCTA’s Comprehensive Business Plan and
then again for the M2 Ten-Year Review. Revenue and expenditure assumptions were analyzed
at the project and mode level to ensure adequate financial capacity to deliver the M2 Program.
The analysis has shown that despite the significant impact of the 2008 Great Recession to
forecasted M2 sales tax revenue, the sales tax generated for the M2 Program is anticipated to be
sufficient to meet the commitments made to Orange County voters assuming external funds will
continue to be available and costs are tightly managed.

When M2 was renewed in November 2006, sales tax revenue forecasts during the life of the M2
Program were estimated to be $24.3 billion. As a result of the 2008 Great Recession, the sales
tax revenue forecasts for the M2 Program hit a low of $13.7 billion in 2010 which represented a
44 percent decrease in forecasted revenue. Since the 2008 Great Recession, while sales tax
revenue has grown and current sales tax forecasts project that the M2 Program will receive $15.7
billion in sales tax revenue during the life of the program, it is 36 percent less that originally
anticipated. The reduction in revenue impacts projects or programs within the M2 Plan that have
set scopes or set commitments which include, the freeway program of projects (A-M) and the
Fare Stabilization program (part of Project U). The $15.7 billion will be used to support all M2
efforts with most expenditures coming from the Freeway, Streets & Roads, and Transit
categories. It is important to note that when the M2 Plan was created, it was based on being
self-funded and did not rely on external funding. As a result of the recession, the M2 Plan is still
deliverable, but — particularly in the freeway program — capitalizing on external funding and
controlling costs are an important component of delivery.

Freeways

The freeway category receives 43 percent of net M2 sales tax revenue. Original sales tax revenue
forecasts estimated that the freeway category would receive $9.7 billion in revenue during the
life of M2. Current sales tax estimates put that number closer to $6.3 billion, which is $3.4 billion
less than original projections. Also included in the freeway category is the Freeway
Environmental Mitigation Program (FMP) which provides programmatic mitigation in exchange
for streamlined project approvals and greater certainty in the delivery of all M2 freeway projects.
This program receives 5 percent of the freeway program revenues which is approximately $315
million. Unlike freeway projects that have set scopes, the FMP can be scaled to match available
revenue.

OCTA took several steps during the 2008 Great Recession in order to mitigate the impact of the
loss in sales tax revenue to the list of freeway projects. In order to take advantage of low
construction bids and a low interest rate environment, OCTA advanced freeway projects. This
effort allowed OCTA to save millions in construction and escalation costs and to receive a

9/30/2015 27



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

substantial amount of external funding, which mitigated the loss in sales tax revenue. It also
allowed OCTA to deliver projects earlier for taxpayers and create jobs during a period of high
unemployment.

Going forward, the freeway category represents the largest area of risk for the M2 Program. All
freeway projects within the M2 freeway category are well defined, with set scopes and need to
be completed despite the substantial decrease in forecasted sales tax revenue. OCTA has
historically been successful in obtaining external funding to maximize the use of M2 funds. The
plan going forward will be to continue to seek external funding. In addition, though the preferred
method of funding for the M2 Program is pay-as-you-go, OCTA may continue the use of debt
financing to advance freeway projects in order to take advantage of low construction bids, avoid
inflationary risk and/or secure external funding. This approach proved beneficial during the life
of M1 and also the early stages of M2 to date. Based on current revenue and expenditure
assumptions OCTA anticipates being able to deliver all freeway projects included in the M2
Program.

Streets and Roads

The streets and roads category receives 32% of net M2 sales tax revenue. Original sales tax
revenue forecasts estimated that the streets and roads category would receive $7.2 billion in
revenue during the life of M2. Current sales tax revenue forecasts put that number closer to $4.7
billion, which is $2.5 billion less than original projections. Despite the decrease in forecasted
revenue, OCTA has been able to continue to issue calls-for-projects for both the Regional Capacity
and Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Programs, and has leveraged external funding to fund
the majority of the OC Bridges Program. In addition, 18 percent of net M2 revenue continues to
be sent to local jurisdictions to fund the Local Fair Share Program. Unlike the freeway program
of projects, which has a specific set of projects defined in the M2 Ordinance, expenditures for
the streets and roads category can be scaled to match available revenue. As a result, going
forward, OCTA plans to continue to issue calls-for-projects for the Regional Capacity and Regional
Traffic Signal Synchronization Programs, as well as fund the Local Fair Share Program as outlined
in the M2 Ordinance based on available M2 revenue.

Environmental Clean Up

The Environmental Clean Up program receives two percent of gross M2 sales tax
revenue. Original sales tax revenue forecasts estimated that the program would receive $485.9
million in revenue during the life of M2. Current sales tax revenue forecasts put that number
closer to $315.2 million, which is $170.7 million (or 35%) less than original projections. Similar to
the streets and roads category, expenditures within the Environmental Clean Up program can be
scaled to match available revenue. As a result, expenditures will be scaled to match available
revenues defined by the M2 Ordinance.

9/30/2015 28



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Transit

The transit category receives 25 percent of net M2 sales tax revenue. Original sales tax revenue
forecasts estimated that the transit category would receive $5.7 billion in revenue during the life
of M2. The current sales tax revenue forecasts put that number closer to $3.7 billion, which is
$2.0 billion less than original projections. Similar to the streets and roads category, expenditures
within the transit category can generally be scaled to match available revenue. As a result,
expenditures supporting programs such as High Frequency Metrolink Service, Transit Extensions
to Metrolink, Metrolink Gateways, Senior Mobility Program, Senior Non-Emergency Medical
Transportation Program, Community Based Transit Circulators and Safe Transit Stops will be
scaled to match available revenues or will be funded based on a formula defined by the M2
Ordinance.

The only transit program that cannot be scaled to the available revenue is the Fare Stabilization
Program under Project U. The M2 Ordinance states clearly that one percent of net revenues will
be dedicated to provide fare discounts for seniors and persons with disabilities. The M2
Ordinance also provides specific guidance that fares will be stabilized “in an amount equal to the
percentage of partial funding of fares for seniors and persons with disabilities as of the effective
date of the ordinance.” As a result of the reduction in projected collections, one percent of the
net revenues is not sufficient to fund the requirements outlined in the M2 Ordinance.

Shortfall and Need

The original projections estimated that $232 million would be collected for the Fare Stabilization
program. Current projections estimate that $147 million will be generated. Based on current
ridership projections, the need to fulfill the requirement outlined in the M2 Ordinance is $221
million, leaving a projected shortfall of $74 million.

The Board has already taken one step to begin to fill this shortfall. On February 14, 2011, the
Board approved M2 Project U Funding and Policy Guidelines. At that time, a potential shortfall
in the Fare Stabilization Program was already identified due to the drop in M2 sales tax
collections. As a result, the Board directed staff to utilize unallocated funds from the Senior
Mobility Program (SMP), also a Project U Program, to help backfill the shortfall in the Fare
Stabilization Program. During the 30-year period of M2, this provides approximately $5 million
to the Fare Stabilization Program, leaving a projected shortfall of approximately $69 million.

Further, future additional service as part of the Metrolink Service Expansion (Project R), has been
scaled to correspond with available revenue, which results in a limited ability to provide more
frequent service. This program has also been impacted by difficult negotiations with Burlington
Northern Santa Fe, which owns portions of the railroad tracks, and new federal and state
requirements such as positive train control and clean fuel locomotives. Providing additional
funds to this program would allow the service to grow to meet future demand and also support
sustainability goals by providing an attractive option for commuters using the freeway.

9/30/2015 29



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Options

Multiple options for covering the shortfall in Project U have been analyzed: raising the age
requirement for those that would receive the subsidy, having the shortfall covered by traditional
bus operating funds, discontinuing the program once funds were exhausted, which is projected
to be in FY 2035-36, or amending the M2 Ordinance to decrease the percentage of fares that
could be subsidized. Ultimately, each of these alternatives requires a change in the promise to
the voters or unduly burdens the bus operations program. Staff has been providing regular
updates to the Board on this issue since 2011 and most recently last month to the Finance and
Administration Committee. The Board directed staff to look for other available M2 transit funds
and provide a recommendation as part of the Ten-Year Review. Options for Project R (Metrolink
Service Expansion) include limiting service growth to only the amount that is available based on
available revenue or a second option is to use other available M2 transit funds to allow service
to grow to meet demand. Staff believes that as with Project U, funding the shortfall with available
M2 transit funds is the preferred option.

Recommended Solution

Within the M2 Plan, all projects and programs are moving forward. Not including individual
freeway projects, the transit category is the only category that has a program that staff believes
is complete. According to the M2 Ordinance, Project T is to be utilized for converting Metrolink
Station(s) to Regional Gateways that connect Orange County with High-Speed rail systems. OCTA
has contributed Project T funds for the construction of the Anaheim Regional Transportation
Intermodal Center (ARTIC) which is already complete and operational. This station is designed
to be the southern terminus for the planned high-speed rail system in California. Since no other
stations in Orange County are currently on the planned route, and no other high speed rail
systems have moved forward in the planning stages, and given the defined shortfall on Projects U
and R in the transit category, remaining funds in Project T can be reallocated to other M2 Transit
line items subject to provisions of the ordinance. It is anticipated that $219 million will be
available in Project T.

As a result of this review, it is recommended that $69 million be transferred from Project T to
Project U to cover the shortfall in the Fare Stabilization program. The balance of the Project T
funds are recommended to be transferred to Project R, which funds the ongoing operation of
Metrolink service in Orange County. It is important to note that if a need arises in the future to
convert a Metrolink Station to a Regional Gateway that connects with High Speed Rail, the first
look for funding should be within the High Speed Rail Plan. If this is not available and
improvements are justifiable, funding could be available out of Project R with Board of Directors
approval.

9/30/2015 30



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

V. Project Delivery Analysis: Identifying Progress and Project
Constraints

Shortly after Measure M was renewed, the 2008 Great Recession hit Orange County along with
the rest of the nation. The long-term impact of the recession is evident in less than anticipated
sales tax revenues for M2. The shortfall in forecasted revenues will likely never be recovered.
However, despite the recession, looking back at the nine-plus years since residents voted to
renew the Measure M sales tax, much has been accomplished.

Fortunately, OCTA was poised with an early action plan which initiated projects through debt
financing prior to revenue collection which didn’t begin until 2011. This provided “shelf ready”
projects that could begin as soon as the M2 Ordinance was effective in April 2011. When the
State provided a one-time infusion of transportation bond revenue through Proposition 1B and
the federal government provided infrastructure funding through the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act of 2009, OCTA was able to capture significant external funding that helped
back fill the gap. During the past nine years, OCTA has been successful in bringing more than
$600 million of state and federal funding to Orange County to supplement M2 funding for
transportation improvement projects. Also significant is that when these projects were put to bid
in the recessionary economy, bids consistently came in under estimated budgets, resulting in
overall cost-savings which helped to ameliorate the loss in sales tax revenue.

Early Action Plan and M2020

Subsequent to the approval of M2 in 2006, the OCTA Board of Directors approved an Early Action
Plan (EAP) in 2007 to advance the implementation of M2. The EAP provided staff with a five-year
implementation plan through 2012. Nearing the completion of the EAP (with all of the projects
and program identified either initiated or completed), on February 27, 2012, a M2 board
workshop took place. At the workshop it was discussed that, despite the economic downturn and
resulting decrease in sales tax revenues, OCTA could still deliver the entire M2 Program as
promised to the voters by leveraging state and federal funds. In addition, the agency could
expedite delivery to further capitalize on competitive construction costs and deliver mobility
benefits years earlier than originally planned. At the workshop, options were presented to the
Board for delivering the freeway program, which included M2 bonding. This discussion led to the
development and Board approval of the M2020 Plan.

On September 10, 2012 the Board adopted the M2020 Plan, which includes 14 objectives to be
completed by the year 2020. This M2020 Plan outlines the projects and programs for all
categories that can be delivered on an expedited schedule between 2013 and the year 2020 along
with anticipated schedules and major milestones. The M2020 Plan provides delivery guidance on
a portion of the overall M2 Transportation Investment Plan. Staff is committed to the
implementation of the M2020 Plan through 2020 and ties it directly to overall M2 delivery. That
blueprint commits to meeting 14 objectives in the eight-year period (2012 to 2020) which
included delivery commitments for all elements of the M2 Plan.

9/30/2015 31



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

More than S5 billion (external and M2 funds) in transportation improvements promised to the
voters in M2 are planned to be completed or under construction by 2020 as part of the M2020
Plan. This includes $3 billion to deliver 14 freeway projects, $36 million to environmentally clear
the nine remaining freeway projects, $1.2 billion for streets and roads, $1 billion for transit, and
$58 million for environmental programs. In addition, the groundwork will be laid for another
$1.4 billion in freeway improvements by completing the environmental clearance on remaining
M2 freeway projects, making them ‘shelf ready’ in the event additional federal, state, or local
funding becomes available.

M2 Progress and Constraints

With M2 sales tax revenue collection beginning on April 1, 2011, OCTA has already been able to
deliver a number of projects. Every program element listed in the M2 Plan, A-X including the
Freeway Mitigation Program has been initiated. In the freeway category, six projects are already
complete and six more are currently in construction. In the streets and roads category, more
than $1 billion has been allocated to local jurisdictions to repair, improve, and widen Orange
County’s streets and roads to make them more efficient. This includes $634 million for OC Bridges
which includes seven grade separation projects to separate rail and car traffic (two of which are
complete and the other five are in construction). In the transit category nearly $1 billion has
been invested or committed to improve transit services and provide more transit options for
commuters.

The following tables summarize the progress and constraints made within the various M2
categories, as of August 1, 2015. Progress was determined by comparing the current status of
projects and programs to what was stated in the Transportation Investment Plan approved by
the voters. In addition, risks of, or constraints to, delivery were documented.

For schedule information on M2 capital projects see pages 40-41, for more detailed information
on project descriptions, current status and constraints is provided in Appendix D.

9/30/2015 32



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

FREEWAYS PROGRESS

Overall, more than $734 million promised freeway improvements have been delivered or are under
construction. More than $1.93 billion promised freeway improvements are currently in design, and
more than $1.78 billion promised freeway improvements are in the environmental clearance process.
The remaining projects, totaling $875 million (complete project cost), are planned to be cleared
environmentally within the next five years. This includes M2 funding as well as external funding.

Opened e SR-22 Access Improvements

(six segments) e SR-57 NB general purpose lane (three segments) from Katella to
Lincoln and Orangethorpe to Lambert

e SR-91 general purpose lanes between SR-55 and SR-241

e SR-91 EB from SR-241 to County Line

In Construction e |-5/Ortega Interchange
(six segments) e |-5 HOV lanes between Avenida Pico and San Juan Creek Road (three
segments)

e SR-91 WB general purpose lane from I-5 to SR-57
e SR-91 WB general purpose lane Tustin to SR-55

In Design e |-5HQV lane addition and general purpose lanes between SR-73 and
(five segments) El Toro Interchange (three segments)

e |-5 HOV lanes between SR-55 to SR-57

e |-405 general purpose lane between SR-73 to the I-605 (M2 portion)

In Environmental e |-5,1-405 to SR-55
(five segments) Four e |-405, SR-133 to SR-55
underway with one ready | ¢ SR-55, |-405 to I-5
to move into Design e SR-91, SR-55 to SR-57

e SR-91 general purpose lane between SR-241 to Riverside County Line
(document complete)

PSR/PDS e |-5/El Toro Interchange (document complete)

All Complete e [-605/Katella Interchange (document complete)

(five segments) Ready to | @  SR-55, I-5 to SR-91 (document complete)

move into Environmental | ¢  SR-57, NB Orangewood to Katella (document complete)
e SR-57, NB Lambert to County Line (document complete)

FREEWAY CONSTRAINTS

Going forward, the freeway category represents the largest area of risk for the M2 Program. All
freeway projects are well defined with set scopes, and need to be completed despite decreased sales
tax revenue. OCTA has been successful in obtaining external funding to maximize the use of M2 funds,
and will continue to seek external funds to ensure delivery. To help facilitate implementation, the
original 13 freeway projects listed in the M2 Plan have been broken down into 27 segments to date.
Seventeen of the 27 segments have no issues or constraints identified at this time. (Six are complete,
six are progressing in construction, another two are in design, and three are ready to move into
environmental, which total seventeen). The remaining seven projects have one or more constraint.
Constraints center on requests by Caltrans to make modifications to revise traffic studies or study
options that are beyond the M2 proposed improvements. Additionally, Caltrans’ limited resources to
perform right-of-way necessary for projects in design has also slowed progress. Although not a
constraint, the 1-405 project is a very large project and one that requires an effort to manage the
improvements. Finally, efforts to address degradation and managed lanes has the potential to impact
scope and, therefore, delay all projects that have not yet been environmentally cleared.

9/30/2015 33




MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

STREETS AND ROADS PROGRESS

More than $1 billion (includes external funds) has been invested in Measure M street improvements,
including $635 million for seven grade separation projects; $56.3 million for 69 signal synchronization
projects; $193 million for 125 regional street improvement project phases; and $185 million in flexible Local
Fair Share funding to help restore aging street systems. As a result of both the M1 and M2 investment,
Orange County has the best pavement quality in the State.*

Completed e Two grade separation projects (5136 million) separating rail and car traffic and
Projects improving traffic flow, public safety and the transport of goods:
o Placentia Avenue
o Kraemer Boulevard
e Traffic Signal Synchronization Projects
o 28 Projects completed (1,413 signals synchronized)
e Regional Street Improvement Projects
o 11 projects completed

In Construction | e Five grade separation projects (5499 million):
1. Lakeview Avenue
2. Tustin Avenue/Rose Drive
3. Orangethorpe Avenue
4. State College Boulevard
5. Raymond Avenue
e Regional Street Improvement Projects
o 13 Projects
e Traffic Signal Synchronization Projects
o 34 Projects

Phase e Regional Street Improvement Projects
completion o 13 Projects completed Environmental and/or Design
o 8 projects completed right-of-way (ROW)
Started and e Traffic Signal Synchronization Projects
Planned o 17 projects are planned to initiate construction in near future

e Regional Street Improvement Projects
o 6 projects started right-of-way acquisition, 11 projects are planned to start
ROW and 24 projects are planned to start construction in near future
e 26 projects started environmental and/or design and 13 projects are planned to
start environmental/design in near future

STREETS AND ROADS CONSTRAINTS

Although programs are not able to be funded at the originally planned level, all three streets and roads
programs are progressing without significant issues or constraints. While the Regional Capacity Program is
moving forward without issue, the grade separation program right-of-way costs and legal settlements have
increased the overall cost of project completion.

*As reported by the League of California Cities, the California State Association of Counties and regional
transportation planning agencies, who graded the condition of each county’s streets on a scale of 0 to
100, in addition to reviewing pavement quality statewide. Orange County received a score of 76 which
is the highest score in the State.

9/30/2015 34



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

TRANSIT PROGRESS

To date, nearly $1 billion has been invested or approved for rail transit service improvements, including 52
rail-highway grade crossing safety enhancements and the Sand Canyon grade separation project. The
Anaheim Regional Transportation Intermodal Center was completed, and 10 intra-county Metrolink trains
were added along with a number of rail station improvements. Environmental work was completed and the
design phase began for the development of Orange County’s first street car project. The Safe Transit Stops
Program awarded $1.2 million for 51 projects to improve 100 of the busiest bus stops as well as funding for
mobile ticketing applications. Additionally, $9.8 million was approved for five community based transit
circulators and $31 million for programs serving seniors and persons with disability.

Opened or e 52 rail safety enhancements at grade crossings
Operating e Rail infrastructure upgrades to support expanded service
e San Clemente Beach Train Enhancements
e Sand Canyon grade crossing
e 10 Intra-county Metrolink Trains
e Metrolink Station Improvements at a number of stations
o Anaheim Regional Transportation Intermodal Center (ARTIC)
o Fullerton Transportation Center parking
o Tustin Rail Station parking expansion
o Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo Rail Station parking expansion
e Senior Programs
o Fare Stabilization
o Senior Mobility Program
o Senior Non-Emergency Medical Program
e Vanpool Services for local employers and train stations
o lrvine
o Lake Forest
e Community Circulators
o Five cities

In Construction e Fullerton Transportation Center elevator upgrades
(or starting soon) e Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo ADA ramps
In Design e Transit Extensions to Metrolink:

o OC Streetcar
o Bus Stop Improvements

e Orange

e Laguna Niguel / San Juan Capistrano Passing Siding
In Environmental e Transit Extensions to Metrolink:
Phase (or starting e Anaheim Rapid Connection
soon) e Anaheim Canyon Train Station Improvements

e Placentia Train Station

TRANSIT CONSTRAINTS

Overall, the Transit program remains deliverable. There are cost issues related to sustainability of
service levels for Metrolink as well as funding for fare stabilization for seniors and persons with
disabilities during the life of M2. OCTA is working on redeployment of Metrolink intra-county trains to
serve inter-county needs, but this requires an MOU with BNSF. While some deployment has taken
place, the ultimate plan has been delayed, but is anticipated to be addressed in 2016 when triple track
construction is completed on the rail line.

9/30/2015 35



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

FREEWAY ENVIRONMENTAL MITIGATION PROGRESS

In 2007, OCTA formed the Environmental Oversight Committee which meets regularly to provide
guidance to the Board on the development and implementation of the Freeway Mitigation Program.
Based on Board adopted criteria, OCTA purchased 1,300 acres of open space to be preserved as
advance mitigation for freeway projects. A funding strategy was adopted for the M2 Freeway
Environmental Mitigation Program including a multi-year target of $34.5 million for long-term
management and maintenance costs of lands preserved through an endowment program. Additionally,
the Board has authorized $42 million for property acquisitions, $10.5 million to fund habitat restoration
activities, and $2.5 million for conservation plan development and program support, for a total of
approximately $55 million.

Purchased/Underway | ¢ 1,300 acres of open space
e 11 restoration projects

FREEWAY ENVIRONMENTAL MITIGATION CONSTRAINTS
The program is progressing as planned and there are no constraints identified at this time.

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANUP PROGRESS
In 2007, OCTA formed the environmental cleanup allocation committee which meets regularly to
provide guidance and recommendations to the Board. OCTA awarded $41 million of Measure M
funding for projects that address water quality issues related to street runoff. This has resulted in 213
million gallons of water saved and nearly 500,000 cubic feet of trash removed since inception.

Funded Projects e 144 projects
e 33 of the 34 cities in Orange County have received funding under this
program.

ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANUP CONSTRAINTS
The program is progressing as planned and there are no constraints identified at this time.

9/30/2015 36



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

M2 PROJECT SCHEDULES

"™ Conceptual . Environmental . Design, Advertise & Award . Construction Completed

M2 Projects and Programs

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

N 15, SR-55 to SR-57

N I O L[ [
I-5, 1-405 to SR-55 (Further Schedule TBD) = —

I-5, Vista Hermosa to Pacific Coast Highway [ | ]

I-5, PCH to San Juan Creek Rd. B | 2929000 e I

I-5, Alicia Pkwy to El Toro Road I ]
I-5, Pico to Vista Hermosa/ Pico Interchange T |

-5, SR-73 to Oso Pkwy/Avery Pkwy
nterchange T T T I R e

n?;gff;,f’g';wy to Alicia Pkwy/La Paz Road P S

_I:g,DISSIEI Toro Interchange (Further Schedule .

I-5, I-5/Ortega Interchange T |

SR-22. Access Improvements (Complete)

SR-55,1-40510 15 S AEaaaaa——

SR-55, I-5 to SR-91 (Further Schedule TBD) ..

SR-57 (NB), Orangewood to Katella (Further
Schedule TBD) N —

SR-57 (NB), Katella to Lincoln (Open to Traffic) T

SR-57 (NB), Orangethorpe to Yorba Linda
(Complete) I I R

SR-57 (NB), Yorba Linda to Lambert
(Complete) | |

SR-57 (NB), Lambert to County Line (Envn.
Cleared/ Further Schedule TBD) I N N

- SR-91 (WB), I-5 to SR-57

|- I - - VR - BRI

SR-91 (WB), Tustin Interchange to SR-55 . s —_

$§|-39)1 SR-55 to SR-57 (Further Schedule .

SR-91, SR-241 to SR-55 (Complete) s

SR-91 (EB), Riv. County Line to SR-241

(Complete) (E—

SR-91, Riv. County Line to SR-241 (Envn.

Cleared/ Further Schedule TBD) IR N

(¢ 405, Euclid to 1-605 (Design-Build) e e S S S e

9/28/2015 37



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

M2 PROJECT SCHEDULES

Environmental . Design, Advertise & Award . Construction Completed

M2 Projects and Programs

il
Conceptual

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

|
n 1-405, 15 to SR-55 (Further Schedule TBD) .i--
—
1-605, |-605/Katella Interchange (Further
M Schedule TBD) I
T -
Mol Raymond Grade Separation e

State College Grade Separation (Fullerton) O I
Placentia Grade Separation (Complete) -

Kraemer Grade Separation (Complete) o

Orangethorpe Grade Separation [N E—— .
Tustin/Rose Grade Separation [N E—— -
Lakeview Grade Separation T e

Sand Canyon Grade Separation (Open to
Traftic) I

Rail-Highway Grade Crossing Safety
Enhancement (Complete) I —

= Anaheim Regional Trans Intermodal Center *
AR (O lcte) I T

Anaheim Rapid Connection o

Santa Ana/Garden Grove Fixed Guideway === e

* Projects managed by local agencies
Project K is a Design-Build project, with some overlap in activities during phases. Phase work can be concurrent.

These schedules are subject to change.

9/28/2015 38



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Delivery Risk

As OCTA moves forward with delivery of the ambitious freeway program delivery schedule, a key
area of risk is the availability of Caltrans staff resources to perform right-of-way (ROW)
acquisition and relocation support required for project delivery. OCTA relies on Caltrans to
process any needed resolutions of necessity (RON) for eminent domain proceedings through the
California Transportation Authority (CTC). On a project-by-project basis, Caltrans may not have
resources available to perform needed ROW acquisition, relocation assistance, or to process
RON'’s through the CTC to meet OCTA’s desired project delivery schedule identified in the M2020
Plan. As a result, options to address this issue should be identified and discussed during the next
M2020 Plan review.

Additionally, risk to delivery of Project R, Metrolink service expansion program, will continue as
new regulations are imposed such as positive train control, track sharing arrangements with
Burlington Northern Santa Fe and new requirements on locomotives which supports the need to
provide additional funding To Project R.

9/30/2015 39



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

VI.  Public Priority Analysis: Assessing Public and Stakeholder Continued
Support for M2

To gauge the level of public support for the priorities within M2, a comprehensive public outreach
plan was designed to elicit direct feedback from a variety of stakeholders from April 2015 through
September 2015. In addition, outreach results were combined with results from the recently
completed 2014 Long-Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) public involvement program, which also
sought public input on transportation priorities. Target audiences included government officials,
community and business leaders, transportation professionals, multicultural leaders and the
general public.

The public was encouraged to contribute comments through a multi-facetted approach that
included an online questionnaire, roundtables, discussions at key stakeholder meetings, letters,
a public opinion survey, and promotion on traditional and digital media. By utilizing both
guantitative and qualitative methods, broad common themes were gleaned from these outreach
efforts. These included:

e The Measure M2 Plan is on track to deliver transportation improvements to Orange
County

e Avariety of transportation options throughout Orange County is needed

e New and emerging technologies should be incorporated into current transportation
systems and projects

e The public should continue to be educated about transportation improvements and
options

Just as when Measure M2 was passed by nearly 70 percent of Orange County voters in 2006, the
public continues to support the plan as a whole. In addition, the priorities that surfaced as part
of the 2014 LRTP track with those that have emerged from the M2 Ten-Year Review. Participants
also acknowledged that Measure M must have flexibility to accommodate future trends while
maintaining the balance of the M2 Plan.

Background

OCTA’s 2014 LRTP, Outlook 2035, creates a vision for Orange County’s transportation network
over the next 20 years. Every four years OCTA updates the LRTP to account for new planning
efforts, changes in demographics, economic conditions, available sources of transportation
funding, and the public’s view on transportation priorities. Since an extensive public outreach
effort was implemented as part of the 2014 LRTP update, the results are being used as a baseline
for the Ten-Year Review outreach efforts.

The 2014 LRTP outreach effort allowed stakeholders to express ideas for future transportation
improvements and comment on issues. OCTA’s commitment to deliver the M2 Plan, along with
information related to the projected 2035 socioeconomic, financial and travel conditions

9/30/2015 40



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

provided context for the discussion. The stakeholders included, but were not limited to, local
agency elected officials, city managers and staff, business leaders, transportation professionals,
seniors, students, OCTA public committees, and advocates of various interests (Appendix E).

The following are some common themes that were expressed during the course of the 2014 LRTP
outreach efforts:

e Optimize — Make better use of what we have by synchronizing traffic signals, widening
major street intersections with left/right turn or through lanes, addressing bottleneck
areas, improving transit connections, and developing solutions to improve conditions in
carpool lanes.

e Maintain — Preserve existing transportation investments, maintain streets and roads, and
fix potholes.

e Fducate — Inform the public about public transportation and non-motorized
transportation options, and develop bicycle and pedestrian safety programs.

e [nnovate — Develop faster mass transit solutions and include innovative solutions, such as
real-time passenger information and electronic ticketing to encourage commuters to use
transit.

e C(Collaborate — Communicate within and across county borders to develop regional
solutions and connections, continue to lead bikeway planning to identify priority regional
corridors.

e Explore — Analyze ways to make transit travel times similar to automobile travel times,
such as streetcars that operate in the same lanes as automobiles, rail transit operating in
a dedicated lane on the freeway, and rapid buses.

The key themes that have emerged from the M2 Ten-Year Review outreach efforts track with the
feedback received as part of the 2014 LRTP.

Goals & Objectives

The goal of the outreach plan was to meet the M2 Ten-Year Review requirement included in the
Measure M2 Ordinance by engaging the public to ensure the M2 Plan as approved by the voters
in 2006 is still relevant and has support.

The outreach objectives associated with this overarching goal included:

e Measure public and stakeholder awareness of the M2 Plan.

e Assess public and stakeholder support for the M2 Plan priorities.

e Seek confirmation that the priorities and options included in the M2 Plan still reflect the
direction that residents envision for Orange County’s transportation future.

e Inform and educate key audiences about transportation improvements within the M2
Plan.

9/30/2015 41



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Target Audiences
e Government officials and staff e Local government agencies/organizations
e Community and business leaders e Multicultural leaders
e Transportation professionals o OCTA public committees
e Environmental leaders e General public
Tactics

Outreach activities were designed to solicit public input from a broad spectrum of people. In
addition to gauging the level of public support for the plan, there were a variety of approaches
implemented to both educate the public about the progress of Measure M2 and identify their
opinions about transportation priorities.

Messaging and Branding

Using the current branding for Measure M2 and the language from the M2 Ordinance itself, an
identity and key messages were created to illustrate the progress of M2 to date and the purpose
of the M2 Ten-Year Review.

Infographic
A visually appealing infographic (Appendix F) was created to highlight projects and provide a

snapshot of all the major milestones to date of Measure M2 programs. It also included the
website address so people could get more information and provide feedback.

PowerPoint and Discussion Guide

While all presentations utilized the same pool of information, the PowerPoint and discussion
guide were customized to the target audience that would be hearing/reviewing the information
in order to facilitate the most dialogue possible.

Online Questionnaire

A qualitative online questionnaire was developed to provide a venue for the general public and
stakeholders to provide their feedback. The online questionnaire was also printed and distributed
during roundtables and meetings (Appendix G). To date OCTA has received over 100 responses
to the online questionnaire.

Website

The Measure M Overview webpage featured a section that highlighted the M2 Ten-Year Review
and included digital versions of the PowerPoint and infographic, and a link to the online
guestionnaire. Since this information was added to the Measure M Overview webpage, it has
received nearly 3,700 views, with more than 150 downloads of the progress report.

9/30/2015 42



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Social Media

The materials on the website and online questionnaire were promoted with OCTA’s Facebook
and Twitter accounts. Facebook posts reached more than 1,600 people and generated 150
actions. These posts resulted in eight percent total traffic to the website.

Press Release
A press release (Appendix H) was issued to 130 media outlets to help encourage the general
public to review the online materials.

OCTA Blog
Three articles about the Ten-Year Review were published on OCTA’s blog between June and

September 2015 (Appendix 1). These articles were included in three On the Move email
newsletters, which are distributed to OCTA stakeholders, for a total distribution of 8,600.

Newsletters and E-blasts

Promotion of the online materials and questionnaire were distributed through newsletters and
e-blasts (Appendix J) to more than 6,000 people by the American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE),
Women in Transportation Seminar Orange County (WTS-OC), and Orange County Association of
REALTORS (OCAR).

Attitudinal and Awareness Survey

An attitudinal and awareness survey was conducted in mid-2015 to measure awareness and
perceptions of OCTA, and identify residents’ opinions of Orange County’s transportation system,
as well as the types of improvements they feel should be priorities for the future. In addition, the
survey measured public awareness of Measure M and support for key elements of the Measure
M Investment Plan.

Methodology: a total of 2,000 randomly selected Orange County adult residents participated in
the survey between June 3 and July 14, 2015. Individuals were selected at random from land line
and geo-targeted mobile phone numbers that service Orange County, with additional screening
guestions to confirm eligibility. The survey, which has an overall margin of error: £ 2.19 percent,
was conducted using a mixed-method approach which allowed respondents the option to
participate in the survey by telephone or online through a secure, password-protected, web-
based application designed and hosted by True North Research. The telephone interviews
averaged 20 minutes in length and were conducted in English, Spanish, and Vietnamese during
weekday evenings (5:30PM to 9PM) and on weekends (10AM to 5PM).

Letters to State/Federal Offices

Letters were sent to state and federal government officials and staff to inform them that the M2
Ten-Year Review was taking place and of M2’s progress, and provide an opportunity to provide
OCTA with their feedback (Appendix K).

9/30/2015 43



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Elected Officials Roundtable

A facilitated roundtable discussion with city council members took place in September 2015.
Elected officials from across the county attended to represent both their respective cities and
one of three different government advocacy groups. These groups included the Association of
California Cities — Orange County, The League of California Cities — Orange County Division, and
the Orange County Council of Governments.

Stakeholder Meetings and Roundtables

There were 20 presentations set up to elicit comments from a variety of stakeholder groups
throughout the county. This was accomplished through facilitated roundtable discussions and
presentations at regularly scheduled meetings. During these meetings, information was provided
on Measure M2’s progress and the M2 Ten-Year Review. Attendees were also given an
opportunity to provide OCTA with their thoughts, provided a copy of the infographic and
encouraged to complete the online survey. More than 500 people were engaged during this
process.

Meetings

North Orange County Legislative
Alliance

Orange County City Managers
Association

Orange County City Managers
Association Executive Committee

OCTA 4t District Mayors Forum

Building Industry Association

Orange County Business Council
Infrastructure Committee
Caltrans District 12

South Orange County Economic
Coalition

Orange County Council of
Governments

Association of California Cities —
Orange County

American Society of Civil Engineers

OCTax

Orange County Business Council
Advocacy and Government Affairs
Committee

Roundtable Discussions

e Women in Transportation Seminar, e American Society of Civil Engineers,
Orange County Orange County

e Diversity Leaders in Orange County

OCTA Public Committees

OCTA’s public committees participated in the M2 Ten-Year Review process. They were given a
presentation on Measure M2’s major milestones, information on the M2 Ten-Year Review, and
the infographic with information on how to access the online questionnaire. Facilitated
discussions followed each presentation.

9/30/2015 44



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

e Representing a broad spectrum of interests and geographic areas of Orange County, the
34-member Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) has very diverse member backgrounds,
ranging from community leadership to transportation research and engineering.

e The 34-member Special Needs Advisory Committee (SNAC) represents senior citizens and
persons with disabilities within Orange County.

e The Environmental Oversight Committee (EOC) is comprised of 12 members and includes
representatives from U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, California Department of Fish &
Wildlife, Endangered Habitats League, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, California Wildlife
Conservation Board, and Caltrans.

e The Environmental Cleanup Allocation Committee (ECAC) is comprised of 14 members
and includes representatives from the County of Orange, city representatives from each
supervisorial district, San Diego and Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Boards, academia,
water/sanitation districts, an environmental consultant and Caltrans.

e The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) provides OCTA staff with technical advice on
issues primarily related to M2 competitive grant programs that serve to improve capacity
on local streets and roads. The TAC is comprised of 35 representatives, one from each
Orange County city as well as the County of Orange.

Key Findings

Outreach participants consistently echoed their support for Measure M2. Many participants
generally felt that OCTA should continue to develop and expand multi-modal options that include
everything from transit services, to street and freeway improvements, and investments in active
transportation. In addition, participants articulated the need to consider how to utilize new and
emerging technologies to both enhance current services and maximize efficiency in construction.
Participants also mentioned how important it is to continue, and perhaps expand upon, allotting
resources to educate and inform the public about M2 transportation improvements and options.

Online Questionnaire

While qualitative in nature, online questionnaire results indicated that 75 percent of the
respondents feel that Measure M2 is on track to deliver transportation improvements to Orange
County. These results also show the top five transportation priorities for questionnaire
participants are signal synchronization, improving and widening freeways, fixing potholes and
repairing roadways, improving intersections and reducing traffic congestion on major roads, and
constructing roads over or under rail tracks where needed. When asked how to enhance Measure
M2 once all projects had been delivered, suggestions include extending Measure M2 for a
number of years, maintaining existing transportation investments, connecting streetcar, light rail,
or express bus service to Metrolink stations, and including active transportation priorities such
as bike lanes and trails.

Attitudinal and Awareness Survey
A quantitative attitudinal and awareness survey was conducted in mid-2015 to identify residents’
opinions of OCTA, Orange County’s transportation system, as well as the types of improvements

9/30/2015 45



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

they feel should be priorities for the future. Also, to assist OCTA in gauging public and stakeholder
support for key components of the Measure M2 Investment Plan, the survey asked residents to
prioritize among a list of transportation improvements. After informing respondents that there
are a variety of improvements that could be made to Orange County's transportation system,
respondents were asked whether each project should be a high, medium, or low priority—or
should no money be spent on the project? To encourage respondents to prioritize, they were
reminded that not all of the projects can be high priorities.

The survey results provide clear evidence that the public supports the types of projects funded
by Measure M, as well as those that could receive funding in the future—as every project tested
was viewed as a high or medium priority for future funding by a majority of Orange County
residents. Nevertheless, some projects were prioritized over others:

e Fixing potholes and repairing roadways (94 percent)

e Coordinating traffic signals on major roadways to improve traffic flow (92 percent)

e Providing transit services to seniors and the disabled at discounted rates (92 percent)

e Closing gaps, improving intersections, and reducing traffic congestion on major roads
throughout the County (90 percent)

e (Cleaning up polluted runoff from roads to reduce water pollution and protect local
beaches (89 percent)

e Improving ACCESS paratransit service for people with disabilities (85 percent)

e Adding local bus and shuttle services in communities that aren't well served by regional
transit services (81 percent)

e Optimizing the existing transportation system (81 percent)

e Widening freeways (80 percent)

e Improving safety and security at transit stops and stations (80 percent)

e Preserving and restoring open space land to offset the impacts of freeway improvement
projects (75 percent)

e Expanding bus services (73 percent)

e Constructing roads over or under rail tracks where needed to improve traffic flow (73
percent)

e Providing free assistance and tow truck service to motorists who break down on freeways
(72 percent)

e Improving access to METROLINK stations using shuttles, light rail, and other transit
services (70 percent)

e Expanding METROLINK rail service (68 percent)

e Improving the network of bike lanes (64 percent)

e Expanding vanpool programs (53 percent)

e Building additional toll lanes to help relieve traffic congestion (53 percent)

Elected Officials Roundtable
Orange County cities were also asked to comment on the M2 Ten-Year Review. On September
17th, OCTA Vice Chair Lori Donchak and staff met with 15 city council representatives from

9/30/2015 46



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

throughout Orange County. The representatives were chosen by the Association of California
Cities — Orange County, The League of California Cities — Orange County Division, and the Orange
County Council of Governments.

There was unanimous agreement with the direction the Measure M2 Plan is going and all
acknowledge the many benefits the program has brought to Orange County and their
communities. All acknowledged that given the economic constraints, specifically the severe
economic downturn that has dramatically affected all sales tax receipts, the Measure M2
program is delivering on its promise to the voters and, specifically, benefitting local agencies as
they enhance mobility in their communities.

There was broad support for all the Measure M2 freeway projects. Many supported the idea of
the continuation of the OC Streetcar and would like to see it expand countywide. There was
acknowledgement that the Measure M2 program is benefitting senior transportation and the
environment.

Stakeholder Meetings and Roundtables

During the 20 stakeholder meetings and roundtable discussions, the majority of individuals were
supportive of Measure M2’s Plan as a whole. There were suggestions that, while keeping the
promise to the voters is important, maintaining flexibility to accommodate emerging trends is
essential. Trends discussed included the ever-increasing population density of Orange County
with many individuals having to commute some distance to their workplace, and the desire for a
mix of bicycle, pedestrian and transit-oriented transportation options. The desire for mass transit
and solutions to the “last-mile” gap was especially strong amongst all groups.

Many stakeholders also recommended that, in addition to OCTA continuing to capitalize on
financing opportunities, new and emerging technologies should also be considered and
incorporated. For example, a project in Utah was mentioned where Accelerated Bridge
Construction (ABC) was used, allowing a bridge to be installed overnight. It was suggested that
advances such as ABC would help to minimize the impacts of other costly delays for bigger
construction projects. New phone and web-based technology, such as real-time maps and mobile
ticketing applications, were also mentioned as a way to help streamline services.

Participants also mentioned how important it is to continue, and perhaps expand upon, allotting
resources to educate and inform the public. This included suggestions to make a concentrated
effort in reaching out to Orange County’s diverse communities with a variety of in-language
materials, and tourists since they help dictate traffic flow throughout the county. While freeways
were largely not seen as the future of transportation, it was proposed that OCTA look at possibly
accommodating freeway interchange improvements in lieu of widening to help with
bottlenecking, consider managed lanes, and examine extending the I-5 carpool lane in the
southern end of the county if any additional M2 funds are available at the end of the program.

Overall, stakeholders agreed that the current variety of elements within the M2 Plan will continue
to improve transportation within Orange County and beyond.

9/30/2015 47



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Caltrans

In addition to reaching out to OCTA’s stakeholders, a meeting was held with Caltrans District 12
staff. The District Director, Deputy District Directors as well as Office Chiefs from key disciplines
were invited. Significant discussion centered on navigating new state laws and regulations
regarding project delivery. Caltrans recognized the importance that OCTA places on delivering
what was promised to the voters but also recognized the difficulty of delivering freeway lane
additions given new sustainability requirements. OCTA discussed the M2 Plan as a whole and
how it was a balanced plan that included more than just freeway lane capacity projects and also
delivers transit, signal synchronization, and environmental projects. Caltrans recommended that
OCTA include language in freeway project environmental documents that provides context to the
M2 Plan as a whole and the importance of looking at projects within a package of countywide
improvements.

9/30/2015 48



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

VIl. Conclusions

After completing the first comprehensive review of OCTA’s Measure M2 program and the
requirements listed in Ordinance No. 3 related to the M2 Ten-Year Review, no major external
changes related to legislation, land use, travel and growth projections, project cost/revenue
projections or right-of-way and/or other constraints have been identified that would require
substantial changes to the intent of the M2 Plan as approved by the voters in 2006 and as
amended November 23, 2013. The review also highlighted that M2 as a whole is supported by
the public as approved and that OCTA has made substantial progress in delivering the program
as promised to the voters with all elements initiated and a number of projects delivered.

In reviewing the financial capacity of the M2 program by category, the Transit category has been
identified as having delivery issues. Within the Transit category, there are six programs and
although the revenue within the category as a whole is sufficient to deliver all six programs, there
is a shortfall among the Transit program line items that should be addressed. These include
Project R (Metrolink operations); and Project U (fare stabilization for seniors and persons with
disabilities), which the forecast indicates will not have sufficient funding through the 30-year M2
horizon. Another program — Project T (Gateway to High Speed Rail), has been delivered and has
a remaining balance. With the completion of the one qualifying Gateway project, the Anaheim
Regional Transportation Intermodal Center the program in Project T is complete. The balance in
Project T is sufficient to address the two transit programs that show a funding shortfall during
the 30-year timeframe.

It is recommended that the line items in the Transportation Investment Plan for projects R, U and
T be amended to move the remaining balance from T to R and U to accommodate the projected
shortfall.

Ordinance No. 3 spells out the process for plan amendments. Amendments within a category do
not require voter approval but require a two-thirds vote of the Taxpayer Oversight Committee
and a two-thirds vote of the OCTA Board of Directors as well as a public hearing and notification
process. Amendments to the Ordinance can be made at any time it is determined to be needed.

9/30/2015 49



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Appendix A List of M2 Amendments to Date

Two M2 amendments have taken place to date. Both followed the amendment procedures
outlined in the Orange County Local Transportation Authority (OCLTA) Ordinance No. 3 for the
Renewed Measure M Transportation Investment Plan (Plan). Amendments to the Ordinance and
Plan can be recommended by Staff to the OCLTA Board of Directors at any time, as the need
arises.

Transportation Investment Plan Amendments

1. November9, 2012
e Occurred after the Board adoption of the M2020 Plan. This amendment
reallocated funds within the Freeway Program, between SR-91 (Project J) and
[-405 (Project K).

Ordinance Amendments

2. November 25, 2013
¢ This amendment strengthens the eligibility and selection process for Taxpayers
Oversight Committee members by preventing any person with a financial conflict
of interest from serving as a member. It also requires currently elected or
appointed officers who are applying to serve on the TOC to complete an “Intent
to Resign” form.

9/30/2015 50



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Appendix B Federal Legislation Potentially Impacting M2 Projects

Enacted Since 2006

2008

Public Law No. 110-432 (122 Stat. 4848-4906): Rail Safety Improvement Act of 2008. Requires the
implementation of positive train control systems by Class | railroad carriers on main lines by December
31, 2015. Amends hours of service laws by train employees and signal employees. Exempts employees
providing commuter or intercity rail passenger transportation from those provisions. Requires
railroads and States to report information on grade crossing physical and operating characteristics to
the National Crossing Inventory. Broadens whistleblower protection provisions.

Public Law No. 110-432 (122 Stat. 4848-4906): Passenger Rail Investment and Improvement Act of
2008. Authorizes the appropriation of funds to the United States Department of Transportation (DOT)
for fiscal years 2009-2013 to award grants to Amtrak to cover operating costs and capital investments.
Requires Amtrak to implement a modern financial reporting system. Requires the development of
standards that measure the performance and service quality of intercity passenger train service.
Requires Amtrak to evaluate and rank each of its long-distance trains. Requires Amtrak to develop
performance improvement plans for its worst performing routes. Requires States to develop rail plans
to set policy involving freight and passenger rail transportation and the established priorities and
implementation strategies for enhancing rail services. Authorizes the creation of three intercity rail
capital assistance programs. Provides provisions to encourage additional private investment in the
operation and improvement of intercity passenger rail services.

2009

Public Law 111-5 (123 Stat. 115): The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act, (Approved February
13, 2009). Provided $787 billion in funding to spur economic activity in the forms of tax cuts, increases
in funding to entitlement programs, and provide funding for federal contracts, grants, and loans.
Provided approximately $40 billion for transportation projects nationwide.

Public Law 111-68 (123 Stat. 2023): Legislative Branch Appropriations Act, 2010, (Approved October
1, 2009). Provided a temporary extension of Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation
Equity Act: A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU) transportation funding programs through October 31,
2009.

Public Law 111-88: (123 Stat. 2904): Department of Interior, Environment, and Related Agencies
Appropriation Act, 2010. (Approved October 30, 2009). Provided a temporary extension of SAFETEA-
LU programs through December 18, 2009.

Public Law 111-118 (123 Stat. 3409): Department of Defense Appropriations Act, 2010, (Approved
December 19, 2009). Provided a temporary extension of SAFETEA-LU programs through February 28,
2010.

2010

Public Law 111-144 (124 Stat. 42): Temporary Extension Act of 2010 (Approved March 2, 2010).
Provided temporary extension of SAFETEA-LU programs through March 28, 2010.

Public Law 111-147 (124 Stat. 71): Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act (Approved March 18,
2010). Provided a temporary extension of SAFETEA-LU programs through December 31, 2010.

9/30/2015 51



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Public Law 111-322 (124 Stat. 3518): Continuing Appropriations and Surface Transportation
Extensions Act (Approved December 22, 2010). Provided a temporary extension of SAFETEA-LU
programs through March 4, 2011.

2011

Public Law 112-5 (125 Stat. 14): Surface Transportation Extension Act of 2011 (Approved March 4,
2011). Provided a temporary extension of SAFETEA-LU programs through September 30, 2011.
Public Law 112-30 (125 Stat. 342): Surface and Air Transportation Programs Extension Act of 2011
(Approved September 16, 2011). Provided a temporary extension of SAFETEA-LU programs through
March 31, 2012

2012

Public Law 112-102 (126 Stat. 271): Surface Transportation Extension Act of 2012 (Approved March
30, 2012). Provided a temporary extension of SAFETEA-LU programs through June 30, 2012

Public Law 112-141 (126 Stat. 405) Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21 Century Act (MAP-21)
(Approved July 6, 2012). Funds federal transportation programs until September 30, 2014. Transfers
$18.8 billion in general funds to maintain current funding levels. Requires Metropolitan Planning
Organizations (MPOs) to include representation of public transportation providers. Creates the
Transportation Alternatives Program which folds into it the Transportation Enhancements, Safe
Routes to Schools, and Recreational Trails Programs. Expands the Transportation Infrastructure
Finance Innovation Act (TIFIA). Expands TIFIA funding to $750 million in 2013, and $1 billion in 2014,
Increases the amount of a project that can be funded with loans and guarantees. Title One, Subtitle C
several project streamlining provisions were provided as advocated for by OCTA’s Breaking Down
Barriers Initiative to accelerate project delivery, including the expansion of categorical exclusions for
projects, thereby allowing them to be exempted from environmental assessment. Authorizes MPOs
or states to develop programmatic mitigation plans. Increases funding of transit programs. Creates
the State of Good Repair grants program. Permits the reconstruction or replacement of toll-free
bridges or tunnels to be converted to a toll facility. Requires DOT to develop a National Freight
Strategic Plan.

2014

Public Law 113-159 (128 Stat. 1839) Highway and Transportation Funding Act of 2014 (Approved
August 8, 2014). Provided a temporary extension of MAP-21 transportation funding programs through
May 31, 2015

9/30/2015 52



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Appendix C State Legislation Potentially Impacting M2 Projects
Enacted Since 2006

2006

e AB 32 (Chapter 488, Statutes of 2006): Global Warming Solutions Act: Required California Air
Resources Board to adopt regulations to reduce statewide greenhouse gas emissions levels to 1990
levels by 2020.

e AB 372 (Chapter 262, Statutes of 2006): Extended existing law to allow transit operators to enter
into design-build contracts until 2011.

e AB 713 (Chapter 44, Statutes of 2006): Postponed Proposition 1A, The Safe, Reliable High-Speed
Passenger Train Bond Act for the 21% Century to the November 4, 2008, general election.

e AB 1467 (Chapter 32, Statutes of 2006): Authorizes Caltrans and regional transportation agencies to
enter into eight comprehensive development lease agreements with public and private entities, and
may charge tolls for those projects. Included clarifying provisions in AB 521 (Chapter 542, Statutes of
2006). Expires January 1,2012.

e AB 2746 (Chapter 577, Statutes of 2006): Clarifies that local and state public agencies may allow
nonprofit organizations to accept and hold real property interests required by the agency to
mitigate adverse impacts of a permitted project or facility.

e SB 1266 (Chapter 25, Statutes of 2006): Authorized the placement of Proposition 1B on the fall 2006
ballot, which granted $19.925 billion in general obligation bonds for transportation improvements.

2007

e AB 118 (Chapter 750, Statutes of 2007): Creates various funding programs targeting emission
reductions within the transportation sector, administered by the California Air Resources Board and
California Energy Commissions. Mostly relates to vehicle technology.

e AB 193 (Chapter 313, Statutes of 2007): For fiscal year (FY) 2007-2008, diverted all but $200 million
of available spillover funds to pay for general fund expenditures, decreasing the available funding
for new transit capital projects and operations.

e AB 196 (Chapter 314, Statutes of 2007): Required the Controller to allocate the $950 million in
Proposition 1B Local Streets and Roads funds, $400 million to counties and $550 million to cities.

e AB 1246 (Chapter 330, Statutes of 2007): authorizes a state or local public agency that, in the
development of its own project, is required to transfer an interest in real property to mitigate an
adverse impact upon natural resources, to transfer the interest to a nonprofit organization.

e SB 79 (Chapter 173, Statutes of 2007): Redirected 50 percent of “spillover” revenue from the Public
Transportation Account to cover general fund expenditures/bond debt service.

e SB 97 (Chapter 185, Statutes of 2007): Required the Office of Planning and Research to create
guidelines for the feasible mitigation of greenhouse gas emissions as required under the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Exempted certain projects funded by Proposition 1B from
analyzing greenhouse gas emissions under CEQA prior to January 1, 2010.

e SB 184 (Chapter 462, Statutes of 2007): Extends the time under which regional agencies can be
reimbursed for local funds advanced on projects programmed into the STIP but which have not yet
received an allocation by they CTC.

e SB 717 (Chapter 733, Statutes of 2007): Continued the Transportation Investment Fund (Proposition
42) in existence, maintaining a 40/20/20 split in gasoline sales tax revenues, but modified the

9/30/2015 53



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

distribution of PTA funding, 75 percent to State Transit Assistance, and 25 percent to STIP (used to
be 50/50).

2008

e AB 88 (Chapter 269, Statutes of 2008): Annual budget act. Significantly reduced State Transit
Assistance funding to $406.4 million, reducing OCTA’s share by $8.9 million.

e AB 268 (Chapter 756, Statutes of 2008): Continued the diversion of $1.4 billion in Public
Transportation Account funding for general fund purposes. Set the allocation formula for
Proposition 1B PTMISEA, based on State Transit Assistance Formula.

e AB 1358 (Chapter 657, Statutes of 2008): Requires local governments, beginning January 1, 2011, to
include in any revision of the circulation element of the general plan, a plan for a balanced,
multimodal transportation network that meets the need for all safe and convenient travel, including
that for bicyclists, children, persons with disabilities, and other identified parties, suitable for the
rural, suburban, or urban context of the general plan.

e AB 2906 (Chapter 27, Statutes of 2009): Repealed provision of existing law which required high-
occupancy vehicle (HOV) lanes on State Route 55 to be separated from adjacent mixed flow lanes by
a buffer area of at least four feet.

e AB 3034 (Chapter 267, Statutes of 2008): Enacts new provisions for Proposition 1A: Safe, Reliable
High-Speed Passenger Train Bond Act, including new provisions which required adding Anaheim to
the initial San Francisco-Los Angeles operating segment.

e SB 375 (Chapter 728, Statutes of 2008): Requires regional transportation plans to include a
sustainable communities strategy designed to achieve regional greenhouse gas emission reduction
targets per AB 32 through coordination between transportation, land use and housing planning.
Projects specifically listed in a local sales tax measure for transportation projects approved prior to
December 31, 2008 are excluded. In addition, nothing is to require a transportation authority with a
locally approved sales tax measure adopted prior to December 31, 2010, from changing the funding
allocations for categories of transportation projects approved by voters.

e SB 732 (Chapter 729, Statutes of 2008): Established the Strategic Growth Council, to help coordinate
activities to meet the goals of AB 32 through sustainable land use planning, which included
coordinating activities of member agencies, including the Business, Transportation and Housing
Agency (now the California State Transportation Agency).

e SB 1316 (Chapter 714, Statutes of 2008): Provided a framework for the extension of the 91 Express
Lanes into Riverside County, extending the period which OCTA can issue bonds and collect tolls to
2065. Authorized broader use of toll revenues by allowing them to be used to provide
improvements to the State Route 91 corridor, including transportation alternatives and operational
and capacity improvements. Investments may be made along the State Route 91 corridor from the
State Route 57 intersection in the west to the Riverside County line in the east.

2009

e AB 672 (Chapter 463, Statutes of 2009): Authorizes a regional or local lead agency, for a project or
project component, funded or to be funded by Proposition 1B, to apply to the CTC for a letter of no
prejudice that would allow the lead agency to use alternative funds under its control, including local
sales tax money, to keep the project moving until bond funds become available.

e AB 729 (Chapter 466, Statutes of 2009): Extends the authority for transit operators to use design-
build for project delivery until January 2015.

9/30/2015 54



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

AB 798 (Chapter 474, Statutes of 2009): Creates the California Transportation Financing Authority
within the Office of the Treasurer, to provide financing for the construction of new capacity or
improvements through the issuance of bonds backed by various revenue streams, including toll
revenues.

AB 1072 (Chapter 271, Statutes of 2009): Extended the formula for allocating Proposition 1B
PTMISEA funds for the remainder of the program, largely based on the State Transit Assistance
formula.

AB 1403 (Chapter 530, Statutes of 2009): Eliminates the $1 million cap on the Southern California
Association of Governments’ share of funding provided through the Transportation Development
Act.

ABX2 8 (Chapter 8, Statutes of 2009): Exempts eight specific projects from CEQA, including the
widening of State Route 91 from State Route 55 to Weir Canyon Road (benefit was limited due to
delay in bill passage). Authorized a streamlined permit process for 10 projects, including three OCTA
projects: (1) State Route 57 northbound widening from Katella to Lincoln; (2) State Route 91
widening from State Route 55 to Weir Canyon; and (3) addition of an auxiliary westbound land to
State Route 91 from Interstate 5 to State Route 57. Granted OCTA advanced ROW authority for two
projects: (1) State Route 91 auxiliary from Interstate 5 to State Route 57 and the State Route 57
northbound widening from Katella to Lincoln.

ABX3 20 (Chapter 21, Statutes of 2009): provided for the distribution of $2.6 billion in federal
economic stimulus funds (American Recovery and Reinvestment Act) for road and highway
infrastructure projects. OCTA received approximately $212 million for projects.

ABX4 10 (Chapter 10, Statutes of 2009): Made additional transportation fund diversions to cover
general fund costs, including $561 million in spillover revenue. Directed all spillover revenue to the
Mass Transportation Fund for transportation debt service until June 2013.

SB 27 (Chapter 4, Statutes of 2009): Prohibits a city, county or city and county from entering into any
form of an agreement which would result in the diversion, transfer, or rebate and reduction of
Bradley-Burns local tax proceeds from another city or county when the agreements leads to the
reduction in tax proceeds collected under Bradley-Burns from a retailer within the jurisdiction of the
other city or county and the retailer continues to maintain a physical presence within the
jurisdiction of the other city or county.

SB 83 (Chapter 554, Statutes of 2009): Authorizes a countywide transportation planning agency,
through a majority vote of its board, to impose an annual fee up to $10 on motor vehicles registered
within the county to be used for congestion mitigation projects and programs and pollution
mitigation projects and programs.

SB 391 (Chapter 585, Statutes of 2009): Requires updating of the California Transportation Plan to
address how the State will update the transportation system to achieve the maximum feasible
emission reductions in order to attain a statewide reduction of greenhouse gas emissions to 1990
levels by 2020 and 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050.

SB 575 (Chapter 354, Statutes of 2009): Clean-up legislation related to SB 375, modifying housing
element schedules, clarifying public hearing process, sets forth requirements related to maintaining
and publishing a current schedule of plan adoption.

SB 783 (Chapter 618, Statutes of 2009): Revises the contents of the business plan of the California
High-Speed Rail Authority and requires them to prepare, publish, adopt and submit to the
Legislature a business plan no later than January 1, 2012, and every 2 years thereafter.

SBX2 4 (Chapter 2, Statutes of 2009): Granted unlimited authority for Caltrans and regional
transportation planning agencies to use public-private partnerships for transportation projects
through January 1, 2017. Authorizes, subject to the approval of the California Transportation

9/30/2015 55



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

Commission, local transportation agencies to use design-build for up to five projects statewide
relates to local streets and roads, bridges, tunnels or public transit; and Caltrans the authority for up
to 10 state highway, bridge or tunnel projects.

e SBX2 9 (Chapter 7, Statutes of 2009): Directs the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) to levy a
fee on all future public works bond and non-bond funded public works projects to be used for
prevailing wage enforcement by DIR.

e SBX3 7 (Chapter 14, Statutes of 2009): Authorized a variety of special fund shifts, including the
suspension of the State Transit Assistance program.

2010

e AB 1500 (Chapter 37, Statutes of 2010): Extends to January 1, 2015, the expiration of the white
stickers which allow specific super and ultra-low emission vehicles to use the high-occupancy vehicle
lanes, regardless of occupancy.

e ABX8 6 (Chapter 11, Statutes of 2010): Enacted the “gas tax swap,” by increasing the gasoline excise
tax by 17.3 cents and eliminating the state sales tax on gasoline (Proposition 42), effective July 1,
2010. This eliminated the availability of spillover funding, while attempting to provide greater
stability in gas tax revenues. Also increased the sales tax on diesel by 1.75 percent and decreased
the gas tax on diesel to 13.6 cents. Fundamentally changes the way State financed transportation.

e ABX8 9 (Chapter 12, Statutes of 2010): Companion bill to ABX8 6 to enact the “gas tax swap.”
Restructured how revenues are expended. Increased gas tax revenue to be allocated 12 percent to
SHOPP, 44 percent to local streets and roads and 44 percent to STIP.

e ABX8 11 (Chapter 7, Statutes of 2010): Granted LONP authority to projects funded under
Proposition 116 (1990).

e SB 535 (Chapter 215, Statutes of 2010): Extends the authorization for yellow HOV stickers until July
1, 2011, and allowed the issuance of green stickers for advanced technology partial zero-emission
vehicles, to expire on January 1, 2015. Stickers allowed single-occupant vehicles access to HOV
lanes.

e SB 1371 (Chapter 292, Statutes of 2010): Authorized agencies eligible for Proposition 1A (2008)
funding reserved for intercity, commuter and urban rail connectivity grants to apply to the California
Transportation Commission (CTC) for a letter of no prejudice, allowing local funds to be used to
implement approved projects while awaiting the sale of bonds.

e SB 1456 (Chapter 496, Statutes of 2010): Authorizes a lead agency when using a tiered
environmental impact report (EIR) under CEQA, until January 1, 2016, to forgo the analysis of
cumulative impacts at the project level it is determined that the cumulative effect has been
adequately addressed in a prior EIR.

2011

e AB 105 (Chapter 6, Statutes of 2011): Re-enacted the 2010 Gas Tax Swap to meet Proposition 26
(2010) requirements, redirected truck weight fees and non-article 19 transportation revenues to
bond debt service.

o AB 436 (Chapter 378, Statutes of 2011): Provides that the requirement to pay a DIR enforcement fee
for prevailing wage enforcement is waived on state bond funded projects and specified design-build
projects if the awarding body has entered into a collective bargaining agreement that binds all
contractors performing the work on the contract.

9/30/2015 56



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

AB 892 (Chapter 482, Statutes of 2011): Extends the sunset provision to allow Caltrans to continue
to carry out approval of National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) requirements until January 1,
2017.

SB 436 (Chapter 590, Statutes of 2011): Allows a state or local public agency to authorize a nonprofit
organization, a special district, a for-profit entity, or other entity to hold title to and manage an
interest for property held for mitigation purposes, as well as the long-term management of
associated endowments.

SB 468 (Chapter 535, Statutes of 2011): Imposes various requirements on SANDAG and Caltrans on
the development of the North Coast Corridor project on Interstate 5 and on the LOSSAN rail
corridor. Include mitigation requirements, transit and active transportation planning requirements,
and authority to administer a HOT facility on Interstate 5.

SB 922 (Chapter 431, Statutes of 2011): Authorizes public entities to use, enter into, or require
contractors to enter into a project labor agreement (PLA) for a construction project if it meets
certain requirements. If a charter city prohibits or is inconsistent with the requirements of this bill,
state funding and/or financial assistance will be prohibited from being used on a project.

2012

AB 441 (Chapter 365, Statutes of 2012): Requires the California Transportation Commission to
include an attachment in the next revision of the Regional Transportation Plan guidelines to
summarize best practices that have been conducted by metropolitan planning organizations related
to health and health equity.

AB 1458 (Chapter 138, Statutes of 2012): Specifies that in the establishment of the California State
Transportation Agency, the California Transportation Commission is to retain independent authority
to perform its duties and functions.

AB 1532 (Chapter 807, Statutes of 2012): Established a process for allocating revenues deposited in
the State’s Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund from the selling of allowances under the cap-and-trade
program, including the creation of an investment plan, and eligible categories of investment
including public transportation and sustainable infrastructure projects.

AB 1706 (Chapter 771, Statutes of 2012): Authorizes any transit bus within a transit agency’s fleet
before January 1, 2013, to legally operate on state and local highways and roads, regardless of
weight. Sets up a temporary procurement process for other overweight buses until January 1, 2015.
Transit weight limitations to revert to 20,500 Ibs again at that point.

AB 2405 (Chapter 674, Statutes of 2012): Exempts, until January 1, 2015, vehicles that meet the
State’s enhanced advanced technology partial zero-emission vehicles standard from paying tolls on
a toll road or highway, as specified.

AB 2498 (Chapter 752, Statutes of 2012): Authorizes Caltrans to engage in the Construction
Manager/General Contractor delivery method for the construction of a highway, bridge or tunnel,
on up to 6 projects.

SB 535 (Chapter 830, Statutes of 2012): Requires the California Environmental Protection Agency to
identify disadvantaged communities within the State for investment opportunities, requiring a
minimum of 25 percent of cap-and-trade revenues be invested to benefit such communities, and 10
percent to the funding of projects within such communities.

SB 1018 (Chapter 39, Statutes of 2012): Establishes the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund, where
revenues from AB 32’s cap-and-trade system will be deposited for expenditure.

9/30/2015 57



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

SB 1029 (Chapter 152, Statutes of 2012): Appropriates $2.61 billion in Proposition 1A (2008) bonds
for the initial construction segment of the high-speed rail project, and $1.1 billion in Proposition 1A
bonds to serve as a match for bookend investments, among other appropriations.

SB 1094 (Chapter 705, Statutes of 2012): Clarifying legislation to 2011’s SB 436, allowing exemptions
whereby the endowment for mitigation lands can be held by entities other than those specified by
law if certain requirements are met.

SB 1225 (Chapter 802, Statutes of 2012): Authorizes Caltrans to enter into an Interagency Transfer
Agreement to transfer the management/operation of intercity passenger rail service to a local joint
powers authority in the Los Angeles-San Luis Obispo-San Diego (LOSSAN) corridor.

2013

AB 14 (Chapter 223, Statutes of 2013): Requires the California State Transportation Agency to
prepare a state freight plan to provide a comprehensive strategy to govern immediate and long
term planning and capital investments related to the movement of freight within the State.

AB 266 (Chapter 405, Statutes of 2013): Extends, until January 1, 2019, the allowances for single
occupant low emission vehicles having a white or green decal to use the high-occupancy vehicle
lanes and certain high-occupancy toll lanes for free. If federal law authorizing such use is
eliminated, this authority would expire on September 30, 2017.

AB 401 (Chapter 586, Statutes of 2013): Provides the authority, until January 1, 2024, for regional
transportation agencies to utilize design-build procurement for an unlimited number of projects on,
or adjacent to, the state highway system, as well as expressways that are part of a local sales tax
measures approved before January 1, 2014.

AB 466 (Chapter 736, Statutes of 2013): Updated State law to reflect the traditional formula used to
allocate federal Congestion Management and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) funds to
preserve traditional funding levels due to the deletion of the formula in federal law.

AB 1222 (Chapter 527, Statutes of 2013): Temporarily exempts from the provisions of the California
Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA), public transit employees whose collective
bargaining rights are protected under subsection (b) of Section 5333 of Title 49 of the United States
Code (13(c)). Exemption remains in effect until January 1, 2015, or until a federal district court rules
whether rights of employees protected under 13(c) are infringed upon if they were subject to
PEPRA. Allows federal transit grant monies to flow again, which were previously held up due to
labor union challenges at the federal Department of Labor.

SB 7 (Chapter 794, Statutes of 2013): Starting on January 1, 2015, would prohibit a charter city from
receiving or using state funding or financial assistance for the construction of a public works project
if the city has a charter provision or ordinance that authorizes a contractor not to comply with
prevailing wage provisions on any public works project.

SB 71 (Chapter 28, Statutes of 2013): Deletes the cap and the rate that the Department of Industrial
Relations may charge an agency for the costs associated with enforcing compliance with prevailing
wage requirements for public works projects.

SB 85 (Chapter 35, Statutes of 2013): Allows for the ongoing diversion of vehicle weight fee
revenues for transportation bond debt service.

SB 99 (Chapter 359, Statutes of 2013): Creates the Active Transportation Program (ATP) within
Caltrans to be funded through federal Transportation Alternatives Program funds and other safe
routes to school and bicycle account funds.

SB 142 (Chapter 655, Statutes of 2013): Until January 1, 2021, allows the governing board of a
transit district, municipal operator, other public agency operating or contracting for the operation of

9/30/2015 58



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

transit, commuter rail, or intercity rail services, subject to a two-thirds vote of the operator’s
governing board, to levy a specific benefit assessment on real property to finance capital and
operational transit needs.

e SB 286 (Chapter 414, Statutes of 2013): Same as AB 266.

e SB 425 (Chapter 252, Statutes of 2013): Allows a public agency, principally tasked with
administering, planning, developing and operating a public works project, to establish a specified
peer review group of persons qualified to give expert advice on the scientific and technical aspects
of the public works project.

e SB 694 (Chapter 545, Statutes of 2013): Exempts from the Outdoor Advertising Act, advertising
displays at a publicly-owned multimodal transit facility that is to serve as a station for the high-
speed rail systems, with advertising revenues eligible for construction, operation and maintenance
of the multimodal transit facility.

e SB 743 (Chapter 386, Statutes of 2013): Requires the Office of Planning and Research to propose
revisions to the CEQA guidelines to establish new, non-level of service (LOS) criteria for determining
transportation impacts of projects within “transit priority areas,” potentially expanding criteria to
other areas. Potential metrics include vehicle miles traveled, vehicles miles traveled per capita, etc.

2014

e AB 26 (Chapter 864, Statutes of 2014): Provides that prevailing wage requirements are to apply to
post construction phases of a public works project.

e AB 52 (Chapter 532, Statutes of 2014): Sets forth that a project that may cause a substantial adverse
change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource may have a significant effect under the
California Environmental Quality Act.

e AB 1447 (Chapter 594, Statutes of 2014): Authorizes moneys in the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund
to be allocated for traffic signal synchronization projects. Does not allocate money for this purpose.

e AB 1720 (Chapter 263, Statutes of 2014): Extends to January 1, 2016, the sunset date for the
procurement process for transit buses that exceed the state transit bus axle weight limitations.

e AB 1721 (Chapter 526, Statutes of 2014): Requires certain low emission vehicles to receive a toll-
free or reduced-rate passage in high-occupancy toll lanes for single occupant users.

e AB 1783 (Chapter 724, Statutes of 2014): Extends the exemption from PEPRA for public transit
employees whose collective bargaining rights are protected under 13(c) until January 1, 2016, or
until a federal district court rules whether the rights of employees protected under 13(c) are
infringed upon via PEPRA. This would allow federal transit grant monies to continue to flow without
being challenged at the federal Department of Labor certification stage. A legal decision was
released late last year, in favor of the State and transit agencies. The Department of Labor has since
said they will challenge this decision. Unclear impacts to federal transit grants at this time.

e AB 2013 (Chapter 527, Statutes of 2014): Increases the number of decals available under the State’s
Clean Air Vehicle Program for vehicles meeting the State’s AT PZEV standard from 55,000 to 70,000.

e AB 2250 (Chapter 500, Statutes of 2014): Requires any toll revenues generated from a locally
administered managed lane on the state highway system to be expended only within the respective
corridor in which the managed lane is located.

9/30/2015 59



MEASURE M COMPREHENSIVE TEN-YEAR REVIEW

e SB 486 (Chapter 917, Statutes of 2014): Sets forth reform measures related to Caltrans planning and
funding of projects, including the requirement to develop an interregional transportation strategic
and development of an asset management plan to guide development of the SHOPP.

e SB 605 (Chapter 523, Statutes of 2014): Requires the California Air Resources Board to complete a
comprehensive strategy to reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants by January 1, 2016.
Measures included in the plan may relate to the transportations sector.

e SB 628 (Chapter 785, Statutes of 2014): Authorizes a city or county to establish an enhanced
infrastructure financing district, adopt an infrastructure financing plan, and issue for bonds, upon
approve of 55 percent of the voters.

e SB 785 (Chapter 931, Statutes of 2014): Provides for unlimited use of design-build authority for
transit projects until January 1, 2025. Includes workforce requirements.

e SB 854 (Chapter 28, Statutes of 2014): Removes the requirement that the awarding body for a public
works project pay the Department of Industrial Relations the costs for monitoring and enforcement
of prevailing wage requirements.

e SB 862 (Chapter 36, Statutes of 2014): SB 862 sets forth a framework for allocating cap-and-trade
revenues going forward: 25 percent to high-speed rail purposes, 20 percent to affordable housing
and sustainable communities, 10 percent to capital investments in transit and intercity rail, and 5
percent for low carbon transit operations. The transit operations program is the only program
allocated by formula.

e SB 1077 (Chapter 835, Statutes of 2014): Requires the development of a Road User Charge Task
Force and implementation of a Road User Charge pilot program to identify and evaluate issues
related to the use of a road user charge in California.

e SB 1183 (Chapter 516, Statutes of 2014): Authorizes cities, counties, and regional park districts, until
January 1, 2025, to impose a surcharge of up to S5 on motor vehicles within their jurisdictions to
fund bicycle infrastructure improvements and maintenance projects, subject to a 2/3 vote.

e SB 1204 (Chapter 530, Statutes of 2014): Creates the Clean Truck, Bus, and Off-Road Vehicle and
Equipment Technology Program, to be funded from cap-and-trade revenues to fund various
demonstration programs for zero- and near-zero emission technology projects, with priority given to
those located in disadvantaged areas. To be funded using cap-and-trade funding.

e SB 1228 (Chapter 787, Statutes of 2014): Continues the Trade Corridors Improvement Fund for
purposes of funding goods movement projects, if potential cap-and-trade or federal funding become
available for deposit.

e SB 1390 (Chapter 562, Statutes of 2014): Establishes the Santa Ana River Conservancy Program. To
address the resource and recreational goals of the Santa Ana River region. Provides that the
Conservancy cannot take an action the interferes, conflicts with, impedes, adversely impacts or
prevents the planning and implementation of transportation projects contained in a Regional
Transportation Plan approved by SCAG.

9/30/2015 60



Measure M2 Freeway Program

Appendix D Measure M2 Project and Program Progress and Constraints
M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status Discussion / Constraints
(July 2015) (April 2015)

Reduce freeway congestion through

This project has been environmentally

The environmental document does not address

The project will generally be constructed
within existing right-of-way. Specific
improvements will be subject to approved
plans developed in cooperation with local
jurisdictions and affected communities.

completed in December 2017.

Project A improvements at the SR-55/I1-5 Interchange cleared and the design phase began in July | improvements near the I-5/SR-55 Interchange as
I-5 between area between Fourth Street and Newport 2015 stated in M2 Plan due to opposition from the
SR-55 and SR- | Boulevard ramps on I-5 and between Fourth City of Santa Ana and Caltrans. Right-of-Way
57 Street and Edinger Avenue on SR-55. Also, (ROW) constraints as well as City, community,
add capacity on I-5 between SR-55 and SR-57 and Caltrans opposition to options for
to relieve congestion at the “Orange Crush.” realignment resulted in no ramp improvements
on I-5 near the interchange which is consistent
The project will generally be constructed with the M2 Plan language having to do with
within existing right-of-way. Specific subject to approved plans developed in
improvements will be subject to approved cooperation with local jurisdictions and effected
plans developed in cooperation with local communities.
jurisdictions and affected communities.
Improvements to the SR-55 portion of the 5/55
interchange being studied as part of Project F.
Build new lanes and improve interchanges in | The Project Study Report (PSR) was Caltrans requested modification to OCTA’s traffic
Project B the area between SR-55 and the SR-133 (near | completed in 2011. modeling assumptions (the same issue for
I-5 between the El Toro “Y”. The project will also make Projects F, L, and ).
SR-55 and El improvements at local interchanges, such as | An Environmental Study is underway
Toro Y Jamboree Road. (began in May 2014) and anticipated to be | The full standard alternative is very impactful to

the community. Obtaining Caltrans agreement
on implementation of nonstandard design will
be critical to the success of this project, and
support of local jurisdictions and affected
communities.

9/30/2015

61




Measure M2 Freeway Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status Discussion / Constraints

(July 2015) (April 2015)

Project C Add new lanes in the vicinity of the El Toro Design is underway for I-5 improvements | Caltrans had indicated they were not able to

I-5 south of Road Interchange in Lake Forest to the for all three segments between SR-73 and | perform the ROW work on the three segments
theY vicinity of SR-73 in Mission Viejo. Also add El Toro Road. of I-5 between SR-73 and El Toro Road since they

new lanes on I-5 between Pacific Coast
Highway and Avenida Pico Interchanges to
reduce freeway congestion in San Clemente.
The project will also make major
improvements at local interchanges as listed
in Project D.

The project will generally be constructed
within existing right-of-way. Specific
improvements will be subject to approved
plans developed in cooperation with local
jurisdictions and affected communities.

Anticipated design completion by

segment:

1. SR-73to Oso Parkway: January 2018

2. 0Oso Parkway to Alicia Parkway: June
2017

3. Alicia Parkway to El Toro Road: June

2018

Construction is underway for I-5
improvements between Avenida Pico and
San Juan Creek Road for all three
segments.

Anticipated construction completion by

segment:

1. Avenida Pico to Vista Hermosa:
August 2018

2. Vista Hermosa to Pacific Coast
Highway: March 2017

3. Pacific Coast Highway to San Juan

Creek Road: September 2016

are not the lead for design on this project. OCTA
and Caltrans negotiated through this issue and
staff anticipates that an agreement will be in
place soon to get this project back on schedule.

For the segment from Oso Parkway to Alicia
Parkway, offsite soundwalls and private property
‘touches’ are a concern.

Mainline improvements will need to be closely
coordinated with the El Toro Road Interchange
improvements provided under Project D.

The southernmost segment between Avenida
Pico and San Juan Creek Road is proceeding
smoothly. However, a slope stabilization issue
has been identified that will require additional
funding to resolve. The ROW acquisition process
at the Avenida Pico Interchange will have to be
closely monitored due to the acquisition of two
commercial properties.

9/30/2015

62




Measure M2 Freeway Program

M2 Project
(July 2015)

Investment Plan Description

Current Status
(April 2015)

Discussion / Constraints

Project D

I-5 South: Five
Local
Interchanges

Update and improve key I-5 interchanges

such as El Toro Road, Avenida Pico, Ortega
Highway, Avery Parkway, La Paz Road, and
others to relieve street congestion around
older interchanges and on ramps. Specific
improvements will be subject to approved
plans developed in cooperation with local
jurisdictions and affected communities.

Three interchange improvements at La Paz,
Avery Parkway, and Avenida Pico are a part
of Project C.

A Project Study Report was completed for
El Toro Road in February 2015.
Environmental is planned to begin in
October 2016.

Construction is underway on Ortega
Highway and is anticipated to be
complete in December 2015.
Construction is also underway on Avenida
Pico as part of the mainline project
between Avenida Pico and Vista
Hermosa. Construction is anticipated to
be complete in August 2018.

Avery Parkway is part of the mainline
project between SR-73 and Oso Parkway,
with design underway and expected to be
complete January 2018. La Paz Road is
part of the mainline project between Oso
and Alicia Parkways, with design
underway and expected to be complete
June 2017.

Staff and Caltrans have finalized the Project
Study Report for the El Toro Road Interchange.
This project will be challenging to find a
compromise between what Caltrans believes is
needed to address congestion in the area and
the cities concerns over ROW impacts.

The other interchange projects are moving
forward without issue at this time.

Project E
SR-22 Access
Improvements

Construct interchange improvements at
Euclid Street, Brookhurst Street and Harbor
Boulevard to reduce freeway and street
congestion near these interchanges.

Specific improvements will be subject to
approved plans developed in cooperation
with local jurisdictions and communities.

Improvements to the three interchanges
were accomplished during the bonus M1
SR-22 improvement project.

Complete

9/30/2015

63




Measure M2 Freeway Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status Discussion / Constraints
(July 2015) (April 2015)
Add new lanes to SR-55 between SR-22 and |- | The environmental phase for the SR-55 Caltrans has requested modification to OCTA's
Project F 405, generally within the existing right-of- between the I-405 and I-5 was delayed traffic modeling assumptions (same as for
SR-55 between | way, including merging lanes between due to Caltrans requirement that OCTA Projects B, L, and I). The Caltrans’ request added
I-5 and 1-405 interchanges to smooth traffic flow. revise completed traffic studies. The revised | months to the schedule. Technical studies have
studies are currently being reviewed by now been revised and are awaiting Caltrans
The project will generally be constructed Caltrans. Environmental is anticipated to be | approval to move forward.
within existing right-of-way. Specific complete in November 2016.
improvements will be subject to approved Caltrans’ degradation and managed lane policy is
plans developed in cooperation with local The draft Project Study Report for SR-55 not defined and they are looking project-to-
jurisdictions and affected communities. between I-5 and SR-91 is complete. project to address these needs. This issue has
Environmental is anticipated to begin May | become a risk for all non-environmentally
2016. cleared M2 projects.
Build a new northbound lane between Construction is complete for the following | Improvements to the Lambert Interchange are
Project G Orangewood Avenue and Lambert Road. segments: included to address the widened freeway.
SR-57 between | Other projects include improvements to the e Yorba Linda Boulevard to Lambert Additionally, a larger project to improve the
Orangewood Lambert interchange and the addition of a Road Lambert Interchange is being separately pursued
Avenue and northbound truck climbing lane between e Katella Avenue to Lincoln Avenue by the City of Brea as a M2 CTFP project. Design

Tonner Canyon
Road

Lambert and Tonner.

The improvements will be designed and
coordinated specifically to reduce congestion
at the SR-57/SR-91 Interchange. The
improvements will be made generally within
existing right-of-way. Specific improvements
will be subject to approved plans developed
in cooperation with local jurisdictions and
affected communities.

e Orangethorpe Avenue to Yorba Linda
Boulevard

The Project Study Report is complete for
the segment from Orangewood Avenue to
Katella Avenue, with environmental
anticipated to begin November 2015.

The environmental phase for the truck
climbing lane from Lambert to Tonner
Canyon roads is anticipated to start late
2016.

refinements may include ROW and construction
costs. The City will have design refinements
ready for review in 2015.

A Project Study Report on the truck climbing
lane was completed several years ago. A quick
update to the document will likely be needed to
revalidate prior to moving into the
environmental phase. This is one of the nine
future projects to be cleared environmentally by
2020.

9/30/2015

64




Measure M2 Freeway Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status Discussion / Constraints
(July 2015) (April 2015)
Add capacity in the WB direction and provide | Construction is underway and planned for | Nothing of significance to report at this time.
Project H operational improvements at on/off ramps to | completion in July 2016.
SR-91 the SR-91 between I-5 and SR-57, generally
westbound within existing right-of-way, to smooth traffic

from SR-57 to
I-5

flow and relieve the SR-57/SR-91
interchange. Specific improvements will be
subject to approved plans developed in
cooperation with local jurisdictions and
affected communities.

Project |

SR-91 between
SR-55 and SR-
57

SR-91 from
Tustin Avenue
Interchange to
SR-55

Improve the SR-91/SR-55 to SR-91/SR-57
interchange complex, including nearby local
interchanges such as Tustin Avenue and
Lakeview as well as adding freeway capacity
between SR-55 and SR-57.

The project will generally be constructed
within existing right-of-way. Specific
improvements will be subject to approved
plans developed in cooperation with local
jurisdictions and affected communities.

The Project Study Report was completed
December 2014 for the segment between
SR-57 and SR-55. The environmental
phase is underway and anticipated to be
complete in October 2018.

Construction is underway on the segment
between the Tustin Avenue Interchange
and SR-55, and is planned for completion
in July 2016.

Caltrans has requested modification to OCTA's
traffic modeling assumptions on the segment
between SR-55 and SR-57 (same issue on
Projects F, B, and L).

During the Project Study Report phase for this
project, Caltrans required the completed report
to include the realignment of the WB SR-91 to SB
SR-55 Interchange connector as an alternative.
OCTA does not believe this connector
realignment alternative is a viable project
alternative due to lack of downstream capacity
and the high cost and ROW impacts. OCTA
agreed to include it for further study during the
environmental phase. The additional cost of the
realignment to the interchange is not fundable
with Measure M and will be an issue as it
proceeds through the environmental review.

No issues on the segment in construction at this
time.

9/30/2015

65




Measure M2 Freeway Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status Discussion / Constraints
(July 2015) (April 2015)

This project adds capacity on SR-91 beginning | A lane in each direction (six miles) Nothing of significance to report at this time.
Project ) at SR-55 and extending to the I-15 in between SR-55 and SR-241 was

SR-91 between
SR-55 and the
County Line

Riverside County. The first priority will be to
improve the segment of 91 east to SR-241.
The goal is to provide up to four new lanes of
capacity between SR-241 and County Line by
making best use of available freeway
property, adding reversible lanes, building
elevated sections and improving connections
with the SR-241.

These project would be constructed in
conjunction with similar coordinated
improvements in RC extending to I-15 and
provide a continuous set of improvements
between SR-241 and I-15. The portion of
improvements in Riverside County will be
paid for from other sources. Specific
improvements will be subject to approved
plans developed in cooperation with local
jurisdictions and affected communities.

completed in December 2010.

A lane in the eastbound direction (six
miles) between SR-71 in Riverside County
and SR-241 was completed January 2011.
This improvement was to match an earlier
lane (non-Measure M) completed in the
westbound direction.

Riverside County Transportation
Commission (RCTC) is funding and
managing the extension of the Express
Lanes in Orange County to I-15 in
Riverside County.

An additional lane will be added between
SR-241 and the County line as well as to
the SR-71 by RCTC. This is later in the
program and will need to be done in
synchronization with RCTC.

9/30/2015

66




Measure M2 Freeway Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status Discussion / Constraints
(July 2015) (April 2015)

Add new lanes to the 1-405 between the |1-605 | The Final Project Report/Environmental On July 25, 2014, Caltrans chose Alternative 3 as
Project K and SR-55, generally within the existing right- | Impact Report/Environmental Impact the preferred alternative (PA) and identified $82
I-405 between | of-way. The project will make best use of Statement was signed by Caltrans in million in up front funds to implement the
SR-55 and available freeway property, update March 2015. The project is now express lane portion of the project. In lieu of
1-605 interchanges and widen all local proceeding with Design/Build. losing local control on how the project would be

overcrossings according to city and regional
master plans.

The improvements will be coordinated with
other planned I-405 improvements in the I-
405/SR-22/1-605 interchange are to the north
and I-405/SR-73 improvements to the south.
The improvements will adhere to
recommendations of the 1-405 MIS (as
adopted by the OCTA Board on October 14,
2005) and will be developed in cooperation
with local jurisdictions and affected
communities.

Construction is anticipated to begin in
February 2017.

built and ultimately operated as well as use of
future revenue, the Board directed staff
(February 2015) to return to the Board with a
plan for OCTA to proceed as lead agency for full
implementation of Caltrans’ PA, including
policies for operations, management, and excess
revenue use.

The cost of this project is being segregated to
ensure that M2 only pays for the cost of the
general purpose lane, and separate state and/or
federal funds and toll revenue are used for the
cost of the express lane.

The high cost of this project presents a
significant risk to the M freeway plan overall in
terms of delivery, and any significant cost
escalation can easily move the project beyond
delivery reach.

9/30/2015

67




Measure M2 Freeway Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status Discussion / Constraints
(July 2015) (April 2015)

Add new lanes to the freeway from the SR-55 to The Project Study Report was approved by Caltrans has requested modification to
Project L the I-5. The project will also improve chokepoints | Caltrans in 2013. Environmental phase is OCTA'’s traffic modeling assumptions
I-405 between | at interchanges and add merging lanes near on/off | underway and anticipated to be completed | (same issue on Projects F, B, and ).
SR-55 and I-5 ramps such as Lake Forest Drive, Irvine Center in November 2017.

Drive and SR-133 to improve the overall freeway

operations in the 1-405/1-5 El Toro Y area.

The project will generally be constructed within

existing right-of-way. Specific improvements will

be subject to approved plans developed in

cooperation with local jurisdictions and affected

communities.

Improve freeway access and arterial Improve The draft Project Study Report/Project Nothing of significance to report at this
Project M freeway access and arterial connection to 1-605 Development Support document is time.
I-605 serving the communities of Los Alamitos and complete. Environmental phase is
Interchange Cypress. anticipated to begin in July 2016.
Improvements

The project will be coordinated with other

planned improvements along SR-22 and |-405.

Specific improvements will be subject to approved

plans developed in cooperation with local

jurisdictions and affected communities.

FSP provides competitively bid, privately Service is in force. Funding is shared within | Nothing of significance to report at this
Project N contracted tow truck service for motorists with M2 individual project costs, M2 Project N time.
Freeway disable vehicles on the freeway. dollars, as well as registration fees.

Service Patrol

This service helps stranded motorists and quickly
clears disable vehicles out of the freeway lanes to
minimize congestion caused by vehicles blocking

traffic and passing motorists rubbernecking.

9/30/2015

68




Measure M2 Freeway Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status Discussion / Constraints
(July 2015) (April 2015)

A minimum of $243.5 million (2005 dollars) The freeway mitigation environmental With the bulk of acquisition complete, OCTA will
Freeway will be available subject to a Master document is wrapping up with permits need to determine the long-term management
Mitigation Agreement, to provide for comprehensive, approval to follow. plan for the properties.
Program rather than piecemeal, mitigation of the

environmental impacts of freeway
improvements. Using a proactive, innovative
approach, the Master Agreement negotiated
between the OCLTA and state and federal
resource agencies will provide higher-value
environmental benefits such as habitat
protection, wildlife corridors and resource
preservation in exchange for streamlined
project approvals for the freeway program as
a whole.

Freeway projects will also be planned,
designed and constructed with consideration
for their aesthetic, historic, and
environmental impacts on nearby properties
and communities using such elements as
parkway style designs, locally native
landscaping, sound reduction and aesthetic
treatments that complement the
surroundings.

The final Natural Community Conservation
Plan and Habitat Conservation Plan (NCCP/
HCP) as well as the final Environmental
Impact Report/Environmental Impact Study
are both anticipated to be brought to the
Board for adoption in late 2015/early 2016.

Staff anticipates the release of separate
preserve specific Resource Management
Plans (RMP’s) for the five properties
covered in the NCCP/HCP to occur in late
2015.

Seven properties have been acquired to
date totaling 1,300 acres. Eleven
properties have been funded to restore
approximately 400 acres. $55 million has
been approved by the Board. This
includes $42 million for property
acquisition, $10.5 million for restoration
and another $2.5 million for conservation
plan development and related efforts.

Also requiring careful consideration is public
access. There is a strong desire to have public
access to the acquired Preserves for passive
recreational uses (e.g., hiking and horseback
riding). The primary purpose of the program is to
provide comprehensive mitigation to off-set
environmental impacts of the Measure M2
freeway projects. Where the preservation of
biological resources can work in tandem with
public access, OCTA will work with the wildlife
agencies towards this goal.

9/30/2015

69




Measure M2 Streets and Roads Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status Discussion / Constraints

This program, in combination with local Regional Capacity Program: To date, The Regional Capacity Program is moving
Project O matching funds, provides a funding source to | there have been five rounds of funding. A | forward without issue. Funding availability has
Regional complete the Orange County Master Plan of | total of 125 projects in the amount of been affected due to the grade separation
Capacity Arterial Highways (MPAH). The program also | more than $193 million have been program needs where ROW costs and legal
Program provides for intersection improvements and awarded by the OCTA Board since 2011. settlements have had a significant impact on the

other projects to help improve street
operations and reduce congestion. The
program allocates funds through a
competitive process and targets projects that
help traffic the most by considering factors
such as degree of congestion relief, cost
effectiveness, project readiness, etc.

Local jurisdictions must provide a dollar-for-
dollar match to qualify for funding, but can
be rewarded with lower match requirements
if they give priority to other key objectives,
such as better road maintenance and
regional signal synchronization.

OC Bridges Program: Placentia and
Raymond Avenues are both open to traffic
and complete. Construction is underway
at Lakeview Avenue, Orangethorpe
Avenue, Raymond Avenue, State College
Boulevard and Tustin Avenue/Rose Drive
grade separations.

overall cost of project completion.

9/30/2015

70




Measure M2 Streets and Roads Program

M2 Project

Investment Plan Description

Current Status

Discussion / Constraints

Project P
Regional Traffic
Signal
Synchronization
Program

This program targets over 2,000 signalized
intersections across the County for coordinated
operation. The goal is to improve the flow of
traffic by developing and implementing regional
signal coordination programs that cross
jurisdictional boundaries.

The County of Orange and Caltrans will be
required to work together and prepare a
common traffic signal synchronization plan and
the necessary governance and legal
arrangements before receiving funds. In
addition, cities will be required to provide 20
percent of the costs. Once in place, the program
will provide funding for ongoing maintenance
and operation of the synchronization plan. Local
jurisdictions will be required to publicly report
on the performance of their signal
synchronization efforts at least every three
years.

To date, there have been five rounds of
funding. A total of 69 projects in the
amount of more than $56 million have
been awarded by the OCTA Board since
2011.

Nothing of significance to report at this
time.

Project Q
Local Fair Share
Program

This element of the program will provide flexible
funding to help cities and the County of Orange
keep up with the rising cost of repairing the
aging street system. In addition, cities can use
these funds for other local transportation needs
such as residential street projects, traffic and
pedestrian safety near schools, signal priority for
emergency vehicles, etc.

All local agencies have been found eligible
to receive Local Fair Share funds. To date,
approximately $185 million in Local Fair
Share payments have been provided to
local agencies as of the end of the 4th
quarter (FY14-15).

Nothing of significance to report at this
time.

9/30/2015

71




Measure M2 Transit Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status (April 2015) Discussion (PMO)

This project will increase rail services within Safety enhancement of 52 at-grade rail- Forecasts indicate that Metrolink operations are
Project R the county and provide frequent Metrolink highway crossings was completed in 2011. | sustainable through 2041 at a reduced service
High service north of Fullerton to Los Angeles. The | OCTA deployed 10 new Metrolink intra- level than originally planned. Future additional
Frequency project will provide for track improvements, county trains. Effective April 5, 2015, service as part of the Metrolink Service Expansion
Metrolink more trains, and other related needs to several schedule changes were made to (Project R), has been scaled to correspond with
Service accommodate the expanded service. improve utilization of the intra-county available revenue, which results in a limited

The project is designed to build on the
successes of Metrolink and complement
service expansion made possible by the
current Measure M, the service will include
upgraded stations and added parking
capacity, safety improvements and quiet
zones along the tracks as well as frequent
shuttle service and other means to move
arriving passengers to nearby destinations.

The project also includes funding for
improving grade crossings and constructing
over and underpasses at high volume arterial
streets that cross the Metrolink tracks.

trains, including creating a new
connection between the 91 Line and intra-
county service at Fullerton to allow a later
southbound peak evening departure from
LA to OC.

The Sand Canyon grade separation
opened to traffic in July 2014 with project
completion in August 2015. Additional
grade separations at 17" Street and Santa
Ana Boulevard are in the environmental
phase. Ball Road and State College are on
hold pending additional external funds.

A number of rail station improvements
have been completed as well as more
which are underway. Improvements such
as parking expansion, better access to
platforms, improvements to elevators
and/or ramps, are examples.

ability to provide more frequent service. This
program has also been impacted by difficult
negotiations with Burlington Northern Santa Fe,
which owns portions of the railroad tracks, and
new federal and state requirements such as
positive train control and clean fuel locomotives.
Providing additional funds to this program would
allow the service to grow to meet future demand
and also support sustainability goals by providing
an attractive option for commuters using the
freeway.

The additional grade separations originally
planned under Project R should be cleared
environmentally and then put on hold until such
time that a cost benefit analysis shows that
moving forward with these projects is justified.

OCTA'’s re-deployment plan involves providing
new trips between Orange County and Los
Angeles. Discussions with BNSF for additional
redeployment of the Metrolink intra-county
trains to serve inter-county needs is underway
but is dependent on the completion of triple
track between Fullerton and Los Angeles which
is anticipated to be complete in 2016.

9/30/2015

72




Measure M2 Transit Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status (April 2015) Discussion (PMO)
Frequent service in the Metrolink corridor Two fixed guideway project proposals are | To ensure the OC Street Car project is
provides a high capacity transit system linking moving through the project development | competitive for federal New Starts funding, at
Project S communities within the central core of Orange process. The ARC: Environmental Study the request of the City of Santa Ana and the
County. This project will establish a competitive | continues as the City of Anaheim revisits City of Garden Grove, the Board agreed that
Transit program for local jurisdictions to broaden the their preferred alignment. For the Santa OCTA will be the owner and operator of the
E;I(tensliozs to reach of the rail system to other activity centers | Ana/ Garden Grove street car project, the | street car project. This changes the nature of
etrolin

and communities. Proposals for extensions must
be developed and supported by local
jurisdictions and will be evaluated against well-
defined and well-known criteria.

This project shall not be used to fund transit
routes that are not directly connected to or that
would be redundant to the core rail service on
the Metrolink corridor. The emphasis shall be on
expanding access to the core rail system and on
establishing connections to communities and
major activity centers that are not immediately
adjacent to the Metrolink corridor. It is intended
that multiple transit projects be funded through
a competitive process and no single project may
be awarded all of the funds under this program.

design phase began in October 2014. In
February 2015, the Board selected a PMC
consultant and in March, the FTA issued a
Finding of No Significant Impact
concluding the environmental phase. The
project has now been renamed the OC
Street Car and is moving into the design
phase with high marks from FTA. Project is
planned to go into construction in 2017
and completion is anticipated in late
2019/ early 2020.

For Project S rubber tire — one round of
funding has taken place with the Board
awarding $9.8 million for four vanpool
projects serving local employers and train
stations.

OCTA’s role and introduces rail operations to
the agency.

9/30/2015

73




Measure M2 Transit Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status (April 2015) Discussion (PMO)
This program will provide the local Anaheim Regional Transportation Project T has a balance at the completion of
improvements that are necessary to connect Intermodal Center (ARTIC) is the only the ARTIC if no additional projects are added.
Project T planned future high-speed rail systems to project that qualified through a Remaining funds will be considered to backfill
stations on the Orange County Metrolink route. | competitive call for projects for Project T | other Transit programs that are facing
Convert funding. The station was opened on deficits. These may include Project R and
Metrolink December 6, 2014 and Project T is now Project U.
Station(s) to considered complete.
Regional

Gateways to
Connect Orange
County with
High-Speed Rail

Project U

Expand Mobility
Choices for
Seniors and
Persons with
Disabilities

This project will provide services and programs
to meet the growing transportation needs of
seniors and persons with disabilities as follows:

e One percent of net revenues will
stabilize fares and provide fare discounts
for bus services, specialized ACCESS
services and future rail services

e One percent of net revenues will be
available to continue and expand local
community van service for seniors
through
the existing Senior Mobility Program

e One percent will supplement existing
countywide senior non-emergency
medical transportation services

Fare Stabilization: Since inception, more
than 43 million related boardings were
recorded on fixed route and ACCESS
services. Approximately $10.4M has
been utilized for fare stabilization.

Senior Mobility Program: 31 cities
currently participate. Since inception,
more than 908,000 trips have been
provided under this program, and more
than $9.6M paid to the participating
cities.

Senior Non-Emergency Medical
Transportation Services: Since
inception, more than 232,000 trips have
been provided under this program, and
more than $10.7M paid to the County.

Regarding the Fare Stabilization Program,
funding levels are insufficient and the
program has begun to run a deficit (in FY
14/15), and will continue to incur annual
shortfalls if there is no increase in revenue or
a reduction in expenditures. The Board has
received regular briefings on this issue and
staff’s recommendation is to consider
addressing the shortfall using other M2
Transit category funds (possibly Project T
which is complete and has a balance).

9/30/2015

74




Measure M2 Transit Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status (April 2015) Discussion (PMO)
This project will establish a competitive Five cities have received funding through For the next revision of the guidelines which
program for local jurisdictions to develop local | this competitive program for a variety of will occur prior to the Call for Projects, staff
Project V bus transit services such as community based services. The next Project V Call for will make recommendations to the Board

Community Based
Transit/Circulators

circulators, shuttles and bus trolleys that
complement regional bus and rail services, and
meet needs in areas not adequately served by
regional transit. Projects will need to meet
performance criteria for ridership, connection
to bus and rail services, and financial viability
to be considered for funding. All projects must
be competitively bid, and they cannot
duplicate or compete with existing transit
services.

Projects is anticipated to be held in late
2015.

based on lessons learned through
implementation of the La Habra Express and
input from local jurisdictions.

Project W

Safe Transit Stops

This project provides for passenger amenities
at 100 busiest transit stops across the County.
The stops will be designed to ease transfer
between bus lines and provide passenger
amenities such as improved shelters, lighting,
current information on bus and train
timetables and arrival times, and transit ticket
vending machines.

The OCTA Board of Directors approved the
Project W framework at their March 10,
2014 meeting.

At the July 14, 2014 Board meeting, the
Board approved $1,205,666 in M2 Project
W funds for city-initiated improvements
and $370,000 for OCTA-initiated
improvements in fiscal year 2014-15.
Fifteen cities are eligible for Safe Transit
Stops funding, seven cities applied for
funds, and 51 projects will be funded.

None of significance at this time.

9/30/2015

75




Measure M2 Environmental Cleanup Program

M2 Project Investment Plan Description Current Status (April 2015) Discussion /Constraints
Implement street and highway related water To date, there have been five Some of the future policy decisions will entail
quality improvement programs and projects that rounds of funding under the Tier 1 | the appropriate Call for Projects cycle under
Project X will assist Orange County cities, the County and (local scale projects) grants both the Tier 1 and Tier 2 programs. In addition,

Environmental
Cleanup

special districts to meet federal Clean Water Act
standards for urban runoff.

The Environmental Cleanup monies may be used
for water quality improvements related to both
existing and new transportation infrastructure,
including capital and operations improvements
such as:

e Catch basin screens, filters and inserts

e Roadside bioswales and biofiltration
channels

e Wetlands protection and restoration

e Continuous Deflective Separation Units

e Maintenance of catch basins and bioswales

e Other street-related “Best Management
Practices” for capturing and treating urban
runoff

The program is intended to augment, not replace
existing transportation related water quality
expenditures and to emphasize high-impact capital
improvements over local operations and
maintenance costs. In addition, all new freeway,
street and transit capital projects will include water
quality mitigation as part of project scope and cost.

program. A total of 122 projects
totaling approximately $13.8
million have been awarded by the
OCTA Board since 2011.

There have been two rounds of
funding under the Tier 2 (regional
scale projects) grants program. A
total of 22 projects in the amount
of $27.89 million have been
awarded by the OCTA Board since
2013. The third round of funding
for the Tier 2 grants program is
anticipated to occur in 2016.

To date, 33 of the 34 Orange
County cities plus the County of
Orange have received funding
under this program.

This program has resulted in 213
million gallons of water conserved
and nearly 500 cubic feet of trash
removed.

a revisit of the objectives of the two funding
programs to determine if they still meet the
needs of the funding recipients as well as
continue to meet water quality standards will be
key in the upcoming years.

There have been on average two Calls for
Projects annually, consisting of the Tier 1 call for
projects during the early part of the calendar
year while the Tier 2 Call for Projects occurred
during mid-year. Under the Tier 2-type of
regional scale projects, the frequency of Call for
Projects must be carefully examined to
determine if OCTA is providing adequate time
for applicants to develop their projects to a state
where they are “shovel ready.” There will be an
ongoing debate as to the amount of resources
funding applicants are willing and able to expend
upfront in order to be competitive.

As the State Water Resources Control Board and
regional water quality control boards morph
policy and standards, it will be important for the
program to morph to compliment changes. For
example, staff is monitoring the progress of the
Statewide Water Quality Control Plans for Trash
to determine if any refinements are needed
under Tier 1.

9/30/2015

76




Appendix E

MEASURE M TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

LRTP Stakeholder Outreach Groups

LRTP Stakeholder Groups

Active transportation

Alliance for Healthy Orange County
American Cancer Society Cancer Action
Network, Southern California
American Lung Association

Beckman High School

Brea Planning Commission

California High-Speed Rail Authority
Orange County Transportation
Authority Citizens Advisory Committee
California Walks

Caltrans D12

City Anaheim Department of Public
Works

City of Anaheim

City of Fullerton

City of Laguna Beach

City of Laguna Niguel

Community Health Action Network for
Growth through Equity and
Sustainability

Cal State Fullerton ASI Board of
Directors

Cal State Fullerton ASI Executive Senate
Downtown Inc.

Elected officials

Environmental Community

Foothills High School

General Public

Irvine Senior Council

KidWorks Community Development
Coalition

Latino Health Access

Los Amigos High School

Multicultural Leaders

Natural Resources Defense Council
NeighborWorks Orange County

9/30/2015

Orange County Emergency Services
Organization

Orange County Planning Directors
Orange County Visitors Association
Orange County Business Council
Orange County Council of Governments
Orange County Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Orange County Bicycle Coalition

Safe Routes to School National
Partnership

San Diego Association of Governments
Borders Committee

Southern California Association of
Governments Technical Working Group
Southern California Association of
Governments Transportation
Committee

Senior Citizens Advisory Council
Housing/Transportation Committee
Orange County Transportation
Authority Special Needs Advisory
Committee

South Orange County Economic
Coalition

The Bicycle Tree

Transit Advocates

Transportation Engineers

Tustin High School

University of California, Irvine

Urban Land Institute

Women in Transportation Seminar
Orange County

77



MEASURE M TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

Appendix F Measure M2 Infographic Flyer

Ry

5= 47> LOOK AT WHAT A HALF CENT BUYS
“6. MEASURE M2 MILESTONES TO DATE

spent on transportation projects = freeways
that improve life in Orange
County every day.

1/2 cent . M2 NET REVENUE ALLOCATIONS 5 z
Amount of each sales tax penny /. P

32%
streets - Number of rail-highway
grade crossings that

= Atotal of 5% of M2 Freeway Program funds is received enhancements to
’a\/llllqcate'd to the Freeway Environmental improve safety features.
itigation Program

. Atotal of 2% of the overall M2 Program funds is
allocated to the Environmental Cleanup Program

Number of signals synched that will
keep drivers moving efficiently on
the streets, resulting in an average
of 14% travel time improvements.

Number of acres
Number of miles the purchased as

OC Streetcar will preserved open
travel, connecting space.

people from activity/
employment centers
to the Metrolink
Station in Santa Ana.

Gallons of water conserved and
local groundwater potentially
augmented per year as a result
of the Environmental Cleanup
Program.

THREE $368"'million

Allocated to local jurisdictions to
help restore and improve local
streets and roads throughout the
county, with $168 million in
flexible funding through the Local
Fare Share Program and $200
million in competitive funding.

Number of rail grade separation projects
opened to the public. Drivers can travel
seamlessly and safely with the newly
constructed undercrossing on Kraemer Blvd.,
Placentia Ave. and Sand Canyon Ave. The

Amount allocated for ~
remaining five projects are all underway. ;

services to support
seniors and persons
with disabilities.

Percentage
NEARLY of voters in

7 Orange improvements |
County that 5 o underway within
passed the top 100
busiest bus stops. ' -

Number of

Lm> TN

OCTA

Measure M2

in 2006. Share your thoughts: www.octa.net/Measure-M

9/28/2015 78



MEASURE M TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

Appendix G Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Questionnaire Draft

Measure M

Ten-Year Review Questionnaire OCTA

Prior to taking this survey, had you heard of Measure M — Orange County’s voter-approved half cent transportation

sale tax?

[ Yes 0 No [J Not Sure [0 Prefer not to answer
Prior to taking this survey, which of the following Measure M transportation investments were you aware of? (Select
all that apply.)

[ Relieve congestion on the I-5, 1-405, 22, 55, 57 and 91 freeways

1 I i o |

Fix potholes and resurface streets

Expand Metrolink rail and connect it to local communities

Provide transit services, at reduced rates, for seniors and disabled persons

Synchronize traffic lights across the county

Reduce air and water pollution, and protect local beaches by cleaning up oil runoff from roadways
| was not aware of any transportation investments being made.

Other (please specify)

Measure M allows for a variety of improvements to be made to Orange County’s transportation system. Using the
list below, please indicate whether you think each program/project should be a high priority, a medium priority, or a
low priority. Please keep in mind that not all improvements can be high priorities.

Priority Shouldn’t

N

Measure M Improvements ‘ ‘ Do This Suc;te

High Medium Low Project
Improve/widen the freeways @) @) @) @) @)
Expand the Metrolink rail service @) @) @) @) @)
Expand vanpool programs @) @) @) @) @)
Improve ACCESS paratransit service for people with @) @) @) @) @)
disabilities
Construct roads over or under rail tracks where needed to O @) @) @) @)
improve traffic flow
Coordinate traffic signals on major roadways to improve O @) @) O O
traffic flow
Fix potholes and repair roadways @) @) @) @) @)
Improve amenities at transit stops and stations @) O @) @) @)
Provide transit services to seniors and the disabled at a @) @) @) @) @)
discounted rate
Provide free assistance and tow truck service to motorists @) O @) @) @)

who break down on freeways

9/30/2015 79



MEASURE M TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

Priority Shouldn’t Not

Measure M Improvements (cont.) h g Do This e
Hig Medium Low Project

Clean up polluted runoff from roads to reduce water @) @) @) @) @)
pollution and protect local beaches
Close gaps, improve intersections, and reduce traffic @) @) @) @) @)
congestion on major roads throughout the county
Improve access to Metrolink stations using shuttles, light @) @) @) @) @)
rail, and other transit services
Add local bus and shuttle services in communities that @) @) O O O
aren’t well served by regional transit services.
Preserve and restore open space land to offset the impacts @) @) @) O O
of freeway improvement projects
Cleanup and conserve water resulting from urban runoff O @) @) O @)

Now that you have a bit more information about all the different Measure M programs/projects, do you feel that
Measure M is on track to provide Orange County with transportation solutions?

O Yes O For the most part O No 0 Notsure

Do you believe it is important to ensure that Measure M is delivered as promised to the voters?
O Yes O For the most part O No O Not sure

How would you enhance these programs once all Measure M projects are delivered?

What is your number one transportation priority?

What is your primary mode of transportation?
(Please select one.)
[ Drive freeways O Transit

O Drive local streets / O Bicycle / Walking

roads

How long have you lived in Orange County?

O Lessthan 5 years
[0 10to 20 years

O While | don’t live in Orange County,
| do work in Orange County

Please provide your postal ZIP Code:

O 5to 10 years
O More than 20 years

[ I don’t live or work in Orange County

Please provide your age (optional):

Please provide your name (optional):

9/30/2015

80



MEASURE M TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

Would you like to receive emails from OCTA about Measure M and related projects?
O Yes O No

If yes, please provide your email address:

Thank you for your feedback! By completing this survey, you help ensure that Measure M delivers on its promise to the
voters of Orange County and keeps us moving!

You can learn more about OCTA’s delivery of Measure M at http://www.octa.net/Measure-M

9/30/2015 81


http://www.octa.net/Measure-M

MEASURE M TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

Appendix H Media Alert — Measure M2 Survey

FOR MORE INFORMATION: FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE:
Joel Zlotnik (714) 560-5713 Aug. 10, 2015
OCTA Eric Carpenter (714) 560-5697

OCTA seeks public feedback on Measure M
as part of 10-year review

Measure M program plans to deliver approximately $15.7 billion worth of transportation improvements to
Orange County by 2041

ORANGE - Nearly 10 years have passed since Measure M, a half-cent sales tax for transportation
improvements, was renewed by nearly 70 percent of Orange County voters in 2006.

To help gauge the progress of the program so far, the Orange County Transportation Authority is asking
residents to share their thoughts on Measure M in a new online survey.

Sales tax collection for Measure M began in April 2011. By the year 2041, the Measure M program plans
to deliver approximately $15.7 billion worth of transportation improvements to the region, making it safer,
easier, and more pleasant to live and travel in Orange County.

So far, Measure M funds have been used to carry out $900 million in freeway improvements, purchase
1,300 acres of open space for preservation as part of a freeway mitigation program and enhance 52 rail-
highway grade crossings, among other upgrades.

Residents can learn more about these projects and others in the works that will improve Orange County
neighborhoods and commutes at www.octa.net/Measure-M.

On the web page, residents may also click on the Measure M2 Ten-Year Review Questionnaire to share
their opinions about Measure M and transportation improvement priorities for Orange County.

The feedback being collected is part of a requirement of the Measure M ordinance passed by voters, which
calls for a comprehensive review of projects and programs at least every 10 years.

Measure M was extended for 30 years following the success of the first 20-year program approved by voters
in 1990. The first Measure M brought more than $4 billion worth of transportation improvements to Orange
County, including adding 192 freeway lane miles, improving 170 intersections and 38 freeway interchanges,
and implementing Metrolink service in Orange County.

HHH

9/30/2015 82


http://www.octa.net/Measure-M
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/7HX6DCK

MEASURE M TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

Appendix |
Thoughts

ORANGE COUNTY

On the move

A blog on OCTA transportation news & events

OCTA Blog Post — Learn About M2 and Share Your

Learn about Measure M2 Transportation Improvements
and Share Your Thoughts

Wednesday, June 17,2015
«¢ ShareThis'

Measure M2, Orange County’s half-cent sales tax for
transportation improvements, will reach its 10-year anniversary in 7
November 2016 since being passed by nearly 70 percent of the
voters in 2006. In this short amount of time, Measure M2 has

provided for $900 million to improve freeways, purchased 1,300
acres of open space for preservation, and made enhancements
to 52 rail-highway grade crossings. These are just a few of the
Measure M2 milestones that have helped improve the lives of Orange County residents.

W Tweet | 1

As part of the M2 Ten Year Review, OCTA is reaching out to residents to collect feedback
regarding Measure M2. To learn more about Measure M2’s progress and to provide your
thoughts, please click here.

A 30-year extension of an earlier program, Measure M2 was passed following the successful
delivery of transportation improvements by its predecessor, Measure M1. Sales tax collection
for Measure M2 began in April 2011.

9/28/2015

A

sections

Freeways & Streets
M About

recent posts

» OCTA Helps Form New Vanpools to
Reduce Car Traffic and Pollution

» Metrolink Labor Day Service Alert

» Ride Metrolink Free to San Juan
Capistrano’s Greek Festival

» On Labor Day Weekend, Take
Metrolink to the Orange International
Street Fair

» OCTA Increases Efforts to Raise Public
Awareness and Provide Help to Human
Trafficking Victims

Sex and labor trafficking

IT"S MODERN
DAY SLAVERY.
MAKE A

DIFFERENCE.

BE THE ONE

T0 HELP OUT

83



MEASURE M TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

Appendix J Newsletter Copy — Learn About M2 and Share Your Thoughts

Learn about Measure M2 Transportation Improvements and Share Your
Thoughts

It has been nearly 10 years since Measure M2, Orange County’s half-cent sales tax for
transportation improvements, was approved by nearly 70 percent of the
voters in 2006. A 30-year extension of an earlier program, Measure M2
was passed following the successful delivery of transportation
improvements by its predecessor, Measure M1. Sales tax collection for
M2 began in April 2011.

In this short amount of time, M2 has provided for $900 million to improve
freeways, purchased 1,300 acres of open space for preservation, and made enhancements to
52 rail-highway grade crossings. These are just a few of the Measure M2 milestones that have
helped improve the lives of Orange County residents.

As part of the Measure M2 Ten-Year Review, the Orange County Transportation Authority
(OCTA) is asking stakeholders, such as members of the Orange County Association of
REALTORS, for feedback on the progress of M2 transportation improvements going on
throughout Orange County. To learn more about Measure M2’s progress and to provide your
thoughts, please click here.

Questions? Contact Emily Mason, OCTA Community Relations, at emason@octa.net or
714-560-5421.

9/30/2015 84


http://blog.octa.net/learn-about-measure-m2-transportation-improvements-and-share-your-thoughts?CategoryId=e111889f-4403-43f7-928c-c1a99ea294c4
http://blog.octa.net/learn-about-measure-m2-transportation-improvements-and-share-your-thoughts?CategoryId=e111889f-4403-43f7-928c-c1a99ea294c4
http://www.octa.net/Measure-M
mailto:emason@octa.net
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/7HX6DCK

MEASURE M TEN-YEAR COMPREHENSIVE REVIEW

Appendix K Letter to State and Federal Transportation Stakeholders

August 27, 2015

Dear Transportation Stakeholder:

It has been nearly 10 years since Measure M2, Orange County’s half-cent sales tax for
transportation improvements, was approved by nearly 70 percent of the voters in 2006. A 30-
year extension of an earlier program, Measure M2 was passed following the successful
delivery of transportation improvements by its predecessor, Measure M1. As part of the
Measure M2 Ten-Year Comprehensive Program Review, OCTA is asking stakeholders to
provide their feedback on all the different Measure M2 transportation improvements going on
throughout Orange County.

If there are any specific comments you would like us to consider as part of this review, we
encourage you to fill out the online survey which can be accessed at:

http://www.octa.net/Measure-M/

You can also find a Measure M2 Progress Report PowerPoint and Milestone Infographic at
the above website. Since these recommendations are for time-sensitive documents, we would
appreciate receiving your suggestions by September 18, 2015. When the Ten-Year
Comprehensive Program Review report is completed, we can provide you with a copy for your
review.

If you have any other ideas, comments or questions, please contact Brandon Bullock,
Associate Government Relations Representative, at (714) 560-5389 or by email at
bbullock@octa.net.

Sincerely,

Darrell Johnson
Chief Executive Officer

DJ:bb

9/30/2015 85


http://www.octa.net/Measure-M/
mailto:bbullock@octa.net

|Information
ltems






OCTA COMMITTEE TRANSMITTAL

August 10, 2015

To: Members of the Board of Directors
From: Laurena Weinert, 6I)erk of the Board
Subject: Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

- 2016 Annual Calls for Projects

Regional Planning and Highways Committee Meeting of August 3, 2015

Present: Directors Donchak, Lalloway, Miller, Nelson, Spitzer, and Ury
Absent: Director Bartlett

Committee Vote

This item was passed by the Members present.

Committee Recommendations

A. Approve the proposed revisions to the Comprehensive Transportation
Funding Programs guidelines.

B. Authorize staff to issue the 2016 annual call for projects for the
Regional Capacity Program for approximately $38 million.

C. Authorize staff to issue the 2016 annual call for projects for the
Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program for approximately
$12 million.

Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding
Programs - 2016 Annual Calls for Projects

Staff Report



OCTA

August 3, 2015

To: Regional Planning and Highways Committee
From: Darrell Johnson, Chief Executive Officer
Subject: Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs -

2016 Annual Calls for Projects

Overview

The Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Guidelines provide the
mechanism for the administration of the annual competitive calls for projects for
the countywide Regional Capacity Program (Project O) and the Regional Traffic
Signal Synchronization Program (Project P). Funding estimates, and the
schedule for the 2016 Regional Capacity Program and Regional Traffic Signal
Synchronization Program call for projects are presented for review and approval.

Recommendations

A. Approve the proposed revisions to the Comprehensive Transportation
Funding Programs guidelines.

B. Authorize staff to issue the 2016 annual call for projects for the Regional
Capacity Program for approximately $38 million.

C. Authorize staff to issue the 2016 annual call for projects for the Regional
Traffic Signal Synchronization Program for approximately $12 million.

Background

Measure M2 (M2) includes a number of competitive grant programs that
provide funding for regional streets and roads projects. The Regional Capacity
Program (RCP) provides funding for improvements to the Orange County Master
Plan of Arterial Highways. The program provides for intersection improvements and
other projects to help improve street operations and reduce congestion. The
Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program (RTSSP) provides funding for
multi-agency, corridor-based signal synchronization throughout Orange County.

Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street / P.O. Box 14184 / Orange / California 92863-1584 / (714) 560-OCTA (6282)



Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding Page 2
Programs — 2016 Annual Calls for Projects

These programs allocate funds through a competitive process and target
projects that improve traffic flow by considering factors such as degree of
congestion relief, cost effectiveness, and project readiness, among other factors.

On March 22, 2010, the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) Board
of Directors (Board) approved guidelines for the Comprehensive Transportation
Funding Programs (CTFP), which serve as the mechanism for administration of
the RCP and RTSSP. The CTFP Guidelines provide the procedures necessary
for Orange County agencies to apply for funding and seek reimbursement for
projects that have been allocated funds. Five annual calls for projects (call) have
been issued to date for both the RCP and RTSSP and, collectively, OCTA has
provided over $246 million countywide for capacity and synchronization
improvement projects. In preparation for the 2016 annual call, updates to the
guidelines have been prepared.

Discussion

The call schedule and funding amounts are updated to reflect the amounts
available for programming ($38 million for the RCP, $12 million for the RTSSP).

In addition, staff has worked with the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to
determine areas of the program guidelines that needed to be adjusted. An effort
was made to review the guidelines entirely to ensure consistency throughout the
document. Primarily, the adjustments are administrative in nature, including one
policy change and point assignment changes in the scoring criteria.

A summary of the administrative adjustments is provided in Attachment A, and
a copy of the CTFP Guidelines manual with the proposed revisions is included
in Attachment B. Policy change and adjustments to the scoring criteria are
discussed in detail below.

Policy Change

Under the current guidelines, right-of-way (ROW) costs and improvements
outside of the roadway ROW are ineligible for participation in the RCP. Recently,
local agencies in the coastal zone have expressed issues with the replacement
of on-street parking as a condition of a coastal development permit. A precept
(number 41) was developed in cooperation with the TAC to address this
situation. Current guidelines require parking replacement to be identified in the
environmental document as environmental mitigation to be eligible for
M2 funds. The environmental mitigation costs are capped at a maximum of
25 percent of the total eligible costs of the project. The policy adjustment
recommended by the TAC removes the 25 percent cap, specifically for ROW
costs for replacement parking within the coastal development permit area.



Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding Page 3
Programs — 2016 Annual Calls for Projects

Scoring Adjustments

As part of the proposed guidelines update, minor adjustments to both the RCP
and RTSSP scoring criteria are being recommended.

For the RCP, the project readiness category has been increased from five points
to ten points. This gives additional weight to projects that are shovel ready.
Additionally, the “operational efficiencies” category has become “operational
attributes (within the roadway)”. This category now includes components for
safety, sustainability, and water conservation.

For the RTSSP, the project readiness category has also been adjusted and
increased from five points to ten points. Projects that have completed preliminary
engineering or are requesting funding to retime the existing synchronized
corridors are given additional consideration. Additionally, the “transportation
significance” category has been adjusted to include recognition of projects that
serve to close the gap on a synchronization corridor, linking two synchronized
sections.

In addition to the policy and scoring criteria changes, formatting and clerical
adjustments have been made throughout the guidelines. The proposed
modifications were approved by the TAC on June 24, 2015, with unanimous
support.

Next Steps

Following Board approval on August 10, 2015, staff anticipates sending out
letters notifying local agencies of the call. Project applications would be due to
OCTA by October 23, 2015. Based on the selection criteria, projects will be
prioritized for the TAC and Board consideration in the spring of 2016.

Awards would be effective with Board approval and become available starting
on July 1, 2016. Some projects may be programmed in subsequent
fiscal years (FY) (FY 2017-18 and FY 2018-19), based on schedules provided by
local agencies.



Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding Page 4
Programs — 2016 Annual Calls for Projects

Summary

M2 provides funds for intersection and arterial improvements (through Project O)
and signal synchronization (through Project P) in an effort to enhance street
operations and reduce congestion. The CTFP serves as the mechanism OCTA
uses to administer the competitive RCP and RTSSP funds. Staff is seeking
approval of proposed modifications to the guidelines and authorization to release
the 2016 annual call.

Attachments

A. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs — August 2015
Guidelines — Proposed Adjustment Summary

B. Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs — August 2015
Guidelines
Prepared by: Approved by:
=AY | [T 5/ )) ‘
) “J\-"",V‘" . NE L2 s 4
Roger Lopez Kia Mortazavi
Senior Analyst, Measure M2 Local Programs Executive Director, Planning

(714) 560-5438 (714) 560-5741



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding
Programs - 2016 Annual Calls for Projects

Attachment A



ATTACHMENT A

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 2015 Guidelines — Proposed Adjustment Summary

Administrative Adjustments

Ensured consistent use of terms and phraseology throughout.

Additional definitions were added to ensure terms frequently used throughout the
guidelines are clearly understood.

Additional clarification on when the timely use of funds countdown begins for the
right-of-way (ROW) phase.

For all applications being submitted for ROW phase funding, a complete
acquisition/disposal plan must be provided.

Any requests for the modeling of proposed new facilities as part of the Regional
Capacity Program (RCP) must be submitted no less than six weeks prior to the
application submittal deadline.

All applications for funding submitted under the RCP using escalated average daily
trips (ADT) must include traffic/turning movement counts taken within the last
12 months. If a project application is not using an escalated ADT, traffic/turning
movement counts taken within the previous 36 months are acceptable.

For both the RCP and Regional Transportation Signal Synchronization
Program (RTSSP) additional active transportation elements have been added as
potentially eligible items.

For the RTSSP additional clarification has been added to better define the deadline
for the submittal of adopted resolutions of support for both the lead and partner
agencies.

For the RTSSP additional guidance has been provided on ways to avoid a timely
use of funds extension request when issuing a combined contract for both the
primary implementation and operations and maintenance phases.



OCTA

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Measure M2 Comprehensive Transportation Funding
Programs - 2016 Annual Calls for Projects

Attachment B



ATTACHMENT B

- METROLINK #

J = Y N
7 |
\ w

COMPREHENSIVE TRANSPORTATION
FuNDING PROGRAMS

AUGUST 2015 GUIDELINES

ORANGE CoUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY


rlopez
Typewriter
AUGUST 2015 GUIDELINES

rlopez
Typewriter
ATTACHMENT B


TABLE OF CONTENTS

l. OV E RV IEWV .o e e e e e e i
I1. FUNDING SOUR CES ...ttt ettt et ettt ettt et ettt e et e e e earanens ii
FEL.  DEFRINIT EON S . e e e e e e e e e e e \Y;
V. P RE CE P T S it viii
V. 2014 CALL FOR PROJECTS — REGIONAL CAPACITY PROGRAM ....cccvevieieiann., xiii
Y= =TI 00 0] N3 Xiii
APPLICATION REVIEW PROCESS ... ettt ettt e et e e et e e et et e e e e Xiv
Y2 od= T N =log @ N =0T 0 11N Xiv
STATE-LOCAL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS (PRIOR CALLS) «vucvvniiiniiiieieeeieeeieeeieeeneeaaaas Xiv
STATE-LOCAL PARTNERSHIP PROGRAM REPORTING ASSISTANCE .. .cueuee e eeeeee e e eeeaeaens XVii
CHAPTER 1 - ELIGIBILITY PROCESS OVERVIEW ...uoiiiii e 1-1
(@)Y AV [ TP 1-1
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING MASTER PLAN OF ARTERIAL HIGHWAYS (MPAH) .................. 1-1
MPAH CONSISTENCY REVIEW AND AMENDMENT PROCESS. .. .tuetntieieeeienteeeeeneeeeesaeessnsaeenenens 1-2
CHAPTER 2 - PROJECT PROGRAMMING ...coiieee e e e 2-1
PROGRAM CONSOLIDATION .« ettt et ettt e e ettt e et e et et e e et et e et e e et e e e enaens 2-1
SEQUENTIAL PROGRAMMING PROCESS ...etttuttniteateeeeesseeaees st eeeastas s s e e saens e sensasenresesenrenees 2-1
FUNDING PROJECTTIONS — CALL FOR PROJECT S ...ttt eee et ettt ettt et nens 2-2
PROJECT COST ESCALATION -t et e e ettt ettt e e ettt et e e e enaens 2-2
PROGRAMMING ADJIUSTMENTS ..t enen et ettt e e et e e e ettt e e et e e et et e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e enaens 2-3
PROJECT READINESS ... et ee ettt et ettt ettt ettt ettt e ettt e e et e e e e e enaens 2-3
PROGRAMMING POLICIES ... e ettt et et e ettt ettt ettt e enaens 2-4
SCHEDULE CHANGE REQUESTS .t tuttiit ittt ettt e e e et e e et e s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e s e e e s e reaeeeneenees 2-4
TIMELY USE OF FUNDS .. e tuiuitttenette e eaeate st eaease e e sa s e e ease s e e ease s e e sare e easereenenrereaenearenenenss 2-5
PROJECT ADVANCEMENTS .. e euee ettt e ettt e e et e ettt ettt e e e et e ettt et e e et enenaens 2-5
SEMISANNUAL REVIEW <. ettt e e e et e et e e e e e 2-6
ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANUP PROGRAM OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORTING ...cvvvveninerreenennnnen 2-7
CHAPTER 3 — SAFE TRANSIT STOPS (PROJECT W) .ttt 3-1
PURPOSE ..ttt ettt 3-1
B LG IBLE APPLICANTS &1ttt ettt te e eaea s et et e et e e e e e e et e e e e s e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e a s e e eneaenens 3-1
PN = =T o7y i (o] N IR 3-1
EVALUATION CRITERIA .. . e ettt e et ettt e 3-2
F N7 =TI = U] NT 0 11N 3-2
e 1210 S 00 S TP 3-2
CHAPTER 4 — TRANSIT EXTENSIONS TO METROLINK (PROJECT S) ..cvvvvvviieiieieene, 4-1
SECTION 4.1 — FIXED GUIDEWAYS .. uiuitttninetstetnee et en e e esa et eata et s ta st s e reaeaenreenens 4-2
SECTION 4.2 — BUS AND STATION VANS . ettt ettt et et e enaens 4-8

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 26442015



TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

CHAPTER 5 — METROLINK GATEWAYS (PROJECT T) cuieuiiiiii e e e 5-1
CHAPTER 6 — COMMUNITY BASED TRANSIT/CIRCULATORS (PROJECT V) ...cccovevvenene 6-1
CHAPTER 7 — REGIONAL CAPACITY PROGRAM (PROJECT O) «eeuvvieiieiieeeeeeeeeeeen 7-1
SECTION 7.1 — ARTERIAL CAPACITY ENHANCEMENTS (ACE) .euniieiei e 7-4
SECTION 7.2 — INTERSECTION CAPACITY ENHANCEMENTS (ICE) ..ucivniiiiiiiiieceee e, 7-22
SECTION 7.3 — FREEWAY ARTERIAL/STREETS TRANSITIONS (FAST) ..ivniiiiiiieeeeceee e 7-33
SECTION 7.4 — REGIONAL GRADE SEPARATION PROGRAM (RGSP).....ccuuiviiiiiiiiieeiieee e, 7-46
CHAPTER 8 — REGIONAL TRAFFIC SYNCHRONIZATION PROGRAM (PROJECT P) ....8-1
SECTION 8.1 — FUNDING GUIDELINES ... cneuen ettt et et e e et e e e e enaens 8-2
SECTION 8.2 — 2013 CALL FOR PROJECTS .. tuttinteeteeeee e ee et e ea s e e e ea e e s e et e s e eaeens e seanrenrenas 8-15
CHAPTER 9 — APPLICATION MATER LALS .. .ot e 9-1
P ROJECT SUBMITTAL - n ettt et ettt ettt et e e ettt e et et et et e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e enaens 9-1
APPLICATION REVIEW AND PROGRAM ADOPTION ... .. tututteuientetestenseessesseasenseesssnsesaeenseasenenrenss 9-1
PROJECT GUIDELINES .. e et et ee ettt ettt e ettt e et e e ettt ettt e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e naens 9-2
APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS ...ttt et ettt et et et e et ettt e e et e e et e e 9-3
O a0 I FoY I TV 1T ) =S 9-3
NI 7Y0 2 1Y S 9-3
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION «. ettt ettt ettt et et et ettt e e et e e et e e ettt e e e e e e eenaen 9-5
CHAPTER 10 — REIMBURSEMENT PROCESS AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS ....10-1
PROCEDURES FOR RECEIVING FUNDS . ... e ettt ettt e 10-1
AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS . . e ettt ettt ettt et e et e 10-2
CANCELLATION OF PROJECT 1vittiinit ittt ettt ettt e ettt e e et et et et e e e et et e eae et e e enee s e enenrereenss 10-2
SECTION 10.1 — RCP INIT AL PAYMENT <.ttt ettt et et e et eaens 10-4
SECTION 10.2 — RCP FINAL REPORT AND PAYMENT PROCESS ... .ueuitiieieeeienieeeeeeeeeeeeneesaeneenns 10-20
SECTION 10.3 — RTSSP REIMBURSEMENTS AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS ...vuiviinieenieneeieneeneenes 10-39
SECTION 10.4 — ECP REIMBURSEMENTS AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS ....vuivniniiniieeiieeeieneenaenss 10-59
CHAPTER L — AUD I T S i e s 11-1
CHAPTER 12 — ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANUP PROGRAM ..ot 12-1
SECTION 12.1 — TIER 1 GRANT PROGRAM ... ettt ettt et e ettt e et eeeaens 12-4
SECTION 12.2 — TIER 2 GRANT PROGRAM.. ...« ettt e et 12-13
EXHIBITS
EXHIBIT 1V-1 COASTAL ZONE BOUNDARY . eteuieuteteutete st sesesenseaseaseseaseassseaseasesesteasessereasenseses XV
EXHIBIT 7-1 STANDARD MPAH CROSS SECTIONS ...ueueuenie et ettt eee e e eeeneeeeaenanns 7-7
EXHIBIT 8-1 RTSSP APPLICATION CHECKLIST «uenenente et e e et e e e e eeaens 8-19
EXHIBIT 8-2 RTSSP SAMPLE RESOLUTION ... uttentutsteentnenseseensnseeeensasesensaseassnsasearasnseeeaens 8-20

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014



TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBITS (CONTINUED)

EXHIBIT 9-1 ARTERIAL CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT APPLICATION CHECKLIST GUIDE ...cvvvuvvneenenennen.
EXHIBIT 9-2 INTERSECTION CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT APPLICATION CHECKLIST GUIDE..................
EXHIBIT 9-3 FREEWAY ARTERIAL/STREETS TRANSITION APPLICATION CHECKLIST GUIDE ..............

EXHIBIT 9-4 SAMPLE RESOLUTION FOR CANDIDATE ORANGE COUNTY CTFP PROJECTS «.cvvvvneeneen.. 9-11

EXHIBIT 12-1 ECP TIER 1 SCORING CRITERIA. . cueneueee e e eeee e e e e e e e e e e e e e enaeneenns 12-11

EXHIBIT 12-2 ECP TIER 1 SAMPLE RESOLUTION ... euttteeee et et e e e e eeees 12-10

EXHIBIT 12-3 ECP TIER 2 GRANT APPLICATION FORM ...cvieeee e 12-21
TABLES

TABLE 4-1 POINT BREAKDOWN FOR PROJECT S (FIXED GUIDEWAY)....cvvunieeririieeeeeeriieeeeennieeeens 4-15

TABLE 4-1 POINT BREAKDOWN FOR PROJECT S (BUS AND STATION VAN) ...cccvvuieiiiiiieeeeiiiees 4-16

TABLE 5-1 POINT BREAKDOWN FOR PROJECT T .uiuitiiiiiit e cie e e et e e e e e e e ee e ea e e e
TABLE 6-1 POINT BREAKDOWN FOR PROJECT V ..iiiiiiiiiii e ettt e e e e e e e

TABLE 7-1 STREET WIDENING SELECTION CRITERIA .. cutuiteiiinet e eeeeneneeeaenseaseeaeensanennennenns 7-18
TABLE 7-2 STREET WIDENING POINT BREAKDOWN ....cuiinitieniiet e eeeaeeneeeanenseaeaeneennenennennenns 7-20
TABLE 7-3 INTERSECTION WIDENING SELECTION CRITERIA ...ueuitetieeeeeteee e eeeeaeeeeeaneneenas 7-29
TABLE 7-4 INTERSECTION WIDENING POINT BREAKDOWN .. cuutuitiiteiianenseneiennenseennensesanennenns 7-31
TABLE 7-5 INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENT SELECTION CRITERIA ...vuiueiiiieieeeeee e eeaeeeeeaeeaeeaas 7-42
TABLE 7-6 INTERCHANGE IMPROVEMENT POINT BREAKDOWN ...uvuieieieieeieneeeeeeeeeaneneeeaneneenas 7-44

TABLE 8-1 RTSSP POINT BREAKDOWN .. .utuiuiiieteteeieeet et eeeteeneeaeaaeaeeasaenesnsaneaeeneenaeneneenen

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

This page intentionally left blank

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152614



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs “3

l. Overview

On November 6, 1990, Orange County voters approved Measure M, a 20-year half-cent
local transportation sales tax. All major transportation improvement projects and
programs included in the original Measure M have been completed or are currently
underway.

Expected growth demands in Orange County over the next 30 years will require agencies
to continue to invest in transportation infrastructure projects. A collaborative effort
between County leaders and the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)
identified additional projects to fund through an extension of the Measure M program.
Voters approved Measure M2 (M2) on November 7, 2006. Ordinance No. 3 (Ordinance)
outlines all programs.

Background

A robust freeway network, high occupancy vehicle & toll lanes, a master plan of arterial
highways, extensive fixed route and demand response bus service, commuter rail, and
bicycle/pedestrian facilities comprise Orange County’s transportation system. Future
planning efforts are considering high speed rail service as part of a statewide system.
Separate agencies manage and maintain each transportation component with a common
purpose: mobility.

OCTA is responsible for planning and coordination of county regional transportation
components. Local agencies generally oversee construction and maintenance of roadway
improvements using a combination of regional and local funding sources derived from
grants and formula distributions.

The Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP) represents a collection of
competitive grant programs offered to local agencies. OCTA administers a variety of
additional funding sources including M2, state/federal gas taxes, and Transportation
Development Act (TDA) revenues.

Guidelines Overview

This document provides guidelines and procedures necessary for Orange County agencies
to apply for funding of transportation projects contained within the CTFP through a
simplified and consistent process. Each program has a specific objective, funding source

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs .
August 20152014 |



o
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ’

and set of selection criteria detailed in separate chapters contained within these
guidelines.

Guidelines are updated on a periodic basis in __coordination with local agencies working
through the Technical Steering Committee (TSC) and Technical Advisory Committee
(TAC). Modifications to the quidelines are discussed in details with the local agency
representatives during the TSC and TAC meetings held to review and approve the
updated guidelines.

Additionally, OCTA may add, modify, or delete hon-M2 programs over time to reflect
legislative action and funding availability.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ..
August 20152014 ]



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ‘5

Il. Funding Sources

Renewed Measure M

M2 is a 30-year, multi-billion dollar program extension of the original Measure M
(approved in 1990) with a new slate of planned projects and programs. These include
improvements to the County freeway system, streets and roads network, expansion of
the Metrolink system, more transit services for seniors and the disabled as well as funding
for the cleanup of roadway storm water runoff.

OCTA shall select projects through a competitive process for the Regional Capacity
Program (Project O), the Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization (Project P), the various
transit programs (Projects S, T, V and W), and the Environmental Cleanup Program
(Project X). Each program has a specific focus and evaluation criteria as outlined in the
guidelines.

OCTA shall distribute Local Fair Share Program (Project Q) funds on a formula basis to
eligible local agencies. The program receives 18 percent of Net Revenues. The formula
is based upon three components:

e Fifty percent based upon population

e Twenty-five percent based upon centerline miles on the existing Master Plan of
Arterial Highways (MPAH)

e Twenty-five percent based upon local agency’s share of countywide taxable sales

Projects that are wholly funded by M2 Fair Share revenues and/or local sources are not
subject to a competitive process. However, program expenditures must maintain certain
criteria as outlined in the Ordinance and M2 Eligibility Guidelines. Local agencies must
conform to annual eligibility requirements in order to receive fair share funding and
participate in the CTFP funding process. Key requirements include:

e Timely use of funds (expend within three years of receipt)

e Meet maintenance of effort requirements

e Use of funding on transportation activities consistent with Article XIX of State
Constitution (Article XIX)

¢ Include project in seven-year capital improvement plan (CIP)

e Consistency with MPAH, Pavement Management Program, and Signal
Synchronization Master Plan

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014 ]|



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs “3

As indicated above, M2 Fair Share revenues are subject to timely use of funds provisions
(must be expended within three years of receipt). If an agency is unable to meet this
provision, an extension of up to 24 months can be granted. Requests for extension on
the timely use of M2 Fair Share revenues will be made as part of the semi-annual review
process. In addition to a written request, the agency will also submit an expenditure plan
of how the funds will be expended.

State/Federal Programs

OCTA participates in state and federal transportation funding programs based on
competitive and formula distributions. OCTA typically earmarks this funding for major
regional transportation projects. From time to time, OCTA may set aside funding, where
permitted, for use by local agencies through a competitive selection process.

Call for Projects

OCTA issues calls for projects annually or on an as needed basis. Secure revenue sources,
such as M2, will provide funding opportunities on an annual basis. OCTA will update
program guidelines and selection criteria periodically. OCTA may offer limited opportunity
funding, such as a state-wide bond issuance or federal grants, consistent with funding
source requirements. OCTA may conduct concurrent calls for projects when necessary.
Detailed funding estimates, application submittal processes and due dates will be updated
for each call for projects and will be included in section V of these guidelines.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs .
August 20152014 v



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ‘"’3

10.

Definitions

The term “agency,” “agencies,” “local agency” or any form thereof shall be
described in Precept 2.

“Competitive funds” refers to funding grants received through the Comprehensive
Transportation Funding Programs (CTFP).

The term “complete project” is inclusive of acquiring environmental documents,
preliminary engineering, right-of-way acquisition, construction, and construction
engineering.

The term “cost overrun” in reference to projects awarded through the CTFP shall
refer to any and all costs beyond the original estimate that are necessary to
complete the approved project scope.

The term “encumbrance” or any variation thereof shall mean the execution of a
contract or other action (e.g. city council award of a primary contract or issuance
of a purchase order and notice to proceed) to be funded by Net Revenues.

The term “escalation” or “escalate” is the inflationary adjustment, as determined
by the Engineering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (CCIl) 20-city
average, added to the application funding request (current year basis) for right-
of-way and construction phases (see Precept 13).

The term “environmental mitigation” is referred to as environmental clean-

up/preservation measures made as-part-ef-theroatway-constructionproject-that
are—reguired-as part of that projects environmental clearance.

The term “excess right-of-way” is right-of-way acquired for projects and deemed
excess to the proposed transportation use. Excess right-of-way designation shall
be acknowledged by applicant during the grant application process.

The term “Fast Track” shall refer to projects that apply for both planning and
implementation phase funding in a single competitive application/call for projects.

The term “Fully Burdened Labor Rates” include WFLR plus overhead (see Chapter
10)

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014 \'



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs "«

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The term “funding grant,” “grant,” “project funding,” “competitive funds,” “project
programming” shall refer to the total amount of funds approved by the Board
through the CTFP competitive process.

The term “Gap Closure” shall refer to the construction of a roadway to its full MPAH
build-out for the purpose of connecting two existing ends of that roadway by filling
in a missing segment or for completing the terminus of an MPAH roadway. This
applies to increased roadway capacity only as it relates to vehicular traffic.

The term “implementing agency” is the agency responsible for managing the
scope, cost and schedule of the proposed project as defined in the grant
application.

The term “lead agency” shall refer to the agency responsible for the submission of
the grant application.

The term “Master Funding Agreements” or any form thereof shall refer to
cooperative funding agreements described in Precept 4.

7 113 7 113

The term “match rate”, “local match”, “local matching funds”, or any variation
thereof, refers to the match funding that an agency is pledging through the
competitive process and disposed of through procedures in Chapter 10.

A “micro-purchase” is any purchase that does not exceed $2,500. For the purposes
of proof of payment, only an invoice is required.

The term *“obligate” or any variation thereof shall refer to the process of
encumbering funds.

“OCFundtracker” refers to the online grant application and payment system used
by OCTA to administer the competitive programs awarded through the CTFP.
Refer to https://ocfundtracker.octa.net/

The term “project phase” or any form thereof shall refer to the three distinct
project phases (Engineering, right-of-way, and construction) OCTA funds through
the CTFP. Additionally, the “engineering phase” shall include the preparation of
environmental documents, preliminary engineering, and right-of-way engineering.
The “right-of-way phase” shall include right-of-way acquisition, and the
“construction phase” shall include construction and construction engineering.

The term “project phase completion” refers to the date all final 3rd party contractor
invoices have been paid and any pending litigation has been adjudicated for either

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs .
August 20152014 VI



B
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs "«

the engineering phase or for the right-of-way phase, and all liens/claims have been
settled for the construction phase. The date of project phase completion will begin
the 180 day requirement for the submission of a project final report as required
by the M2 Ordinance, Attachment B, Section 111.A.9.

22.  The term “reasonable” in reference to project phase costs shall refer to a cost that,
in its nature and amount, does not exceed that which would normally be incurred
under the circumstances prevailing at the time the decision was made to incur the
cost. Factors that influence the reasonableness of costs: whether the cost is of a
type generally recognized as ordinary and necessary for the completion of the
work effort and market prices for comparable goods or services.

23. The term “savings” or “project savings” in reference to projects awarded through
the CTFP are any grant funds remaining on a particular project phase after all
eligible items within the approved project scope have been reimbursed.

23-24. “Sustainability”, as it applies to capacity enhancing infrastructure projects, refers
to project elements that support environmental benefits as recognized through the
Envision Process (www.sustainableinfrastructure.orq).

24-25. The term “Work Force Labor Rates (WFLR)” include direct salaries plus direct fringe
benefits.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ..
August 20152014 VI



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ‘5

This page intentionally left blank

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014 VI



@tﬁ

LT

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

1V. Precepts

1. The OCTA Board of Directors (Board) approved these guidelines on March 22, 2010.
The guidelines subsequently have been amended and approved by the Board as
needed. The purpose is to provide procedures that assist in the administration of
the CTFP under M2 where other superseding documents lack specificity. OCTA, or
an agent acting on the authority’s behalf, shall enforce these guidelines.

2. All eligible Orange County cities and the County of Orange may participate in the M2
competitive programs and federal funding programs included in the CTFP. Other
agencies (e.g. Department of Transportation or local jurisdiction) may participate on
a project, however, one local agency shall be designated as the implementing
agency, shall be responsible for all funding requirements associated with the project,
and shall be the recipient of funds through the program.

3. To participate in the CTFP, OCTA must declare that an agency is eligible to receive
M2 Net Revenues which include local fair share distributions. Failure to meet
minimum eligibility requirements after programming of funds will result in deferral
or cancellation of funding.

4. The lead agency must execute a Master Funding Agreement with the OCTA. OCTA
and lead agencies will periodically amend the agreement via letter to reflect funding
changes through competitive calls for projects.

5. A separate cooperative funding agreement will be issued for any OCTA-led Regional
Traffic Signal Synchronization Program projects.

6. An agency must have a fully executed letter agreement prior to the obligation of
funds. Local agencies may be granted pre-award authority for M2 funded projects
once the letter agreement is executed. Local agencies, at their own risk, may use
this pre-award authority to advance an M2 funded project prior to the programmed
year. Reimbursement will be available in the Board approved programmed year
(see Chapter 10).

7. For transit programs not covered by the letter agreement process (e.g. Projects S,
V and W), pre-award authority is granted upon the Board approval of the funding
grant.

8. Local agencies shall scope projects, prepare estimates, and conduct design in
cooperation with and in accordance with the standards and procedures required by

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs .
August 20152014 IX



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs "«

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

the local agencies involved with the project (e.g., Caltrans, County, state/federal
resource agencies).

Local agencies should select consultants based upon established contract
management and applicable public contracting practices, with qualification based
selection for architectural/engineering (A/E) services, and competitive bidding
environments for construction contracts in accordance with the Public Contracts
Code. Agencies must meet procurement and contracting requirements of non-M2
funding sources which may exceed those identified in the CTFP.

Based upon funding availability, a “Call for Projects” shall be considered annually
but may be issued less frequently.

In each call cycle, OCTA shall program projects for a three year period, based upon
an estimate of available funds.

OCTA will base funding grants on project cost estimates including up to 10 percent
contingency for construction. During the programming process, OCTA adds an
inflationary adjustment.

OCTA shall escalate project grants for years two and three for right-of-way and
construction phases only. OCTA will base escalation rates on the Engineering News
Record (ENR) Construction Cost Index (CCI) 20-city average.

Match rate commitments identified by implementing agencies in the project grant
application shall remain constant throughout the project. This includes projects
where the programming has been escalated for future years. OCTA and
implementing agencies shall not reduce match rate commitments or split the match
rate by phase. Actual project contributions by the local agency or OCTA are
dependent on final project costs and may not be equal to the match rate if a local
agency overmatch exists. Local agency contributions may exceed the committed
local match rate in the event of cost overruns. OCTA will not increase the funding
grant to cover cost overruns. Ineligible expenditures cannot be considered when
calculating the local match rate.

Where a project experiences savings, the local match percentage must be
maintained.

OCTA shall program funds by fiscal year for each phase of a project.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014 X



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ’1

17. An grant for a specific project shall be cancelled if the funds are not encumbered
within the fiscal year the funds are programmed, unless a time-extensiondelay has
been granted_by the OCTA Board.

18. Implementing agencies may request a delay not exceeding a total of 24 months per
project grant. Agencies shall justify this request, receive City Council/Board of
Supervisor concurrence, and seek approval of OCTA staff the Technical Advisory
Committee (TAC), and the Board as part of the semi-annual review process.
Extension requests must be received no less than ninety days prior to the
encumbrance deadline and are not permitted for projects that seek “fast track”
grants.

19. An administrative time extension may be granted for expiring M2 funds for a project
that is clearly engaged in the procurement process (advertised but not yet awarded).

20. Funds that have been encumbered shall be used in a timely fashion. For project
phases, excluding right-of-way, funds will expire after 36 months from
encumbrance. For the right-of-way phase, funds will expire after 36 months from
the date of the first offer letter_and/or, if contract services are required, 36 months
from the contract NTP. Extensions up to 24 months may be granted through the
SAR. Extension requests must be received no less than 90 days prior to the
encumbrance deadline. Additional extensions may be considered on a case by case
basis for the Regional Capacity Program and the Regional Traffic Signal
Synchronization Program.

20-21. Preliminary Engineering allocations can be programmed in two different fiscal
years depending on the project schedule and when certain engineering costs will
need to incur during the project development and implementation phases. Local
agencies can issue a separate NTP on a single contract to ensure compliance with
the timely use of funds requirement. Local agencies may also issue separate
contracts for the funds programmed in different fiscal years. Local agencies are
required to obligate the funds within the same fiscal year of the programming or
request a delay at least 90 days prior to the obligation deadline.

23-22. For all construction projects awarded CTFP funds in excess of $500,000 and/or
exceeding a 90 day construction period schedule, the local agency shall install and
remove signage in accordance with OCTA specifications during the construction
period. The implementing agency may request OCTA furnished signage or it may
choose to provide agency furnished signage so long as said signage conforms to
OCTA specifications as follows: Signage shall include an M2 logo that is a minimum
of 12” tall, an OCTA logo that is a minimum of 3* tall (image files provided by OCTA

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs .
August 20152014 Xl



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ‘:«

upon request), verbiage stating “Street Improvements Funded by Measure M” in
Myriad Pro, bold condensed font at 256 pt. and “Your dollars at Work” in Myriad
Pro, bold condensed font at 180 pt. Agencies will be required to certify that these
signage requirements have been met as part of the initial payment process (see
chapter 10).

22-23. OCTA shall reprogram funds derived from savings or project cancellation based

upon final project status. An implementing agency may request to transfer 100
percent of savings of M2 funds between the phases within a project with approval
from the TAC and Board. Funds can only be transferred to a phase that has already
been awarded competitive funds. Such requests must be made prior to the
acceptance of a final report, and submitted as part of a semi-annual review. SLPP
funds are not eligible for the transfer of savings. Agencies may only use savings as
an aid for unanticipated cost overruns within the approved scope of work.

25.

26.

27.

Where the actual conditions of a roadway differs from the MPAH classification (e.g.
number of through lanes), OCTA shall use the actual conditions for the purposes of
competitive scoring. An agency may appeal to the TAC to request that the MPAH
classification be adjusted/reconsidered.

For the purpose of calculated level of service (LOS), the capacity used in the volume
over capacity calculation shall be 100 percent capacity, or LOS level “E”. Intersection
Capacity Utilization (ICU) calculations shall use 1,700 vehicles per hour per lane with
a .05 clearance interval.

OCTA shall consider matching fund credit(s) for an implementing agency’s proposed
projects current and applicable environmental clearance expenditures. OCTA will
review and consider these expenditures on a case by case basis at the time of
funding approval.

An approved CTFP project may be determined ineligible for funding at any time if it
is found that M2 funding has replaced all or a portion of funds or commitments that
were to be provided by other sources such as: development conditions of approval,
development deposits, fee programs, redevelopment programs or other dedicated
local funding sources (i.e., assessment districts, community facilities districts, bonds,
certificates of participation, etc.). Appeals may be made in accordance with Precept
39.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ..
August 20152014 X



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs "«

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

OCTA may fund environmental mitigation, up to 25 percent of the total eligible
project cost by phase, as required for the proposed project-andg-as contained in the
environmental document. Participating environmental mitigation expenditures are
eligible for funding under certain programs, but not all.

Construction Engineering, Construction Management and/or Project Management
shall not exceed 15 percent of the total eligible project cost. The cap is applied to
the sum of eligible expenses, contract change orders (within the scope of work),
equipment and materials (e.qg. eligible traffic signal equipment).

Contract change orders are only eligible for reimbursement of work due to
unforeseen changed conditions within the original scope of work and not exceeding
10 percent contingency provided in the application cost estimate.

OCTA shall evaluate “whole” projects during the initial review process. Subsequent
phase application reviews shall not include prior phases in the evaluation unless
locally funded and pledged as a match and are subject to OCTA verification. The
criteria for ranking project applications is included in these guidelines as part of each
program component chapter.

Projects that receive competitive CTFP funds shall not use other M2 competitive
funds as a local match source. Lead agencies may request project consolidation.
The TAC and Board must approve consolidation requests. OCTA shall use the
average match rate of the consolidated project’s individual segments.

OCTA shall conduct a semi-annual review of all active CTFP projects. All agencies
shall participate in these sessions through a process established by OCTA. Currently,
OCTA administers the semi-annual review through OCFundtracker. OCTA shall: 1)
verify project schedule, 2) confirm project’s continued viability, 3) discuss project
changes to ensure successful and timely implementation, and 4) request sufficient
information from agencies to administer the CTFP. 5) any potential issues with
external fund sources committed as match against the competitive funds.

For any project experiencing cost increases exceeding 10 percent of the originally
contracted amount, a revised cost estimate must be submitted to OCTA as part of the
semi-annual review process. This is applicable even if the increase is within the overall
grant amount.

Agencies shall submit payment requests to OCTA in a timely fashion. Agencies may
request an initial payment for M2 (generally up to 75 percent of programmed
amount or eligible expenditures, see Chapter 10) once the funds have been

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014 Xt



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs "3

encumbered. The final 25 percent of the available programmed balance will be
released upon the submission of an approved final report.

36. The amount withheld pending the submittal of an approved final report shall be
capped at $500,000 per project phase, but shall in no case be less than 10 percent
of the grant or the contract amount, whichever is less. Should the 75 percent/25
percent payment distribution ratio result in a final payment retention that exceeds
$500,000, the payment percentages will be adjusted to meet the $500,000 cap until
the 10 percent threshold is reached. At no time will the final payment retention be
less than 10 percent.

37. When a project phase is complete, an agency shall notify OCTA in writing within 30
days of completion. The date of project phase completion will begin the 180 day
requirement for the submission of a project final report as required by the M2
Ordinance, Attachment B, Section I11.A.9.

38. An agency shall provide final accounting in an approved final report format (see
Chapter 10) within 180 days of project phase completion. The process for untimely
final reports is described in Chapter 10. Failure to provide a final accounting shall
result in repayment of applicable M2 funds received for the project phase in a
manner consistent with the Master Funding Agreement. Projects funded with M2
funding require a project final report within 180 days of project phase completion
as part of eligibility compliance. Failure to meet eligibility requirements, including
submittal of final reports within 180 days of project phase completion may result in
suspension of all net revenues including fair share funds.

39. The payment distribution ratio referenced in Precept 35 may be modified to a
reimbursement process, at the discretion of the Board, in the event that financing
or bonding is required to meet OCTA'’s cash flow needs.

40. Agencies may appeal to the TAC on issues that the agency and OCTA staff cannot
resolve. An agency may file an appeal by submitting a brief written statement of
the facts and circumstances to OCTA staff. The appellant local agency must submit
a written statement which proposes an action for TAC consideration. The TSC shall
recommend specific action for an appeal to the TAC. The Board shall have final
approval on appeals.

40:41. Projects within the Coastal Zone Boundary, as a requirement of a Coast
Development Permit, may be required to replace existing on-street parking removed
as a result of a roadway widening project. Right-of-way costs to replace the existing
on-street parking can be considered an eligible expense for coastal zone cities only

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs .
August 20152014 XV



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

(see exhibit 1V-1). OCTA staff will work with the local agency staff during the project
application process to determine eligibility of these costs and to identify any excess
right-of-way that will require a disposal plan. OCTA and the local agency will also
establish any savings that will revert back to the Measure M Program after project
completion. The cost of right-of-way required to replace parking should be fair and
reasonable in comparison to the total cost of the project.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

August 20152014 XV



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

Exhibit 1V-1

Coastal Zone Boundary

pel ! .
FJ FULLERTON YORBALINDA .
- | —
PLACENTIA N\ 2
= BUENA = a1 v
,,f A PARK £ — \
/J- PALMA \,
\
| ANAHEIM \
i ovpRESS VILLA \
/ PARK 241 \
N\
p G STANTON
i ALAMITOS
/ N
GARDEN GROVE 4 \\
22] N\
# ~
¥ SEAL BEACH WESTMINSTER ¥
SANTA ANA gal
§ FOUNTAIN
&, VALLEY TUSTIN )
. ) HUNTINGTON Y
© BEACH 135
= IRVINE*
o \
° LAKE
: FOREST B
NEWPORT
BEACH 2 LAGUNA MISSION RANGHO
2 Woans VIEIO SANTA
MARGARITA
Gldl=r
o - LAGUNA
Detail Map 7 HILLS '
@ L}
Q \
= N et
%, LAGUNA 2 S
G BEACH o ! v
= i
=< ! o
‘
LAGUNA s
SAN CLEMENTE NIGUEL 5
SAN JUAN N
CAPISTRANG i
1
DANA i
POINT |
See detail may SAN ‘,
\‘ CLEMENTE !
e Coastal Zone Boundary “\ /
Source: OCTA; California Coastal Commission ¥ /
Coastal Zone Boundary provided by CalTrans !(
0 1,000 6 a 2 4
== e
et WMiles {

Coastal Zone_2011-0314.mxd

J

OCH

POCS\SPIPANF

March 14, 2011 Portions cf this map copyrighted by Thomas Bros Maps and reproduced with permission.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 201526+4

XVi



@tﬂ

LT

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs <

V. 2016 Call for Projects — Regional Capacity Program

The 2645-2016 Call for Projects (call) for Project O — the Regional Capacity Program (RCP)
— under M2 will provide approximately $35—38 million for streets and roads
improvements across Orange County.

Funding will be provided for the three RCP funding programs: ACE, ICE, and FAST (see
Chapter 7). Chapter 7 details the specific program’s intent, eligible project expenditures,
ineligible project expenditures, and additional information that may be needed when
applying for funds. Each section should be read thoroughly before applying for funding.
Application should be prepared for the program that best fits the proposed project.

For this call, OCTA shall program projects for a three year period (FY 45/46—3+/4816/17
—18/19), based upon the current estimate of available funds. For specifics on the funding
policies that apply to this call, refer to the Program Precepts as found in Section IV of
these guidelines.

Applications

In order for OCTA to consider a project for funding, applications will be prepared by the
lead agency. OCTA shall require agencies to submit both online and hardcopy
applications for the 2645-2016 call for projects by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, October 2423,
20442015. Late submittals will not be accepted.

The agency must submit the application and any supporting documentation via
OCFundtracker (see Chapter 9). Additionally, three (3) unbound hardcopies of the
application and any supporting documentation must be submitted to OCTA by the
application deadline. Hardcopy applications can be mailed to:

OCTA

Attention: Roger Lopez
550 S. Main Street

P.O. Box 14184

Orange, CA 92863-1584

Hardcopy applications can be hand delivered to:

600 S. Main Street
Orange, CA 92868

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs ..
August 20152014 XVII



Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs "3

Application Review Process

Once applications are reviewed and ranked according to the Board approved scoring
criteria, a recommended funding program will be developed by OCTA staff. These
programming recommendations will be presented to the TAC for review and comment.
The TAC approved programming recommendations will then be presented to the OCTA
Highways Committee and Board for review and final approval.

Local agencies awarded funding will be notified as to which projects have been funded
and from what sources after the Board takes action. A tentative call schedule is detailed
below:

Board authorization to issue call: August 26442015
Applications-gue-to-0€+A _submittal deadline: October 242614423, 2015
TSC/TAC Review: February/March 26452016

Committee/Board approval: May 26352016

M2 Project O Funding

M2 Project O funding will be used for this call.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014 XVIII



Chapter 1 — Eligibility .

Overview

To apply for the CTFP, local agencies must fulfill an annual eligibility process. OCTA
established this process to ensure that improvements are consistent with regional plans.
The cities and county approved a process reflecting the eligibility criteria found in Measure
M. Eligibility packages are due to OCTA by June 30 of each year.

In order to receive CTFP and M2 Fair Share funds, OCTA must deem agencies as eligible.
OCTA shall annually distribute an eligibility information package to local agencies. Below is
a brief list of requirements:

e Adoption of a Capital Improvement Program

Adoption of a General Plan Circulation Element which does not preclude
implementation of the MPAH

Adoption of a Pavement Management Plan

Adoption of a Local Traffic Signal Synchronization Plan

Satisfied Maintenance of Effort requirements

Approved agreement to expend funds within three years of receipt

Adopt an annual Expenditure Report

Submit Project Final Report for all Net Revenue projects

The M2 Eligibility Guidelines outline the eligibility requirements in detail. OCTA updates the
Eligibility Preparation Manual annually and encourages agencies to use it as a reference
when preparing items to meet eligibility requirements (see
http://www.octa.net/pdf/m2Eligibility.pdf). Agencies will submit a CIP through an electronic
database application (see http://websmartcip.octa.net/). OCTA develops a manual and
workshops to prepare local agency staff for the annual eligibility process.

MPAH Consistency Review and Amendment Process

Through a transfer agreement with the County of Orange, OCTA assumed responsibility for
administering the MPAH starting in mid-1995. As the administrator, OCTA is responsible for
maintaining the integrity of the MPAH through coordination with cities and the County and
shall determine an agency’s consistency with the MPAH. In order to provide a mechanism
to communicate MPAH policies and procedures, OCTA prepared the Guidance for the
Administration of the Orange County Master Plan of Arterial Highways (see
http://www.octa.net/pdf/mpah_guidlines.pdf). The guidance document is to assist OCTA,
the County, and the cities of Orange County to maintain the MPAH as a vital component of
transportation planning in the County. The guidance document outlines, in detail, the MPAH

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152614 1-1



Chapter 1 — Eligibility ”*

consistency review and amendment process. Agencies can find contact information for
OCTA staff assigned to MPAH administration in the manual.

Additional Information Regarding MPAH

The agency's General Plan Circulation Element must be consistent with the MPAH. In order
for an agency's circulation element to be consistent with the MPAH, it shall have a planned-
carrying capacity equivalent to the MPAH for all MPAH links within the agency's jurisdiction.
"Planned capacity” shall be measured by the number of through lanes on each arterial
highway as shown on the local circulation element. Agencies are not considered
“inconsistent” as a result of existing capacity limitations on arterials which are not yet
constructed to the circulation element design.

The agency must also submit a resolution attesting that no unilateral reduction in lanes has
been made on any MPAH arterials. For a sample resolution, see the Measure M2 Eligibility
Guidelines.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152614 1-2



Chapter 2 — Project Programming "E,

Program Consolidation

The M2 RCP improvement categories (ACE, ICE, and FAST) will combine projects into one
application review process. The programs of the CTFP will act as the project funding source.
The consolidation of programs will help eliminate confusion among the various requirements
and allow the greatest flexibility for programming projects. Other funding programs
(Projects S, T, V, W, and X) have similar eligibility requirements, but OCTA will evaluate and
approve these projects through a separate process.

Sequential Programming Process — RCP

Timely and efficient use of funding is a critical success factor for the CTFP. Historically,
agencies were encouraged to develop long term projects spanning three or more years
which often led to delays in implementing final project phases. This dynamic led to larger-
than-anticipated funding program cash balances and an inability to fund smaller time
sensitive projects in the interim.

In response to concerns raised by the Board and the Taxpayers Oversight Committee
responsible for M2 oversight, OCTA will use annual calls that serve a smaller programming
window (3 years), as well as a sequential funding approach for M2 projects. OCTA
expects this new approach to aid in a more timely use of funding and limit the potential
for unanticipated project completion delays inherent with long lead time projects.

Sequential funding is a two-step process. Step One, also known as the planning phase,
includes funding requests for planning/environmental, engineering and right-of-way
engineering activities. Step Two, also known as the implementation phase, includes right-
of-way engineering/acquisition and construction activities. Right-of-way engineering can
be requested in either the planning or implementation phases. Projects must complete
the planning phase before an agency requests implementation phase funding during a
call for projects. Exceptions to this rule include the following:

e An agency may request implementation funding prior to completion of the planning
phase if the jurisdiction can demonstrate that the planning phase activities are
underway and the agency will complete the activities within six months of the
programmed year.

OR

e An agency may request a Fast Track approach, seeking implementation funding
as part of the planning phase. The agency must demonstrate that the policy

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 2-1



Chapter 2 — Project Programming "E,

variance is necessary for timely implementation. The agency will waive the
opportunity to request a project delay under this approach.

Each call for projects will cover a three-year period which overlaps subsequent future
cycles. Funding targets for each cycle are based upon prior funding commitments,
anticipated revenues, reprogramming of unused grants (cancellations and savings), and
a set aside for future funding cycles.

As part of each call for projects, OCTA will determine an appropriate balance between
grants made for the planning and implementation phases.

Funding Projections — Call for Projects

Revenue estimates for M2 are updated annually. Programming decisions are based upon
conservative economic assumptions provided by Southern California academic
institutions. In the future, OCTA will add project cancellations and realized savings from
completed projects to anticipated revenues for redistribution in the first year of each
funding cycle.

Project Cost Escalation

OCTA will escalate approved right-of-way and construction projects in years two and three.
The mirimdr-match rate eemmitments-percentage identified by implementing agencies
in the project grant application shall remain constant throughout the project. This
includes projects where the programming has been escalated for future years. OCTA will
base escalation rates for future years on Engineering News Record (ENR) Construction Cost
Index 20 City Average (CCI) escalation rates.

Programming Adjustments

OCTA bases funding grants on cost estimates that agencies provide and that OCTA
validates against industry norms during the evaluation process. Agencies must provide
estimates in current year dollars.

Projects programmed in Year Two or Year Three of each funding cycle include a CCI-
based adjustment factor for the right-of-way and construction phases only. Lead
agencies shall not receive grant increases. Cost overruns are the responsibility of local
agencies and may count against agencies’ match rate commitment for eligible activities.
Local agencies may request scope adjustments to meet budget shortfalls when the
agency can demonstrate substantial consistency and attainment of proposed
transportation benefits compared to the original project scope.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 2-2



@iﬁ

\REy

s

A

Chapter 2 — Project Programming

When agencies are preparing applications, all cost estimates must be in current year
dollars with Month and Year cited. OCTA will review each cost estimate thoroughly
and will escalate right-of-way and construction costs based on the year OCTA programs the
project grant. For example, if an agency’s cost estimate lists construction costs for a project
and OCTA programs the project for year 3 of the funding cycle, then OCTA will escalate the
costs by the CCl-based adjustment factor, compounded annually, beginning in year 1 of the
funding cycle.

Project Readiness

In an effort to better utilize project funding and maintain project schedules, programming
of funding for CTFP under the tiered approach has been revised. In general, to program
grants for Step Two (right-of-way or construction phases), a project must either have:

1. Approval for environmental clearance (CEQA) for M2 programs, (NEPA and CEQA for
federally funded programs), or;

2. Exempt (categorically or statutorily) under CEQA and/or NEPA (as applicable).

OCTA may consider exceptions to these programming rules, on a case by case basis, if an
agency can confirm that a project will receive environmental clearance prior to the scheduled
start of right-of-way and construction. OCTA will not approve payment requests for right-
of-way and construction until a project receives environmental clearance.

Programming Policies

OCTA will not increase grants after the initial programming for each phase except through
project savings transfers, where applicable.

In order to receive right-of-way and construction grants, a project must have all
environmental clearances in place. OCTA shall not release final payment for the planning
stage (includes final design) until confirmation of environmental clearance is provided.

Agencies are responsible for costs that exceed the project grant, maintaining the project
schedule, and maintaining the project scope.

An agency's grant will be cancelled if the agency does not encumber the funds within the
programmed fiscal year. An agency may request a delay in accordance with the time
extension policy described in the precepts.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 2-3



Chapter 2 — Project Programming "E,

An agency must have a fully executed Letter Agreement prior to the obligation of funds.

As stated above, an agency's grant is based on the project's cost as requested and
programmed with established escalation rates. If project costs escalate beyond original
estimates and the agency is unable to cover additional costs, a request to reduce the project
scope or limits will be considered where feasible. All requests for changes in scope and
limits must be submitted to OCTA in advance of the change. This request will be evaluated
on a case-by-case basis and must be approved by the TAC and the Board prior to initiation
of the change by the lead agency. The lead agency must submit a letter to OCTA no later
than June 30" of the year in which funds are programmed stating the reasons for cost
increases, a proposal for project scope or limit reduction, and an explanation of why
approval of the request is warranted. The review process is similar to the appeals process
mentioned above.

Schedule change requests

Grants approved as part of the CTFP process are subject to timely delivery requirements.
Implementation schedules are determined by the lead agency (applicant). Contract work
must be awarded prior to the end of the programmed fiscal year to encumber the funds.
If work cannot be initiated within this time frame, a request to defer funding may be
submitted to OCTA for consideration. Project status is reviewed every six months during
the semi-annual review process. Expired project funding is subject to withdrawal from
project and reprogramming in a subsequent call for projects.

Funding delays must be submitted to OCTA in conjunction with the semi-annual review
process. These reviews are typically held in Fall and Spring. Emergency extensions after
the Spring semi-annual review may be considered on a case by case basis, but no less
than 90 days prior to the encumbrance deadline. The M2 Ordinance permits a delay for
up to 24 months. Implementing agencies may request a one-time delay of up to 24
months per project grant. Agencies shall justify this request, receive City Council/Board
of Supervisor concurrence, and seek approval of OCTA staff, the TAC and Board as part
of the semi-annual review process. Projects that are expected to incur extensive delays
beyond the parameters of the program should consider cancellation and reapplication at
a future date. Advancement requests may be considered during the review process and
may be approved subject to funding availability.

Timely use of funds
For project phases, excluding right-of-way, funds will expire after 36 months from

encumbrance. For the right-of-way phase, funds will expire after 36 months from the
date of the first offer letter. Extensions up to 24 months may be granted through the

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 2-4



Chapter 2 — Project Programming "E,

SAR. Extension requests must be received no less than 90 days prior to the encumbrance
deadline. Additional extensions may be considered on a case by case basis for the
Regional Capacity Program and the Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program.

Project Advancements

Agencies wishing to advance a project by one fiscal year or more may request project
advancement. Advancement requests will be considered only if program funds are
available. The grant will be de-escalated according to the original escalation rate.

Requests must be submitted as part of the semi-annual review. All advancements will be
reviewed by the TAC and approved by the Board. If approved, the agency and project will
be required to meet the new fiscal year award or encumbrance deadline.

Should OCTA be unable to accommodate an advancement request due to cash flow
constraints, the agency may still move forward with the project using local funding. (See
Precept 6) The lead agency must have a fully executed letter agreement prior to beginning
work. The lead agency may subsequently seek reimbursement of CTFP funds in the fiscal
year in which funds are programmed. Reimbursement shall follow the standard CTFP
process (see Chapter 10). Prior approval is not necessary if the project is being advanced
through local funds.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 2-5



Chapter 2 — Project Programming

Semi-Annual Review

OCTA staff will conduct a comprehensive review of CTFP projects on a semi-annual basis to
determine the status of projects. Project updates will be provided by the local agencies and
uploaded to OCFundtracker. Follow-up meetings to these updates will be held as needed.
Semi-annual project reviews are usually scheduled to occur in March and September of each
year.

Projects are reviewed to:

1. Update project cost estimates. For any project experiencing cost increases

exceeding 10 percent of the originally contracted amount, a revised cost

estimate must be submitted to OCTA. This is applicable even if the

increase is within the overall grant amount.

Review the project delivery schedule

Determine the project's continued viability

4. Verify project operations and maintenance expenditures (e.g.
Environmental Cleanup Program)

5. Discuss any potential issues with external fund sources committed as
match against the competitive funds

w

Prior to each review meeting, OCTA staff will distribute a list of active projects to each local
agency. Each agency will be contacted and asked to participate in the upcoming review
where each agency's project schedules, cost estimates, and scope will be reviewed.
Agencies will be given the opportunity to request program changes (e.g. delaying and
advancing funds from one fiscal year to another) and each adjustment will be considered
on a case-by-case basis. The agency should be prepared to explain any changes and
provide all necessary supporting documentation. Generally, the local agency is responsible
for the implementation of the projects as approved by OCTA, however consideration will be
given for circumstances beyond the lead agency’s control that affect scope, cost, or
schedule.

Based on the semi-annual review meetings, OCTA staff will develop and present
recommendations for project adjustments to the TAC. Requests for project changes
(delays, advancements, scope modifications, etc.) will be considered on an individual basis.
The following action plan has been developed for the semi-annual review process:

e Require local agencies to submit status reports, project worksheets, and supporting
documentation to OCTA for all project adjustments.

e Require local agencies to abide by Time Extension Policy:

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 2-6



Chapter 2 — Project Programming "E,

Agencies may request a delay of up to 24 months per grant. Local agencies
will be required to justify this request and seek approval of OCTA staff, the
TAC, and the Board as part of the semi-annual review process.

Approved schedule changes will require an update of the local jurisdiction’s
seven-year CIP and the OCTA cooperative funding agreement.

Evidence of Council approval (resolution, minute order, or notification) must
be provided prior to Board approval of delays.

An administrative extension may be granted for expiring M2 funds for a
project phase that is clearly engaged in the procurement process
(advertised but not yet awarded).

Agencies that have requested Fast Track funding cannot request time
extensions.

Environmental Cleanup Program Operations and Maintenance Reporting

For Tier 1 of the Environmental Cleanup Program, ongoing operations and maintenance
of the project can be pledged as a match (page 12-6). As part of the semi-annual review
reporting process, OCTA will verify local agency operations and maintenance expenditures
to ensure minimum match rate commitments are being met. Local agencies must complete
Form 10-17 (available for download from OCFundtracker) for each ECP grant as part of their
semi-annual review updates.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

August 20152614

2-7



Q‘iﬁ

\REy

s

A

Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Introduction

The RCP is a competitive program that will provide more than $1 billion over a thirty year
period. The RCP replaces the Measure M local and regional streets and roads competitive
programs (1991-2011).

Although each improvement category described in this chapter has specific eligible
activities, the use of RCP funding is restricted to and must be consistent with the
provisions outlined in Article XIX. In the case of any ambiguity related to Article XIX, the
California State Controllers Guidelines Relating to Gas Tax Expenditures will provide
additional clarification.

The MPAH serves as the backbone of Orange County’s arterial street network.
Improvements to the network are required to meet existing needs and address future
demand. The RCP is made up of three (3) individual program categories which provide
improvements to the network:

e The ACE improvement category complements freeway improvement initiatives
underway and supplements development mitigation opportunities on arterials
throughout the MPAH.

e The ICE improvement category provides funding for operational and capacity
improvements at intersecting MPAH roadways.

e The FAST focuses upon street to freeway interchanges and includes added
emphasis upon arterial transitions to interchanges.

Projects in the arterial, intersection, and interchange improvement categories are
selected on a competitive basis. All projects must meet specific criteria in order to
compete for funding through this program.

Also included under the RCP is the Rail Grade Separation Program (RGSP), which is meant
to address vehicle delays and safety issues related to at-grade rail crossings. Seven rail
crossing projects along the MPAH network were identified by the CTC to receive TCIF.
TCIF allocations required an additional local funding commitment. To meet this need,
the Board approved the commitment of $160 million in RCP funds to be allocated from
M2. The RGSP captures these prior funding commitments. Future calls for projects for
grade separations are not anticipated.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-1



Q‘iﬁ

\REy

s

A

Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Funding Estimates

Funding will be provided on a pay-as-you go basis. The RCP will make an estimated $1.1
billion (in 2005 dollars) available during the 30-year M2 program. Programming estimates
are developed in conjunction with periodic calls for projects. Funding is shared with
intersection, interchange and grade separation improvement categories. No
predetermined funding set aside has been established for street widening.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-2



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Section 7.1 — Arterial Capacity Enhancements (ACE)

Overview

The MPAH serves as the backbone of Orange County’s arterial street network.
Improvements to the network are required to meet existing needs and address future
traffic demand. The ACE improvement category complements freeway improvement
initiatives underway, supplements development mitigation activities and enables
improvements based upon existing deficiencies.

Projects in the ACE improvement category are selected on a competitive basis. Projects
must meet specific criteria in order to compete for funding through this program.

Objectives

e Complete MPAH network through gap closures and construction of missing
segments

e Relieve congestion by providing additional roadway capacity where needed

e Provide timely investment of M2 Revenues

e Leverage funding from other sources

Project Participation Categories

The ACE category provides capital improvement funding (including planning, design,
right-of-way acquisition and construction) for capacity enhancements on the MPAH for
the following:

e Gap closures — the construction of a roadway to its full MPAH build-out for the
purpose of connecting two existing ends of that roadway by filling in a missing
segment or for completing the terminus of an MPAH roadway. This applies to
increased roadway capacity only as it relates to vehicular traffic.

e Roadway widening where additional capacity is needed

e New roads / extension of existing MPAH facility

Eligible Activities

Planning, environmental clearance

Design

Right-of-way acquisition

Construction (including curb-to-curb, tandseapirg;-lighting, drainage, etc.)

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-3



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ”

Potentially Eligible Items

Below is a list of potentially eligible items. However, final determination of the eligibility
of all project related costs will be made at the time of reimbursement. Prior to the
submittal of an application for funding, or at any point in the project life cycle, local
agencies may meet with OCTA staff to review the eligibility of project related costs.
Application review and approval does not guarantee the eligibility of all items.

e Direct environmental mitigation for projects funded by ACE

e Storm drains/catch basins/detention basins/bioswales/other pollutant discharge
mitigation devices

e Sound walls (in conjunction with roadway improvement mitigation measures)

e Aesthetic improvements including landscaping within the project right-of-way
(eligible improvements up to 10 percent of construction costs, provided costs are
reasonable for the transportation benefit)

e ITS infrastructure (advance placement in anticipation of future project)

e Rehabilitation and/or resurfacing of existing pavement when necessitated by
proposed improvement (such as change in profile and cross section)

e Improvements to private property if part of a right-of-way settlement agreement

e Utility relocation where the serving utility has prior rights as evidenced by a
recorded legal document

e Roadway grading within the right-of-way_(inclusive of any temporary construction
easements and/or right-of-way agreement related improvements) should not
exceed a depth for normal roadway excavation (e.g. structural section). Additional
grading (e.g. over excavation for poor soil conditions) will be considered on a case
by case basis. Agencies shall provide supporting documentation (e.g. soils reports,
right-of-way agreements) to justify the additional grading.

e Additional right-of-way to accommodate significant pedestrian volumes or bikeways
shown on a Master Plan of Bikeways or in conjunction with the “Complete Streets”
effort. These will be considered for eligibility on a case by case basis during the
application process.

e |Installation of a pedestrian activated traffic signal where necessitated by pedestrian
traffic warrants or other engineering criteria.

Environmental mitigation will be allowed only as required for the proposed roadway
improvement, and only as contained in the environmental document. Program participation
in environmental mitigation shall not exceed 25 percent of the total eligible construction
costs.

Longitudinal storm drains are eligible for program participation when the storm drain is an
incidental part (cost is less than 25 percent of the total eligible construction cost) of an

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-4



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

eligible improvement. Program participation shall not exceed 10 percent of the cost of storm
drain longitudinal/parallel and main lines. Storm drain inlets, connectors, laterals and cross
culverts shall have full participation in ACE Program funding. Storm drains outside standard
MPAH right-of-way widths are not eligible, excluding catch basins within reasonable distance
and in general proximity to a project intersection (e.g. within ten feet of the curb return).
Catch basins and drainage systems extending into adjacent areas (including public streets)
shall not be eligible past the first catch basin designated by aforementioned criteria.

The relocation of detention basins/bioswales are potentially eligible dependent on prior
rights and will be given consideration on a case by case basis (see utility relocations below).

Soundwalls are eligible only if they are required as part of the environmental mitigation for
the proposed project_and the Measure M contribution to the cost of soundwalls shall not
exceed 25 percent of the total eligible project costs. Aesthetic enhancements and
landscaping in excess of minimum environmental mitigation requirements are subject to
limitations described in this section above.

Roadway grading will be eligible for structural sections. Rough roadway grading must be
complete prior to project start.

Utility Relocations

The expenses associated with the relocation of utilities are eligible for RCP reimbursement
only when:

e The relocation is made necessary due to conflict with proposed improvements.

e The facility to be relocated is within the project right-of-way.

e It has been determined that the local agency is legally liable for either a portion of
or all of the relocation costs.

Liability can be determined by property rights, franchise rights/agreements, state and local
statutes/ordinances, permits, a finding by the local agency’s counsel, or other recorded legal
document. Documentation providing proof of the local agency’s liability for the costs of utility
relocation must be submitted with an initial payment request (see Chapter 10). Utilities
funded through enterprise funds shall not be eligible for reimbursement.

If a relocation is eligible to be reimbursed, and to be performed by the utility owner or by
the utility owner’s contractor, the work should be included in the right-of-way phase costs
and clearly identified in the project application submittal. For eligible relocations to be
performed during the construction phase by the local agency’s contractor, the work should
be included in the plans and specifications similar to other construction activities.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-5



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

Adjustment of existing utilities to grade (e.g. water valves, manhole frames and covers),
due to new roadway cross sections are generally eligible in the construction phase. New or
relocated fire hydrants are ineligible.

In all cases, eligible costs shall only include “in-kind” relocation. No reimbursements will be
made for betterments above the cost of “in-kind” relocation. Additionally, costs submitted
for program reimbursement must include any salvage credits received.

Ineligible Expenditures

Items that are not eligible under the ACE Program are:

e Grading outside of the roadway right-of-way not related to a temporary construction

easement or right-of-way agreement.

Rehabilitation (unless performed as component of capacity enhancement project)

Reconstruction (unless performed as component of capacity enhancement project)

Grade Separation Projects

Enhanced landscaping and aesthetics (landscaping that exceeds that necessary for

normal erosion control and ornamental hardscape)

e Right-of-way acquisition and construction costs for improvements greater than the
typical right-of-way width for the applicable MPAH Roadway Classification. (See
standard MPAH cross sections in Exhibit 7-1) Where full parcel acquisitions are
necessary to meet typical right-of-way requirements for the MPAH classification, any
excess parcels shall be disposed of in accordance with the provisions of these
guidelines, State statutes as outlined in Article XIX and the California State
Controllers Guidelines Relating to Gas Tax Expenditures.

e Utility Betterments

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-6



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Exhibit 7-1
Standard MPAH Cross Sections

PRINCIPAL
144 FT
(8 LANES, DIVIDED)

MAJOR
120FT
(6 LANES, DIVIDED)

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

August 20152014

7-7



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Exhibit 7-1 continued
Standard MPAH Cross Sections

PRIMARY
100 FT
(4 LANES, DIVIDED)

SECONDARY
80 FT
(4 LANES, UNDIVIDED)

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014

7-8



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Exhibit 7-1 continued
Standard MPAH Cross Sections

DIVIDED COLLECTOR
80 FT
(2 LANES, DIVIDED)

COLLECTOR
56 FT
(2 LANES, UNDIVIDED)

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152014

7-9



“’ﬂ

a\Reg

Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Master Plan of Arterial Highway Capacities

Below are the approximate roadway capacities that will be used in the determination of
level of service:

Level of Service

Type of Arterial A B C D E
.51-.60 v/c .61-70v/c .71-.80v/c .81-.90v/c  .91-1.00v/c
8 Lanes Divided 45,000 52,500 60,000 67,500 75,000
6 Lanes Divided 33,900 39,400 45,000 50,600 56,300
4 Lanes Diided 22,500 26,300 30,000 33,800 37,500
4 Lanes (Undivided) 15,000 17,500 20,000 22,500 25,000
2 Lanes (Undivided) 7,500 8,800 10,000 11,300 12,500

Note: Values are maximum Average Daily Traffic
Selection Criteria

Specific selection criteria will be used to evaluate competitive program project
applications. Emphasis is placed on existing usage, proposed Vehicle Miles
Traveled (VMT), level of services benefits, local match rate funding and overall facility
importance. Technical categories and point values are shown on Tables 7-1 and 7-2.
Data sources and methodology are described below.

Projected/Current Average Daily Trips (ADT): Current ADT is the preferred method of
measuring congestion. However, traffic counts projected to the year of opening for the
project will be allowed as part of the competitive evaluation. These must be submitted
along with current 24-hour traffic counts ercurrert-OcTATFraffic How-Map-data—for the
proposed segment for comparison purposes. The agency must submit the project
projected ADT, current ADT, the delta, and justification of the increase. Regarding
“current” counts, these are defined as those taken for a typical mid-week period within

the preceding 12-months. Regarding—ecurrert—OcTATratfic How-Map-data+tis-defined
as-countsprovided-within-the-preceding-36-months—Projects submitted without “current

counts” will be considered incomplete and non-responsive. Project applications using
projected ADT must use traffic counts taken within the preceding 12 months. Project
applications not using projected ADT may use traffic counts taken within the preceding

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-10



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

36 _months. -Note: New facilities witmust be modeled through OCTAM and requests
should be submitted to OCTA with-sufficient-time-te-gereratereporta minimum of six (6)
weeks prior to submittat-ef-application_submittal deadline. If modeling requests are not
submitted six (6) weeks prior to the application submittal deadline, the application will
not be considered.

For agencies where event, weekend, or seasonal traffic presents a significant issue,
Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) counts can be used, provided the agency gives
sufficient justification for the use of AADT.

VMT: Centerline length of segment proposed for improvement multiplied by the existing
ADT for the proposed segment length. Measurement must be taken proximate to capacity
increase.

Current Project Readiness: This category is additive. Points are earned for each-satisfied

readiness-stagethe highest qualifying designation at the time applications are submitted.

e Right-of-Way (All easements and titles) — applies where no right-of-way is needed
for the project or where all right-of-way has been acquired/dedicated.

e Right-of-Way (all offers issued) — applies where offers have been made for every
parcel where acquisition is required and/or offers of dedication have been received
by the jurisdiction.

e Final Design (PS&E) — applies where the jurisdiction’s City engineer or other
authorized person has approved the final design.

e Preliminary design (35 percent level) — will require certification from the City
Engineer and is subject to verification.

e Environmental Approvals — applies where all environmental clearances have been
obtained on the project.

Cost Benefit: Total project cost (including unfunded phases) divided by the existing ADT
(or modeled ADT for new segments).

Funding Over-Match: The percentages shown apply to match rates above a jurisdiction’s
minimum local match rate requirement. M2 requires a 50 percent local match for RCP
projects. This minimum match can be reduced by up to 25 percentage points if certain
eligible components are met. If a jurisdiction’s minimum match target is 30 percent and
a local match of 45 percent is pledged, points are earned for the 15 percent over-match
differential. The pledged amount is considered the committed match rate and will be
required, at a minimum, from the local agency throughout the life of the project.

Transportation Significance: Roadway classification as shown in the current MPAH.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-11



&

Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

MPAH Needs Assessment Category: Segment designation as shown in the RCP Needs
Assessment study.

Operational EfficienciesAttributes (within the roadway): This category is additive. Each
category, except Active Transit Routes, must be a new feature added as a part of the
proposed project.

e Pedestrian Facilities: Placement of a new sidewalk where none currently exists
along an entire segment of proposed project.

e Meets MPAH configuration: Improvement of roadway to full MPAH standard for

the segment classification.

Active Transit Route(s): Segments served by fixed route public transit service.

Bus Turnouts: Construction of bus turnouts.

Bike Lanes: Installation of new bike lanes (Class | or II)

Median (Raised): Installation of a mid-block raised median where none exists

today. Can be provided in conjunction with meeting MPAH standards.

e Remove On-street Parking: Elimination of on-street parking in conjunction with
roadway widening project. Can be provided in conjunction with meeting MPAH
standards and installation of new bike lanes.

e Sustainability Elements: Includes the use of recycled materials during the roadway
construction process (recycled aggregate or rubberized asphalt) or the installation
of solar lighting within the roadway cross section. Other elements of sustainability
may be considered on a case by case basis.

e Water Conservation: Includes elements that reduce water consumption. Such as
the replacement of existing landscaping with hardscape and/or “California Native”
drought tolerant type landscaping; the replacement of existing sprinklers with drip
irrigation systems: the installation of new “grey” or recycled water systems where
such does not currently exist.

e Safety Improvements: Project features that increase the safety of pedestrians.
These elements can include the new installation of: median barriers, curb
extensions, residential traffic diverters, pedestrian crossing islands, pedestrian
activated signals, crosswalk enhancements, safety signage, and the addition,
modification, or improvement of existing pedestrian signals. Other elements of
safety may be considered on a case by case basis.

e Other (Golf cart paths in conformance with California Vehicle Code and which are
demonstrated to remove vehicle trips from roadway).

Improvement Characteristics: Select one characteristic which best describes the project:

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-12



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) "‘~2

e Gap Closures: the construction of a roadway to its full MPAH build-out for the
purpose of connecting two existing ends of that roadway by filling in a missing
segment or for completing the terminus of an MPAH roadway. This applies to
increased roadway capacity only as it relates to vehicular traffic.

New Facility/Extensions: Construction of new roadways.

Bridge crossing: Widening of bridge crossing within the project limits.

Adds capacity: Addition of through traffic lanes.

Improves traffic flow: Installation of a median, restricting cross street traffic,
adding midblock turn lanes, or elimination of driveways.

LOS Improvement: This category is a product of the existing or projected LOS based
upon volume/capacity— or v/c -- and LOS improvement “with project”. Projects must
meet a minimum existing or projected LOS of “D” (.81 v/c) “without project”
condition to qualify for priority consideration for funding. Existing LOS is
determined using current 24-hour traffic counts (averaging AM/PM peaks) for the
proposed segment. However, for projects where traffic volumes follow unconventional
patterns (e.g. unidirectional congestion, large disparity between AM and PM peaks, etc.)
alternate methodologies for determining LOS can be proposed. These will be considered
by the TAC and granted a technical variance on a case by case basis. Projects that do not
meet the minimum LOS “D” can be submitted, but are not guaranteed consideration as
part of the competitive process.

If during the competitive process, it is determined that additional programming capacity
exists after all eligible projects with LOS “D” have been funded, a consideration of projects
with a minimum LOS “C” (.71 v/c) may be undertaken. Such consideration will be at the
discretion of OCTA. Projects with an LOS better than “C” (.70 v/c) will not be considered.

Application Process

Project grants are determined through a competitive application process. Local agencies
seeking funding must complete a formal application and provide supporting
documentation that will be used to evaluate the project proposal as outlined below.
Detailed instructions and checklists are provided in Chapter 9.

e Complete application
o Funding needs by phase and fiscal year
0 Local committed match funding source, confirmed through city council
resolution or minute order
0 Supporting technical information (including current traffic counts)
o0 Project development and implementation schedule

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-13



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ’%

0 Right-of-way status and strategy—ferdetailed plan for -acquisition/disposal
of excess right-of-way. The right-of-way acquisition/disposal plan must be
submitted using the “right-of-way acquisition/disposal plan” form provided
by OCTA and available for download at https://ocfundtracker.octa.net.

0 Any additional information deemed relevant by the applicant

e Grants subject to Master Funding Agreement

Calls are expected to be issued on an annual basis, or as determined by the Board.
Complete project applications must be submitted by the established due date to be
considered eligible for consideration.

Applications will be reviewed by OCTA for consistency, accuracy and concurrence. Once
applications have been completed in accordance with the program requirements, the
projects will be scored, ranked and submitted to the TSC, TAC and Board for consideration
and funding approval.

Minimum Eligibility Requirements

Projects must have an existing or projected LOS “D” (.81 v/c) or worse to qualify for
priority consideration for funding in this program.

All project roadways must be identified on the MPAH network. Local streets not shown
on the MPAH are not eligible for funding through this program.

New Facilities

New facilities must be modeled through OCTAM. A local agency planning on submitting
a request for funding for a new facility must submit a modeling request a minimum of six
(6) weeks prior to the application submittal deadline. If modeling requests are not
submitted six (6) weeks prior to the application submittal deadline, the application
associated with the related project will not be considered.

Facility Modeling: For consistency purposes, all proposed new facilities will be modeled
by OCTA using the most current version of Srange-CountyTranspertation-Anatysis-Medet
{OCTAM). Applicants may supplement their application with a locally-derived model with
OCTAM used for validation purposes. The facility will be modeled with the lane capacity
reflected in the application.

Average Daily Trips Determination: OCTAM will provide an “existing” ADT using a “with
project” model run under current conditions. The ADT for the proposed segment will
serve as the ADT value to be considered in the application.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-14



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

LOS Improvement: LOS on existing facilities may be positively or negatively affected by
a proposed new roadway segment through trip redistribution. A current condition model
run is generated “with” and “without” the proposed project. The intent is to test the
efficacy of the proposed segment. A comparison of these before and after project runs
(using current traffic volumes) yields potential discernable changes in LOS. The greatest
benefit is generally on a parallel facility directly adjacent to the proposed project. Trip
distribution changes generally dissipate farther from the project. For evaluation purposes,
the segment LOS (determined through a simple volume / capacity calculation) for the
“with” and “without project” will be used for the existing LOS and LOS improvement
calculations.

Matching Funds

Local agencies are required to provide local match funding for each phase of the project.
As prescribed by the M2 Ordinance, the minimum local match requirement is 50 percent
with potential to reduce this amount if certain eligibility requirements are met. The
amount pledged during the application process is considered the committed match rate
and will be required, at a minimum, from the local agency throughout the life of the
project. Actual project contributions by the local agency are dependent on final project
costs and may not be equal to the committed match rate in the event of cost overruns.
OCTA will not increase the funding grant to cover cost overruns. Ineligible expenditures
do not contribute to the local match rate.

Other Application Materials

Supporting documentation will be required to fully consider each project application. In
addition to the funding plan described above, local agencies will be required to submit
the following materials:

Council Approval: A Council Resolution or Minute Order action authorizing request for
funding consideration with a commitment of local match funding must be provided with
the project application. If a draft copy of the resolution is provided, the local
agency must also provide the date the resolution will be finalized by the local
agency’s governing body._A final copy of the City Council approved resolution must
be provided at least four (4) weeks PRIOR to the consideration of programming
recommendations by OCTA’s Board of Directors.

Project Documentation: If proposed project has completed initial planning activities (such
as Project Study Report (PSR) or equivalent, Environmental Impact Report (EIR), or
design), evidence of approval should be included with the application. —Satisfactory
evidence includes project approval signature page, engineer-stamped site plan, or other

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-15



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

summary information to demonstrate completion or planning phases. An electronic copy
of the PSR and/or environmental document must be supplied as applicable. The applicant
will be asked for additional detailed information enty-if necessary to adequately evaluate
the project application.

Pavement Management Supporting Documentation: The M2 Ordinance provides for a 10
percent reduction in the required local match if the agency can demonstrate a measurable
improvement in Pavement Condition Index (PCI) (1 point increase or greater) over the
previous reporting period, or if the agency can demonstrate a PCI that is within the
highest 20 percent of the scale (PCI of 75 or greater). If an agency is electing to take
the 10 percent local match reduction, supporting documentation indicating either
the PCI improvement or PCI scale must be provided.

Project Summary Information: With each application being recommended for funding,
the agency shall submit a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the pertinent project
information for review and discussion purposes. The presentation shall be no more than
three (3) slides and should contain, at a minimum, a project description, project benefits,
location map, and cost estimate. OCTA staff will request the PowerPoint when/if
a project is recommended for funding.

Reimbursements

This program is administered on a reimbursement basis for capital improvements,
planning, design, and right-of-way acquisition. Reimbursements will be disbursed upon
review and approval of an acceptable initial payment submittal, final report, and
consistency with Master Funding Agreement or cooperative agreement if federal funds
are awarded. The reimbursement process is more fully described in Chapter 10 of this
manual.

Project Cancellation

If a local agency decides to cancel a project, for whatever reason, the agency shall notify
OCTA as soon as possible. Projects deemed infeasible during the planning phase shall bring
that phase to a logical conclusion, file a final report, and cancel remaining phases so that
remaining funds can be reprogrammed without penalty. All sightright-of-way funding
received for property acquisition prior to cancellation shall be repaid upon cancellation even
if property has been acquired. €enstruction—All_construction funding received prior to
cancellation shall be repaid upon cancellation.

Cancelled projects will be eligible ferre-appticationto reapply upon resolution of issues
that led to original project termination._Agencies can resubmit an application for funding

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-16



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ,._:

consideration _once either the cancellation of the existing funding grant has been
approved by the OCTA Board or is in the process of approval through the semi-annual
review. In the event the OCTA Board does not approve the cancellation, the lead agency
will be required to withdraw the application.

Audits

All M2 payments are subject to audit. Local agencies must follow established accounting
requirements and applicable laws regarding the use of public funds. Failure to submit to
an audit in a timely manner may result in loss of future funding. Misuse or
misrepresentation of M2 funding will require remediation, which may include repayment,
reduction in overall grant, and/or other sanctions to be determined. Audits shall be
conducted by OCTA’s Internal Audit department or other authorized agent either through
the normal annual process or on a schedule to be determined by the Board (see Chapter
11).

Proceeds from the sale of excess right-of-way acquired with program funding must be
paid back to the project fund as described in Chapter 10 and the Master Funding
Agreement.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-17



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

TABLE 7-1

Regional Capacity Program

Street Widening

Category Points Possible Percentage
Facility Usage 25% 30%
Existing ADT 10 10%
Existing VMT 10 10%
Current Project Readiness 5 10 5% 10%
Economic Effectiveness 20% 15%
Cost Benefit 15 10 15% 10%
Funding Over-Match 5 5%
Facility Importance 20%
Transportation Significance 5 5%
MPAH Assessment Category 10 5 10% 5%
Operational Efficiency 5 10 5% 10%
Benefit 35%
Improvement Characteristics 10 10%
Level of Improvement and Service 25 25%
TOTAL 100 100%
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs .18

August 20152614



“’ﬂ

a\Reg

Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Table 7-2
Point Breakdown for Arterial Capacity Enhancement Projects
Maximum Points = 100

Facility Usage Points: 25 30 Facility Importance Points: 20
Existing ADT Transportation Significance
Range Points Range Points
45+ thousand 10 Principal or CMP Route 5
40-44 thousand 8 Major 4
35-39 thousand 6 Primary 3
30-34 thousand 5 Secondary 2
25-29 thousand 4 Collector 1
20-24 thousand 3
15-19 thousand 2 MPAH Assessment Category
10-14 thousand 1 Range Points
<10 thousand 0 Category 1 4 5
Category 2 8 4
VMT Category 3 6 3
Range Points Category 4 4 2
31+ thousand 10 Category 5 2 1
26-30 thousand 8
22-25 thousand 6 Operational Attributes (w ithin Maximum & 10 points
18-21 thousand 5 the roadw ay) Points
14-17 thousand 4 Pedestrian Facilities (New ) 3
11-13 thousand 3 Meets MPAH Configs. 3
8-10 thousand 2 Bike Lanes (New ) 3
4-7 thousand 1 Active Transit Route(s) 2
<4,000 thousand 0 Bus Turnouts 2
Median (Raised) 2
Current Project Readiness Max Points: & 10 Remove On-Street Parking 2
Points Water Conservation Eements - 2
Environmental Approvals 1+ 2 Safety Improvements - 2
Preliminary Design (35%) 1+ 2 Sustainability - 2
Right Of Way (All offers issued) 4 2
Final Design (PS&E) 1 4
Right Of Way (All easement and titles) 3 5 Benefit: Points: 35
Points are additive, Design and ROW limited to Improvement Characteristics Points
highest qualifying designation Gap Closure 10
New Facility/Extension 8
Economic Effectiveness Points: 20 15 Bridge Crossing 8
Adds Capacity 6
Cost Benefit (Total $/ADT) Improves Traffic Flow 2
Range* Points LOS Improvement Max Points: 25
<25 15
25-49 13 Calculation: LOS Imp x LOS Starting Pt.
50-99 <25 - 99 10
100 - 149 9 Existing LOS Starting Point
150 - 199 7 Range Points
200 - 249 5 1.01+ 5
250 - 299 4 .96 - 1.00 4
300 - 349 3 91-.95 3
350 - 399 2 .86-.90 2
400 - 499 1 .81-.85 1
500+ 0
Funding Over-Match (local match/project cost) minus LOS Improvement W/Project (exist. volume)
minimum local match requirement Range Points
Range* Points .20+ 5
25+ % 5 .16 -.19 4
20-24 % 4 1-.15 3
15-19 % 3 .05-.09 2
10-14 % 2 .01-.05 1
5-9 % 1
0-4 % 0
*Range refers to % points above agency minimum
requirement Note: recommended changes shown in bold/red.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-19



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Section 7.2 — Intersection Capacity Enhancements (ICE)

Overview

The MPAH serves as the backbone of Orange County’s arterial street network.
Intersections at each intersecting MPAH arterial throughout the County will continue to
require improvements to mitigate current and future needs. The ICE improvement
category complements roadway improvement initiatives underway and supplements
development mitigation opportunities.

Projects in the ICE improvement category are selected on a competitive basis. Projects
must meet specific criteria in order to compete for funding through this program.

For the purposes of the ICE improvement category, the limits of an intersection shall be
defined as the area that includes all necessary (or planned) through lanes, turn pockets,
and associated transitions required for the intersection. Project limits of up to a maximum
of 600 feet for each intersection leg are allowable. Projects that, due to special
circumstances, must exceed the 600 foot limit, shall include in their application the request
for a technical variance. The project shall be presented to the Technical Steering Committee
by the local agency to request approval of the variance.

Objectives

e Improve MPAH network capacity and throughput along MPAH facilities

e Relieve congestion at MPAH intersections by providing additional turn and through
lane capacity

e Improve connectivity between neighboring jurisdiction by improving operations

e Provide timely investment of M2 revenues

Project Participation Categories

The ICE category provides capital improvement funding (including planning, design, right-
of-way acquisition and construction) for intersection improvements on the MPAH network
for the following:

e Intersection widening — constructing additional through lanes and turn lanes,
extending turn lanes where appropriate, and signal equipment
e Street to street grade separation projects

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-20



&

Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Eligible Activities

Planning, environmental clearance

Design (plans, specifications, and estimates)

Right-of-way acquisition

Construction (including bus turnouts, curb ramps, median, and striping)

Potentially Eligible I1tems

Below is a list of potentially eligible items. However, final determination of the eligibility
of all project related costs will be made at the time of reimbursement. Prior to the
submittal of an application for funding, or at any point in the project life cycle, local
agencies may meet with OCTA staff to review the eligibility of project related costs.
Application review and approval does not guarantee the eligibility of all items.

e Required environmental mitigation for projects funded by ICE

e Storm drains/catch basins/detention basins/bioswales/other pollutant discharge
mitigation devices

e Sound walls (in conjunction with roadway improvement mitigation measures)

e Aesthetic improvements including landscaping within the project right-of-way
(eligible improvements up to 10 percent of construction costs, provided costs are
reasonable for the transportation benefit)

e Signal equipment (as incidental component of program), including the installation
or upgrade of pedestrian countdown heads

e Bicycle detection systems

e Rehabilitation and/or resurfacing of existing pavement when necessitated by
proposed improvement (such as change in profile and cross section)

e Improvements to private property if part of a right-of-way settlement agreement

e Utility relocation where the serving utility has prior rights as evidenced by a
recorded legal document_and are located within the roadway right-of-way.

e Roadway grading within the right-of-way_(inclusive of any temporary construction
easements and/or right-of-way agreement related improvements) should not
exceed a depth for normal roadway excavation (e.g. structural section). Additional
grading (e.g. over excavation for poor soil conditions) will be considered on a case
by case basis. Agencies shall provide supporting documentation (e.g. soils reports,
right-of-way agreements) to justify the additional grading.

Ineligible Items

e Grading outside of the roadway right-of-way not related to a temporary construction
easement or right-of-way agreement.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
| August 20152014 7-21



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

e Right-of-way acquisition greater than the typical right-of-way width for the applicable
MPAH Roadway Classification. Additional turn lanes not exceeding 12 feet in width
needed to maintain an intersection LOS D requiring right-of-way in excess of the
typical right-of-way width for the applicable MPAH classification shall be fully eligible.
Where full parcel acquisitions are necessary to meet typical right-of-way
requirements for the MPAH classification any excess parcels shall be disposed of in
accordance with the—provisions—of—these—guidelnes—ane—State statutes_and the
acquisition/disposal plan submitted in accordance with these guidelines.

e Enhanced landscaping and aesthetic improvements (landscaping that exceeds that
necessary for normal erosion control and ornamental hardscape).

Environmental mitigation will be allowed only as required for the proposed roadway
improvement and only as contained in the environmental document. Program participation
in environmental mitigation shall not exceed 25 percent of the total eligible project costs.

Longitudinal storm drains are eligible for program participation when the storm drain is an
incidental part (cost is less than 25 percent of the total eligible improvement cost) of an
eligible improvement. Program participation shall not exceed 10 percent of the cost of storm
drain longitudinal/parallel and main lines. Storm drain inlets, connectors, laterals and cross
culverts shall have full participation in ICE improvement category funding. Storm drains
outside standard MPAH right-of-way widths are not eligible, excluding catch basins within
reasonable distance and in general proximity to a project intersection (e.g. within ten feet
of the curb return). Catch basins and drainage systems extending into adjacent areas
(including public streets) shall not be eligible past the first catch basin.

Soundwalls are eligible only if they are required as part of the environmental clearance for
the proposed project_and shall not exceed 25 percent of the total eligible project costs.
Aesthetic enhancements and landscaping in excess of minimum environmental mitigation
requirements are subject to limitations described in the “Potentially Eligible Item” section
above.

The relocation of detention basins/bioswales/other pollutant discharge mitigation devices
are potentially eligible dependent on who has prior rights and will be given consideration on
a case by case basis- (see utility relocations below).

Roadway grading is eligible for structural sections. OCTA assumes rough roadway grading
is complete prior to project start and is considered an ineligible item.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-22



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) “%

Utility Relocations

The expenses associated with the relocation of utilities are eligible for RCP reimbursement
only when:

e The relocation is made necessary due to conflict with proposed improvements.

e The facility to be relocated is within the project right-of-way.

e It has been determined that the local agency is legally liable for either a portion of
or all of the relocation costs.

Liability can be determined by property rights, franchise rights/agreements, state and local
statutes/ordinances, permits, a finding by the local agency’s counsel, or other recorded legal
document. Documentation providing proof of the local agency’s liability for the costs of utility
relocation must be submitted with an initial payment request (see Chapter 10). Utilities
funded through enterprise funds shall not be eligible for reimbursement.

If a relocation is eligible to be reimbursed, and to be performed by the utility owner or by
the utility owner’s contractor, the work should be included in the right-of-way phase costs
and clearly identified in the project application submittal. For eligible relocations to be
performed during the construction phase by the local agency’s contractor, the work should
be included in the plans and specifications similar to other construction activities.
Adjustment of existing utilities to grade (e.g. water valves, manhole frames and covers),
due to new roadway cross sections are generally eligible in the construction phase.

In all cases, eligible costs shall only include “in-kind” relocation. No reimbursements will be
made for betterments above the cost of “in-kind” relocation. Additionally, costs submitted
for program reimbursement must include any salvage credits received.

Selection Criteria

Specific selection criteria will be used to evaluate competitive program project
applications. Emphasis is placed on existing usage, LOS benefits, local match funding,
and overall facility importance. Technical categories and point values are shown on
Tables 7-3 and 7-4. Data sources and methodology are described below.

Projected/Current Average Daily Trips (ADT): Current ADT is the preferred method of
measuring congestion. However, traffic counts projected to the year of opening for the
project will be allowed as part of the competitive evaluation. These must be submitted
along with current 24-hour traffic counts ercurrent-OcTFATFratfic-How-Map-data—for the
proposed segment for comparison purposes. The agency must submit the project
projected ADT, current ADT, the delta, and justification of the increase. Regarding

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-23



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) "‘~2

“current” counts, these are defined as those taken for a typical mid-week period within
the preceding 12-months.— Project applications using projected ADT must use traffic
counts taken within the preceding 12 months. Project applications not using projected
ADT may use traffic counts taken within the preceding 36 months. Regarging—ecurrent:

menthis—Project applications without “current” counts will be deemed incomplete and
non-responsive. -Average ADT for the east and west legs of the intersection will be added
to the average ADT for the north and south legs.

For agencies where event or seasonal traffic presents a significant issue, Average Annual
Daily Traffic (AADT) counts can be used, provided the agency gives sufficient justification
for the use of AADT.

Current Project Readiness: This category is additive. Points are earned for each satisfied
readiness stage at the time applications are submitted.

e Right-of-Way (All easements and titles) — applies where no right-of-way is needed
for the project or where all right-of-way has been acquired/dedicated.

e Right-of-Way (all offers issued) — applies where offers have been made for every
parcel where acquisition is required and/or offers of dedication have been received
by the jurisdiction. Documentation of right-of-way possession will be required with
application submittal.

e Final Design (PS&E) — applies where the jurisdiction’s City Engineer or other
authorized person has approved the final design.

e Preliminary design (35 percent level) — will require certification from the City
Engineer and is subject to verification.

e Environmental Approvals — applies where all environmental clearances have been
obtained on the project.

Cost Benefit: Total project cost (included unfunded phases) divided by the existing ADT
(or modeled ADT for new segments).

Funding Over-Match: The percentages shown apply to match rates above a jurisdiction’s
minimum match rate requirement. M2 requires a 50 percent local match for RCP projects.
This minimum match can be reduced by up to 25 percentage points if certain eligible
components are met. If a jurisdiction’s minimum match target is 30 percent and a local
match of 45 percent is pledged, points are earned for the 15 percent over-match. The
pledged amount is considered the committed match rate and will be required, at a
minimum, from the local agency throughout the life of the project.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-24



%
Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) "‘

Coordination with Contiguous project: Projects that complement a proposed arterial

improvement project with a similar implementation schedule earn points in this category.
This category is intended to recognize large projects that segregate intersection
components from arterial components for funding purposes.

Transportation Significance: Roadway classification as shown in the current MPAH.

MPAH Needs Assessment Category: Segment designation as shown in the RCP Needs

Assessment study.

Operational EfficienciesAttributes (within the roadway): This category is additive. Each

category must be a new feature added as a part of the proposed project.

Bike Lanes: Extension of bike lanes (Class I or Il) through intersection

Bus Turnouts: Construction of a bus turnout as a new feature.

Lowers density: Addition of through travel lanes.

Channels traffic: Addition and/or extension of turn pockets (other than free right
turn).

Free right turn: installation of new free right or conversion of an existing right turn
to free right

Protected/permissive left turn: Convert from protected to protected/permissive
Pedestrian Facilities: Placement of a new sidewalk if none currently exists.

Grade separations: Street to street grade separations and do not apply to rail grade
separation projects which are covered by the grade separation program category.
Sustainability Elements: Includes the use of recycled materials during the roadway

construction process (recycled aggregate or rubberized asphalt) or the installation
of solar lighting within the roadway cross section. Other elements of sustainability
may be considered on a case by case basis.

Water Conservation: Includes elements that reduce water consumption. Such as

the replacement of existing landscaping with hardscape and/or “California Native”
drought tolerant type landscaping; the replacement of existing sprinklers with drip
irrigation systems; the installation of new “grey” or recycled water systems where
such does not currently exist.

o+—Safety Improvements: Project features that increase the safety of pedestrians.

These elements can include the new installation of: median barriers, curb
extensions, residential traffic_diverters, pedestrian crossing islands, pedestrian
activated signals, crosswalk enhancements, safety signage, and the addition,
modification, or improvement of existing pedestrian signals. Other elements of
safety may be considered on a case by case basis.

LOS Improvement: This category is a product of the existing or projected LOS based

upon volume/capacity— or v/c -- and LOS improvement “with project” using Intersection

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152614 7-25



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ’%

Capacity Utilization (ICU) calculation with 1,700 vehicles per lane per hour and a .05
clearance interval. Calculations will be based upon “current” arterial link and turning
movement counts projected to opening year. Projects must meet a minimum
existing or projected LOS of “D” (.81 v/c) to qualify for priority consideration
for funding. -Existing LOS is determined using current 24-hour traffic counts/turning
movements (averaging AM/PM peaks) for the proposed segment. However, for projects
where traffic volumes follow unconventional patterns (e.g. unidirectional congestion,
large disparity between AM and PM peaks, etc.) alternate methodologies for determining
LOS can be proposed. These will be considered by the TAC and granted a technical
variance on a case by case basis. Projects that do not meet the minimum LOS “D” can be
submitted, but are not guaranteed consideration as part of the competitive process.

If during the competitive process, it is determined that additional programming capacity
exists after all eligible projects with LOS “D” have been funded, a consideration of projects
with a minimum LOS “C” (.71 v/c) may be undertaken. Such consideration will be at the
discretion of OCTA. Projects with an LOS better than “C” (.70 v/c) will not be considered.

Application Process

Project grants are determined through a competitive application process. Local agencies
seeking funding must complete a formal application and provide supporting
documentation that will be used to evaluate the project proposal as outlined below.
Detailed instructions and checklists are provided in Chapter 9.

e Complete application
o Funding needs by phase and fiscal year
0 Local match funding source, confirmed through city council resolution or
minute order
0 Supporting technical information (including current arterial link and turning
movement counts)
o0 Project development and implementation schedule
o0 Right-of-way status and strategy—fer—aequisitiona detailed plan for
acquisition/disposal  of  excess  right-of-way. The  right-of-way
acquisition/disposal plan must be submitted using the “right-of-way
acquisition/disposal plan” form provided by OCTA and available for
download at https://ocfundtracker.octa.net.
0 Any additional information deemed relevant by the applicant
e Grants subject to master funding agreement

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-26



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

Calls for projects are expected to be issued on an annual basis, or as determined by the
Board. Complete project applications must be submitted by the established due date to
be considered eligible for consideration.

Applications will be reviewed by OCTA for consistency, accuracy, and concurrence. Once
applications have been completed in accordance with the program requirements, the
projects will be scored, ranked and submitted to the TSC, TAC and Board for consideration
and funding approval.

Minimum Eligibility Requirements

Projects must have an existing or projected LOS “D” (.81 v/c) or worse to qualify for
priority consideration for funding in this program.

All project roadways must be identified on the MPAH network. Local streets not shown
on the MPAH are not eligible for funding through this program.

Matching Funds

Local agencies are required to provide local match funding for each phase of the project.
As prescribed by the M2 Ordinance, the minimum local match requirement is 50 percent
with potential to reduce this amount if certain eligibility requirements are met. The
amount pledged during the application process is considered the committed match rate
and will be required, at a minimum, from the local agency throughout the life of the
project. Actual project contributions by the local agency are dependent on final project
costs and may not be equal to the committed match rate in the event of cost overruns.
OCTA will not increase the funding grant to cover cost overruns. Ineligible expenditures
do not contribute to the local match rate.

Other Application Materials

Supporting documentation will be required to fully consider each project application. In
addition to the funding plan described above, local agencies will be required to submit
the following materials:

Council Approval: A Council Resolution or Minute Order action authorizing request for
funding consideration with a commitment of local match funding must be provided with
the project application. If a draft copy of the resolution is provided, the local
agency must also provide the date the resolution will be finalized by the local
agency’s governing body. A final copy of the City Council approved resolution must
be provided at least four (4) weeks PRIOR to the consideration of programming
recommendations by OCTA’s Board of Directors.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-27



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

Project Documentation: If proposed project has completed initial planning activities (such
as PSR or equivalent, EIR, or design), evidence of approval should be included with the
application. Satisfactory evidence includes project approval signature page, engineer-
stamped site plan, or other summary information to demonstrate completion or planning
phases. An electronic copy of the PSR and/or environmental document must be supplied
as applicable. The applicant will be asked for additional detailed information only if
necessary to adequately evaluate the project application.

Pavement Management Supporting Documentation: The M2 Ordinance provides for a 10
percent reduction in the required local match if the agency can demonstrate a measurable
improvement in PCI (1 point or greater) over the previous reporting period, or if the
agency can demonstrate a PCI that is within the highest 20 percent of the scale (PCI of
75 or greater). If an agency is electing to take the 10 percent match rate reduction,
supporting documentation indicating either the PCI improvement or PCl scale must be
provided.

Project Summary Information: With each application being recommended for funding,
the agency shall submit a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the pertinent project
information for review and discussion purposes. The presentation shall be no more than
three (3) slides and should contain, at a minimum, a project description, project benefits,
location map, and cost estimate. OCTA staff will request the PowerPoint when/if
a project is recommended for funding.

Reimbursements

This program is administered on a reimbursement basis for capital improvements,
planning, design, and right-of-way acquisition. Reimbursements will be disbursed upon
review and approval of an acceptable initial payment submittal, final report and
consistency with Master Funding Agreement or cooperative agreement. The
reimbursement process is more fully described in Chapter 10 of this manual.

Project Cancellation

If a local agency decides to cancel a project, for whatever reason, the agency shall notify
OCTA as soon as possible. Projects deemed infeasible during the planning phase shall bring
that phase to a logical conclusion, file a final report, and cancel remaining phases so that
remaining funds can be reprogrammed without penalty. Right-of-way funding received for
property acquisition prior to cancellation shall be repaid upon cancellation even if property
has been acquired. Construction funding received prior to cancellation shall be repaid upon
cancellation.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-28



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) “%

Cancelled projects will be eligible for re-application upon resolution of issues that led to
original project termination.

Audits

All M2 payments are subject to audit. Local agencies must follow established accounting
requirements and applicable laws regarding the use of public funds. Failure to submit to
an audit in a timely manner may result in loss of future funding. Misuse or
misrepresentation of M2 funding will require remediation which may include repayment,
reduction in overall grant, and/or other sanctions to be determined. Audits shall be
conducted by OCTA’s Internal Audit department or other authorized agent either through
the normal annual process or on a schedule to be determined by the Board (see Chapter
11).

Proceeds from the sale of excess right-of-way acquired with program funding must be
paid back to the project fund as described in Chapter 10 and the Master Funding
Agreement.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-29



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Facility Usage

TABLE 7-3

Regional Capacity Program
Intersection Improvement

Category

Existing ADT
Current Project Readiness

Economic Effectiveness

Facility Importance

Bengefit

TOTAL

Cost Benefit
Funding Over-Match
Coordination with Contiguous Project

Transportation Significance
MPAH Assessment Category
Operational Efficiency

LOS Improvement

Points Possible

15
5

hE o

25

100

10

10

20

Percentage
15%
5% 10%

15% 10%
5%
5%

5%
10% 5%
15% 20%

25%

100%

20%

25%

30%

25%

25%

20%

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

August 20152614

7-30



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Table 7-4
Point Breakdown for Intersection Capacity Enhancement Projects
Maximum Points = 100
Facility Usage Points: 2025 Facility Importance Points: 30
ADT Transportation Significance
Range* Points Range Points
60+ thousand 15 Principal or CMP Route 5
55-59 thousand 13 Major 4
50-54 thousand 1" Primary 3
45-49 thousand 9 Secondary 2
40-44 thousand 7 Collector 1
35-39 thousand 5
30-34 thousand 3 MPAH Assessment Category
25-29 thousand 1 Range Points
* Sumof AVG ADT for all four legs based upon Category 1 10 5
OCTA Traffic Flow Map Category 2 8 4
Category 3 6 3
Current Project Readiness Max Points: 5-10 Category 4 4 2
Range* Points Category 5 2 1
Environmental Approvals 1+ 2
Preliminary Design (35%) 1+ 2 Operational Attributes (w ithin Max Points: 45-20
Right Of Way (All offers issued) 3+ 2 the roadw ay) Points
Final Design (PS&E) 1+ 4 Grade separations 10
Right Of Way (All easement and titles) 3 5 Bus turnouts 4
Bike lanes 4
Points are additive, Design and ROW limited to Ped. facilities (new) 4
highest qualifying designation Free right 4
Low ers density 3
Channels traffic 3
Economic Effectiveness Points: 25 20 Protected/Permissive left turn 2
Water Conservation Hements - 2
Cost Benefit (Total $/ADT) Safety Improvements - 2
Range* Points Sustainability - 2
<10 15
+-20<10- 20 42 10
21-30 9
31-50 7 Benefit: Points: 25
51-75 5
76 - 100 3 LOS Improvement Max Points: 25
>100 1
* = total cost / average ADT Calculation: LOS Imp x LOS Starting Pt.
Funding Over-Match (local match/project cost) minus Existing LOS (Peak Hour)
minimum local match requirement Range Points
Range Points 1.01+ 5
25+ % 5 .96 - 1.00 4
20-24 % 4 91-.95 3
15-19 % 3 .86-.90 2
10-14 % 2 .81-.85 1
5-9 % 1
0-4 % 0
LOS Reduction W/Project (exist. volume)
Coordination w ith Contiguous Project Range Points
Range Points .20+ 5
yes 5 16-.19 4
no 0 10- .15 3
.05-.09 2
Coordination with ACE project w ith similar .01-.05 1
implementation schedule.
Note: recommended changes shown in bold/red.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-31



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Section 7.3 — Freeway Arterial/Streets Transitions (FAST)

Overview

The MPAH serves as the backbone of Orange County’s arterial street network. Current
and future needs at existing interchanges along MPAH highways and freeways will need
to be addressed in order to improve connectivity between freeways and MPAH arterials.
The interchange improvement program complements roadway improvement initiatives
underway as well and supplements development mitigation opportunities.

Projects in the FAST improvement category are selected on a competitive basis. Projects
must meet specific criteria in order to compete for funding through this program.

Objectives

e Improve transition to and from Orange County freeways
e Provide timely investment of M2 revenues

Project Participation Categories

The FAST category provides capital improvement funding (including planning, design,
right-of-way acquisition and construction) for interchange improvements on the MPAH
network for the following:

e MPAH facility interchange connections to Orange County freeways (including on-
ramp, off-ramp and arterial improvements)

Eligible Activities

Planning, environmental clearance

Design

Right-of-way acquisition

Construction (including ramps, intersection and structural
improvements/reconstruction incidental to project)

e Signal equipment (as incidental component of the program)

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-32



%

»
A\RE,

Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Potentially Eligible Items

Below is a list of potentially eligible items. However, final determination of the eligibility
of all project related costs will be made at the time of reimbursement. Prior to the
submittal of an application for funding, or at any point in the project life cycle, local
agencies may meet with OCTA staff to review the eligibility of project related costs.
Application review and approval does not guarantee the eligibility of all items.

e Direct environmental mitigation for projects funded by FAST (details below)

e Storm drains/catch basins/detention basins/bioswales/other pollutant discharge
mitigation devices_(details below)

e Aesthetic improvements including landscaping within the project right-of-way
(eligible improvements up to 10 percent of construction costs, provided costs are
reasonable for the transportation benefit)

e Rehabilitation and/or resurfacing of existing pavement when necessitated by
proposed improvement (such as change in profile and cross section)

e Improvements to private property if part of a right-of-way settlement agreement

e Utility relocation where the serving utility has prior rights as evidenced by a
recorded legal document

e Roadway grading within the right-of-way should not to exceed a depth for normal
roadway excavation (e.g. structural section) or as required by temporary
construction easements, and/or right-of-way agreement related improvements.
Additional grading (e.g. over excavation for poor soil conditions) will be considered
on a case by case basis.

e Auxiliary lanes if necessitated by interchange improvements

e Soundwalls (in conjunction with roadway improvement mitigation measures)

Environmental mitigation will be allowed only as required for the proposed roadway
improvement, and only as contained in the environmental document. Program participation
in environmental mitigation shall not exceed 25 percent of the total eligible project costs.

Longitudinal storm drains are eligible for program participation when the storm drain is an
incidental part (cost is less than 25 percent of the total eligible improvement cost) of an
eligible improvement. Program participation shall not exceed 10 percent of the cost of storm
drain longitudinal/parallel and main lines. Storm drain inlets, connectors, laterals and cross
culverts shall have full participation in FAST improvement category funding. Storm drains
outside standard MPAH right-of-way widths are not eligible, excluding catch basins within
reasonable distance and in general proximity to a project intersection (e.g. within ten feet
of the curb return). Catch basins and drainage systems extending into adjacent areas
(including public streets) shall not be eligible past the first catch basin.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-33



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

Soundwalls are eligible only if they are required as part of the environmental mitigation for
the proposed project_and shall not exceed 25 percent of the total eligible project cost.
Aesthetic enhancements and landscaping in excess of minimum environmental mitigation
requirements are subjecttotimitations-deseribedn-this—section—aboveeligible at up to 10
percent of the total eligible construction costs, provided costs are reasonable for the
transportation benefit.

The relocation of detention basins/bioswales are potentially eligible dependent on prior
rights and will be giving consideration on a case by case basis (see utility relocations below).

Roadway grading is eligible for structural sections_if within the standard MPAH cross section
for the facility (inclusive of any temporary construction easements). OCTA assumes rough
roadway grading is complete prior to project start and is considered an ineligible item.

Utility Relocations

The expenses associated with the relocation of utilities are eligible for RCP reimbursement
only when:

e The relocation is made necessary due to conflict with proposed improvements.

e The facility to be relocated is within the project right-of-way.

e It has been determined that the local agency is legally liable for either a portion of
or all of the relocation costs.

Liability can be determined by property rights, franchise rights/agreements, state and local
statutes/ordinances, permits, a finding by the local agency’s counsel, or other recorded legal
document. Documentation providing proof of the local agency’s liability for the costs of utility
relocation must be submitted with an initial payment request (see Chapter 10). Utilities
funded through enterprise funds shall not be eligible for reimbursement.

If a relocation is eligible to be reimbursed, and to be performed by the utility owner or by
the utility owner’s contractor, the work should be included in the right-of-way phase costs
and clearly identified in the project application submittal. For eligible relocations to be
performed during the construction phase by the local agency’s contractor, the work should
be included in the plans and specifications similar to other construction activities.
Adjustment of existing utilities to grade (e.g. water valves, manhole frames and covers),
due to new roadway cross sections are generally eligible in the construction phase.

In all cases, eligible costs shall only include “in-kind” relocation. No reimbursements will be
made for betterments above the cost of “in-kind” relocation. Additionally, costs submitted
for program reimbursement must be reduced by any salvage credits received.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-34



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Ineligible Projects

e Seismic retrofit projects (unless combined with eligible capacity enhancements)
e Enhanced landscaping and aesthetics (landscaping that exceeds that necessary for
normal erosion control and ornamental hardscape).

Selection Criteria

Specific selection criteria will be used to evaluate competitive program project
applications. Emphasis is placed on existing usage, level of services benefits, local match
funding and overall facility importance. Technical categories and point values are shown
on Tables 7-5 and 7-6. Data sources and methodology are described below.

Projected/Current Average Daily Trips (ADT): Current ADT is the preferred method of
measuring congestion. However, traffic counts and ramp volumes projected to the year
of opening for the project will be allowed as part of the competitive evaluation. These
must be submitted along with current 24-hour traffic counts ereurrert-OCcFATratfie How
Map-data—for the proposed segment for comparison purposes. The agency must submit
the project projected ADT, current ADT, the delta, and justification of the increase.
Regarding “current” counts, these are defined as those taken for a typical mid-week
period within the preceding 12-months. Project applications using projected ADT must
use traffic counts taken within the preceding 12 months. Project applications not using
prolected ADT may use traffic counts taken W|th|n the precedlnq 36 months Regardmg

pfeeedmg—%—menths—PrOJect appllcatlons Wlthout “current” counts WI|| be deemed
incomplete and non-responsive. Average ramp intersection volume for each interchange

ramp will be used for the current counts. New facilities will rely on projected ramp volume
based upon Caltrans approved projection.

For agencies where event or seasonal traffic presents a significant issue, Average Annual
Daily Traffic (AADT) counts can be used, provided the agency gives sufficient justification
for the use of AADT.

Current Project Readiness: This category is additive. Points are earned for each satisfied
readiness stage at the time applications are submitted.
¢ Right-of-Way (all easements and titles) — applies where no right-of-way is needed
for the project or where all right-of-way has been acquired/dedicated).
e Right-of-Way (all offers issued) — applies where offers have been made for every
parcel where acquisition is required and/or offers of dedication have been received
by the jurisdiction.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-35



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) “%

e Final Design (PS&E) — applies where the jurisdiction’s City engineer or other
authorized person has approved the final design.

e Preliminary design (35 percent level) — will require certification from the City
engineer and is subject to verification.

e Project Approvals/Environmental Documentation (PA/ED) — applies where a
Project Report-level analysis has been completed and environmental approvals
have been attained.

Cost Benefit: Total project cost (including unfunded phases) divided by the existing ADT
(or modeled ADT for new segments).

Funding Over-Match: The percentages shown apply to match rates above a jurisdiction’s
minimum local match requirement. M2 requires a 50 percent local match for RCP projects.
This minimum match can be reduced by up to 25 percentage points if certain eligible
components are met. If a jurisdiction’s minimum match target is 30 percent and a local
match of 45 percent is pledged, points are earned for the 15 percent over-match. The
pledged amount is considered the committed match rate and will be required, at a
minimum, from the local agency throughout the life of the project.

Coordination with Freeway Project: Interchanges planned to coincide with or
accommodate programmed freeway improvements receive points in this category.

Transportation Significance: Roadway classification as shown in the current MPAH.

MPAH Needs Assessment Category: Segment designation as shown in the RCP Needs
Assessment study.

Operational Efficiencies: This category is additive. Each category, except Active Transit
Routes, must be a new feature added as a part of the proposed project.
e Eliminate left turn conflicts: Ramp intersection reconfiguration which does not
permit left turns onto ramps.
e Coordinated signal: Ramp intersections within a coordinated corridor where
coordination did not previously exist.
e Add turn lanes: Increase in number of turn lanes on arterial.
e Add traffic control: Signalization of ramp intersection.
e Enhanced ramp storage: Extension or widening of existing ramp to improve off-
street storage capacity.
e Pedestrian facilities: Add crosswalk and or sidewalk to ramp or bridge crossing
within context of interchange improvements.
e Active Transit Route: facility contains a currently active OCTA transit route

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-36



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ,

e Sustainability Elements: Includes the use of recycled materials during the roadway
construction process (recycled aggregate or rubberized asphalt) or the installation
of solar lighting within the roadway cross section. Other elements of sustainability
may be considered on a case by case basis.

e Water Conservation: Includes elements that reduce water consumption. This
includes the replacement of existing landscaping with hardscape and/or “California
Native” drought tolerant type landscaping; the replacement of existing sprinklers
with drip irrigation systems; the installation of new “grey” or recycled water
systems where such does not currently exist.

e Safety Improvements: Project features that increase the safety of pedestrians.
These elements can include the new installation of: intersection median barriers,
curb _extensions, pedestrian crossing islands, crosswalk enhancements, safety
signage, and the addition, modification, or improvement of existing pedestrian
signals. Other elements of safety may be considered on a case by case basis.

LOS Improvement: This category is a product of the existing or projected LOS based
upon volume/capacity— or v/c -- and LOS improvement “with project”. Projects must
meet a minimum existing or projected LOS of “D” (.81 v/c) to qualify for
priority consideration for funding. Existing LOS is determined using current 24-hour
traffic counts/turning movements (averaging AM/PM peaks) for the proposed segment.
However, for projects where traffic volumes follow unconventional patterns (e.qg.
unidirectional congestion, large disparity between AM and PM peaks, etc.) alternate
methodologies for determining LOS can be proposed. These will be considered by the
TAC and granted a technical variance on a case by case basis. Projects that do not meet
the minimum LOS “D” can be submitted, but are not guaranteed consideration as part of
the competitive process.

If during the competitive process, it is determined that additional programming capacity
exists after all eligible projects with LOS “D” have been funded, a consideration of projects
with a minimum LOS “C” (.71 v/c) may be undertaken. Such consideration will be at the
discretion of OCTA. Projects with an LOS better than “C” (.70 v/c) will not be considered.
Improvement Characteristics: Select the attribute that best fits your project definition.

e New facility: New interchange where none exists.

e Partial facility: New interchange which does not provide full access.

e Interchange reconstruction: improvement of existing interchange to provide
additional arterial capacity (widening of overcrossing or undercrossing).

e Ramp reconfiguration: Widening of ramp or arterial to improve turning movements
or other operational efficiencies.

e Ramp metering: Installation of metering on ramp.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-37



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

Application Process

Project grants are determined through a competitive application process. Local agencies
seeking funding must complete a formal application and provide supporting
documentation that will be used to evaluate the project proposal as outlined below.

e Complete application

o Funding needs by phase and fiscal year
Local match funding source
Supporting technical information
Project development and implementation schedule
Right-of-way status and—strategy—for—acquisition_a detailed plan for
acquisition/disposal  of  excess  right-of-way. The  right-of-way
acquisition/disposal plan must be submitted using the “right-of-way
acquisition/disposal plan” form provided by OCTA and available for
download at https://ocfundtracker.octa.net.

o0 Any additional information deemed relevant by the applicant
e Grants subject to a Master Funding Agreement or cooperative agreement if federal

funds are awarded

O o0 O0Oo

Calls for projects are expected to be issued on an annual basis, or as determined by the
OCTA Board of Directors. Complete project applications must be submitted by the
established due date to be considered eligible for consideration.

Applications will be reviewed by OCTA for consistency, accuracy and concurrence. Once
applications have been completed in accordance with the program requirements, the
projects will be scored, ranked and submitted to the TAC and Board or consideration and
funding approval.

Minimum Eligibility Requirements

Projects must have an existing or projected LOS “D” (.81 v/c) or worse to qualify for
priority consideration for funding in this program. Worst peak hour period is used for this
evaluation and eligibility purposes.

Matching Funds

Local agencies are required to provide local match funding for each phase of the project.
As prescribed by the M2 Ordinance, a 50 percent minimum local match is required. A
lower local match may be permitted if certain eligibility criteria are met. The amount
pledged during the application process is considered the committed match rate and will

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-38



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) “%

be required, at a minimum, from the local agency throughout the life of the project.
Actual project contributions by the local agency are dependent on final project costs and
may not be equal to the committed match rate in the event of cost overruns. OCTA will
not increase the funding grant to cover cost overruns. Ineligible expenditures do not
contribute to the local match rate.

Reimbursements

This program is administered on a reimbursement basis for capital improvements,
planning, design, and right-of-way acquisition. Reimbursements will be disbursed upon
review and approval of an acceptable initial payment submittal, final report and
consistency with Master Funding Agreement. The reimbursement process is described in
Chapter 10.

Caltrans Coordination

Caltrans is not eligible to submit applications or receive payment under this program. Only
cities or the County of Orange may submit applications and receive funds. This program
was designed to benefit local agencies.

Coordination with Caltrans will be essential for most, if not all, of the projects submitted for
this program. Local agencies should therefore establish contacts with the Caltrans District
12 Office (Project Development Branch) to ensure that candidate projects have been
reviewed and approved by Caltrans. All other affected agencies should be consulted as
well.

Agencies submitting projects for this program must have confirmation from
Caltrans that the proposed improvement is consistent with other freeway
improvements.

Applications should be submitted so that interchange projects are done in conjunction with
construction of other freeway improvements whenever possible. However, if the
interchange project can be done in advance of the freeway project, verification and/or
supporting documentation must be submitted showing the interchange improvement has
merit for advanced construction and that it will be compatible with the freeway design and
operation. Additionally, the interchange improvements should take into account the
ultimate freeway improvements if the interchange is to be improved in advance.

Project Cancellation

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-39



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

If a local agency decides to cancel a project, for whatever reason, the agency shall notify
OCTA as soon as possible. Projects deemed infeasible during the planning phase shall bring
that phase to a logical conclusion, file a final report, and cancel remaining phases so that
remaining funds can be reprogrammed without penalty. Right-of-way funding received for
property acquisition prior to cancellation shall be repaid upon cancellation even if property
has been acquired. Construction funding received prior to cancellation shall be repaid upon
cancellation.

Cancelled projects will be eligible for re-application upon resolution of issues that led to
original project termination.

Audits

All M2 payments are subject to audit. Local agencies must follow established accounting
requirements and applicable laws regarding the use of public funds. Failure to submit to
an audit in a timely manner may result in loss of future funding. Misuse or
misrepresentation of M2 funding will require remediation which may include repayment,
reduction in overall grant, and/or other sanctions to be determined. Audits shall be
conducted by OCTA'’s Internal Audit department or other authorized agent either through
the normal annual process or on a schedule to be determined by the Board (see Chapter
11).

Proceeds from the sale of excess right-of-way acquired with program funding must be
paid back to the project fund as described in Chapter 10 and Master Funding Agreement.

Other Application Materials

Supporting documentation will be required to fully consider each project application. In
addition to the funding plan described above, local agencies will be required to submit
the following materials:

Council Approval: A Council Resolution or minute order authorizing request for funding
consideration with a commitment of local match funding must be provided with the
project application. If a draft copy of the resolution is provided, the local agency
must also provide the date the resolution will be finalized by the local agency’s
governing body. A final copy of the City Council approved resolution must be provided
at least four (4) weeks PRIOR to the consideration of programming recommendations
by OCTA'’s Board of Directors.

Project Documentation: If proposed project has completed initial planning activities (such
as PSR or equivalent, EIR, or design), evidence of approval should be included with the
application. Satisfactory evidence includes project approval signature page, engineer-

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-40



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O) ';

stamped site plan, or other summary information to demonstrate completion of planning
phases. An electronic copy of the PSR and/or environmental document must be supplied
as applicable. The applicant will be asked for additional detailed information only if
necessary to adequately evaluate the project application.

Pavement Management Supporting Documentation: The M2 Ordinance provides for a 10
percent reduction in the required local match if the agency can demonstrate a measurable
improvement in PCI (1 point or greater) over the previous reporting period, or if the
agency can demonstrate a PCI that is within the highest 20 percent of the scale (PCI of
75 or greater). If an agency is electing to take the 10 percent local match rate reduction,
supporting documentation indicating either the PCI improvement or PCI scale must be
provided.

Project Summary Information: With each application being recommended for funding,
the agency shall submit a PowerPoint presentation summarizing the pertinent project
information for review and discussion purposes. The presentation shall be no more than
three (3) slides and should contain, at a minimum, a project description, project benefits,
location map, and cost estimate. OCTA staff will request the PowerPoint when/if
a project is recommended for funding.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-41



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

TABLE 7-5

Freeway/Arterial Street Transitions
Interchange Improvements

Category Points Possible Percentage

Facility Usage

Existing ADT 10 10%

Current Project Readiness 10 10%
Economic Effectiveness

Cost Benefit 10 10%

Matching Funds 10 10%

Coordination with Freeway Project 5 5%
Facility Importance

Transportation Significance 5 5%

MPAH Assessment Category 10 5 10% 5%

Operational Efficiencies 0 15 10% 15%
Benefit

Existing LOS 10 10%

LOS Reduction W/Project 10 10%

Improvement Characteristics 10 10%
TOTAL 100 100%
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs 7.42

August 20152614



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (Project O)

“’ﬂ

a\Reg

Table 7-4

Point Breakdown for Freew ay/Arterial Street Transitions Program
Maximum Points =100

Facility Usage Points: 20

ADT (Arterial plus daily exist volume)

range Points
55+ thousand 10
50-54 thousand 9

45-49 thousand 8
40 - 44 thousand 6
35-39 thousand 4
30-34 thousand 3
25-29 thousand 2
20-24 thousand 1
<10- 19 thousand 0

Current Project Readiness Max. 10
range Points

Right Of Way (All easement and titles) 6
Right Of Way (All offers issued) 4
Final Design (PS&E) 3 4
PA/ED 2
Project Study Report or Equiv. 1

Points are additive, ROW is highest qualifying
designation

Economic Effectiveness Points: 25

Cost Benefit (Total $/ADT)

range Points
<20 10
20-39 8
40-79 6
80-159 4
160-319 2
320-640 1

>640 0

Funding Over-Match (local match/project cost) minus
minimum local match requirement

Facility Importance

Transportation Significance
range

Points: 25

Points

Principal or CMP Route
Major

Primary

Secondary

Collector

MPAH Assessment Category
range

=N w s O

Points

Category 1
Category 2
Category 3
Category 4
Category 5

Operational Attributes (within
the roadw ay)

N ®wed
P NW A~

Max. 40 15
Points

Eliminate left turn conflict
Coordinated signal

Add turn lanes

Add traffic Control

Enhanced ramp storage
Pedestrian Facilities (New )
Water Conservation Eements
Safety Improvements
Sustainability

W W= WwWNW

range Points
30+ % 10
2529 % 8
20-24 % 6
15-19 % 4
10-14 % 2

0-9 % 1

Range refers to % points above agency min. req.

Coordination w ith Freew ay Project

Range Points
yes 5
no 0

Note: recommended changes shown in bold/red.

Benefit

LOS Improvement

Calculation: Ave LOS Imp + Ave LOS Starting Pt.

LOS Reduction W/Project (exist. volume)

Points: 30

Max: 20

range Points
.20+ 10
.16-.19 8
1-.15 6
.05-.09 4

<.05 2
Existing LOS

range Points
1.06+ 10
1.01-1.05 8

.96 - 1.00 6
91-.95 4
.86-.90 2
.81-.85 1
Improvement Characteristics Points
New facility (full interchange) 10
New facility (partial interchange) 8
Interchange reconstruction 6
Ramp reconfiguration 4
Ramp metering 2

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

August 20152614

7-43



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program

Section 7.4 — Regional Grade Separation Program (RGSP)

Background

Seven rail crossing projects along the Master Plan of Arterial Highways (MPAH) network
were identified by the CTC to receive Trade Corridors Improvement Funds (TCIF). These
TCIF allocations required an additional local funding commitment. To meet this need,
the Board approved the commitment of $160 million in Regional Capacity Program funds
to be allocated from M2. The RGSP captures these prior funding commitments.

Future calls for projects for grade separations are not anticipated.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-44



Chapter 7 — Regional Capacity Program (RGSP) ‘%

This page intentionally left blank

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 7-45



&

a\Reg

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program .

Overview

The Project P/ Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program (RTSSP) includes
competitive funding for the coordination of traffic signals across jurisdictional boundaries
in addition to operational and maintenance funding. OCTA will provide funding priority to
programs and projects which are multi-jurisdictional in nature.

The RTSSP is based on the Traffic Signal Synchronization Master Plan (Master Plan). The
Board adopted the Master Plan as an element of the MPAH on July 26, 2010. The Master
Plan defines the foundation of the RTSSP. The Master Plan consists of the following
components:

Regional signal synchronization network

Priority corridors for accelerated signal synchronization

Definition of Traffic Forums

Model agreements presenting roles and responsibilities for Project P
Signal synchronization regional assessment every three years

The Master Plan will be reviewed and updated by OCTA every three years and will provide
details on the status and performance of the traffic signal synchronization activities over
that period. Local agencies are required to adopt and maintain a Local Traffic Signal
Synchronization Plan (Local Plan) that is consistent with the Master Plan and shall issue
a report on the status and performance of its traffic signal synchronization activities.
Details on both the Master Plan and requirements for Local Plan development are
available in the "Guidelines for the Preparation of Local Signal Synchronization Plans”
dated April 2014. A hard copy of these guidelines can be requested from OCTA.

The remainder of this chapter details the key components of the RTSSP:

. Funding guidelines for the competitive call for projects
. 26145-2016 Call for Projects

Projects compete for funding as part of the RTSSP. Projects submitted by local agencies
as part of the call must meet specific criteria. Projects are rated based on scoring criteria
and are selected based on their competitive ratings.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-1



&

a\Reg

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program .

Section 8.1 — Funding Guidelines

Objectives

. Synchronize traffic signals across jurisdictions

o Monitor and regularly improve the synchronization

. Synchronize signals on a corridor basis reflecting existing traffic patterns

Project Definition

Local agencies are required to submit complete projects that, at minimum, result in field-
implemented coordinated timing. Project tasks that are eligible for funding can consist of
design, engineering, construction, and construction management. Partial projects that
design improvements but do not field implement the improvements are ineligible.

Projects must consist of a corridor along the priority corridor network, signal
synchronization network, or the Master Plan of Arterial Highways (MPAH).
Projects previously awarded RTSSP funding must be complete with a final report
submitted and approved by OCTA. Projects can be the full length of the corridor or a
segment that complies with the project requirements identified later in the chapter.
Communication system improvements that directly benefit signal synchronization along
the project corridor limits, but are not physically within the project corridor, are eligible
for inclusion in a project.

Multimodal consideration of bicyclists and pedestrians along or crossing the intersection
or roadway may enhance overall circulation. Therefore, active transportation elements
may be included as part of the project.

Eligible Activities

The primary purpose of the Program is to provide funding for projects that develop and
maintain corridor-based, multi-jurisdictional signal synchronization along corridors
throughout Orange County. All projects funded by this Program must be corridor-based
and have a signal coordination component that includes the following:

. Signal Coordination
o] Developing and implementing new signal synchronization timing and
parameters based on current travel patterns
(o] Monitor (minimum quarterly/maximum monthly) and regularly improve the

signal synchronization timing and parameters after project signal timing is
implemented for remainder of the project

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-2



Q‘iﬁ

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program '?

o] “Before” and “after” studies for the project using travel times, average
speeds, green lights to red lights, average stops per mile, and greenhouse
gases

In addition to developing optimized signal timing, a project may include other
improvements as long as they contribute to the goal of multi-agency signal
synchronization of corridors throughout Orange County. These improvements are
restricted to the signal synchronization project limits, with the exception of
communications that are installed from a central location to the project corridor. All
improvements must be designed to enhance the specific project. The following are a list
of potentially eligible items as part of a signal coordination project:

o New or upgraded detection
o] Upgrade detection along the signal synchronization corridors to ensure
necessary conditions for signal synchronization: inductive loops, video
detection, other types of detection systems

. New or upgraded communication systems
o] Contemporary communication system improvements (e.g. Ethernet)
o] Replacement fiber optic or copper cabling for network communication
o] Software and hardware for system traffic control
o] Control and monitoring interconnect conduit (including upgrades or

replacement of existing systems)

. Communications and detection support
o] Monitor, maintain, and repair communication and detection along
synchronized corridors to ensure necessary conditions for signal
synchronization including interconnect and communications equipment

. Intersection/field system modernization and replacement
(o] Traffic signal controller replacement of antiquated units
o] Controller cabinet replacements that can be shown to enhance signal
synchronization
o] Closed circuit television (CCTV)

o] Uninterruptible power supply (UPS) for field equipment

. Minor signal operational improvements (new)
o] Emergency vehicle preempt (signal equipment only)
o] Transit signal priority (signal equipment only)
o] Channelization improvements required for traffic signal phasing but not

requiring street construction

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-3



S~
Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program ,._:

o] Traffic signal phasing improvements that will improve traffic flow and
system performance including protective permissive left turns
o] Improvements to comply with new federal or state standards for traffic
signal design as related to signal synchronization
o] Pedestrian countdown heads
. Traffic management center (TMC)/traffic operations centers (TOC) and motorist
information

o] New TMCs or TOCs (any project funded under this category must be
planned or built to be center-to-center communication “ready” with nearby
agencies and/or OCTA)

o] Upgrades to existing TMCs or TOCs (any project funded under this category
must be planned or built to be center-to-center communication “ready” with
nearby agencies and/or OCTA)

o] Motorist information systems (up to 10 percent of total project costs)

o] Video display equipment, including wall monitors, screens, mounting
cabinets, and optical engines (up to 10 percent of total project costs)

. Real-time traffic actuated operations and demonstration projects
o] Adaptive traffic signal systems
. Caltrans encroachment permits
o] Includes eligible Caltrans labor, capital, and permitting expenses
° Active Transportation/Pedestrian Safety related elements
o] Installation of new traffic control devices to improve the accessibility,
mobility and safety of the facility for pedestrians and bicyclists
o Improvements to existing traffic control devices to improve the accessibility,

mobility and safety of the facility for pedestrians and bicyclists

In addition, expenditures related to the design of systems, permitting, and environmental
clearance are eligible for funding.

Ineligible Expenditures

. Isolated traffic signal improvements

. Traffic hardware (pole, mast arms, lights, electrical, signs, etc.)

. Regular signal operation and maintenance (such as replacement of light bulbs)
. Field display equipment (signal heads)

. Feasibility studies

. Relocation of utilities

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-4



&

a\Reg

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program .

. Battery backup systems for TMC
. Right-of-way

Funding Estimates

The streets and roads component of M2 is to receive 32 percent of net revenues, 4
percent of which are allocated for the RTSSP. The RTSSP will make an estimated $270
million (2009 dollars) available over the course of the 30-year M2 Program. Programming
estimates are developed in conjunction with a call for projects cycle corresponding to
concurrent funding agreements with all local agencies.

The RTSSP targets over 2,000 intersections across Orange County for coordinated
operations. Because of the limited amount of funds available for the RTSSP, project cap
of $60,000 per signal or $200,000 per project corridor mile included as part of each
project (whichever is higher) has been established for the call for projects.

Selection Criteria

Specific selection criteria will be used to evaluate competitive program project
applications. Emphasis is placed on furthering the overall goal of
multi-jurisdictional, corridor-based signal synchronization.

Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT): Centerline length of segment(s) on the corridor proposed
for synchronization multiplied by the existing average daily traffic (ADT) for the proposed
segment(s) length. For instance, for a three-mile segment with one-mile interval ADT
data at of 200 vehicles, 300 vehicles, and 400 vehicles, the VMT would be calculated as:

200 vehicles * 1 mile + 300 vehicles * 1 mile + 400 vehicles * 1 mile =
900 vehicle miles.

VMT should be calculated by the smallest segments on which the city typically collects
ADT data. (maximum: 20 points)

Cost Benefit: Total project cost divided by Existing VMT . (maximum: 4£5-10 points)

Project Characteristics: Points are awarded based on the type and relevance of the
proposed project. For instance, points accumulate if a signal synchronization project is
combined with improvements as defined in the “Eligible Activities” section above.
(maximum: 10 points)

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-5



\;‘ﬂ

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program ';

Transportation Significance: Points are earned based on the corridor being on the priority
corridor network or the signal synchronization network. (maximum: 10 points)

Maintenance of Effort: Points are earned for a commitment to operate the project signal
synchronization timing for a defined period of time beyond the three year grant period.
(maximum: 5 points)

Project Scale: Points are earned for including more intersections along priority corridor
network, signal synchronization network, or serving as a signal corridor “gap closure”er

MPAH-aspart-ef-thepreject. (maximum: 10 points)

Number of Local Agencies: Points are earned for including multiple local agencies as part
of the project. (maximum: 20 points)

Current Project Readiness: Points are earned based on the start-datecurrent status of the
project development. (maximum: 5-10 points)

Funding Rate: The percentages shown in Table 8-1 apply to match rates above a local
agency’s minimum match requirement. M2 requires a 20 percent local match for RTSSP
projects. Project match rates above 20 percent is limited to dollar match only. (maximum:
5 points)

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-6



Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program

Table 8-1

Point Breakdown for Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Projects
Maximum Points = 100

(Applies only to coordinated segments of project)

Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT) Points: 20 Project Scale Points: 10
VMT Number of Signals Coordinated by Project
Range Points Range Points
250+ thousand 20 50+ 5
200 - 249 thousand 15 40- 49 4
150 - 199 thousand 10 30-39 3
100 - 149 thousand 6 20-29 2
50-99 thousand 3 10-19 1
0-49 thousand 1 <10 0
Calculation: ADT x segment length AND

Percent of Corridor Signals Being Retimed

Range Points
Economic Effectiveness Points: 45 10 90% or above 5
80 - 89% 4
Cost Benefit (Total $/VMT) 70 - 79% 3
Range* Points 60 - 69% 2
<3 4 10 50 - 59% 1
3-5 B 9 <50% 0
6-8 +H 8
9-1 9 7 Calculation: Number of signals in project divided by
12-14 + 6 total signals in full corridor length
15-17 5
18-20 3 4
21-23 2 3 Number of Jurisdictions Points: 20
24 -26 + 2
27+ 0 1 Total Number of Involved Jurisdictions
Range Points
5 or more 20
Project Characteristics Points: 10 4 16
3 12
Project Feature Points 2 8
TMC/TOC and motorist information 2 1 0
New or upgraded communications systems 2 OR
New or upgraded detection 2
Intersection/field system modernization 2 % of Priority Corridor Jurisdictions Involved
Minor signal operational improvements 2 Range Point
New Protected/Permissive signals 3 100% 20
Adaptive traffic and demonstration projects 3 75 - 99% 12
TMC/CMC Connections betw een agencies - 3 50 - 75% 6
<50% 0
Points are additive to maximum of 10 points
Current Project Readiness Points: 5 10
Transportation Significance Points: 10
Project Status Points*
Corridor Type Points* Preliminary Engineering Complete - 5
Priority Corridor 10 Re-timing of prior RTSSP project - 3
Signal Synchronization Corridor 5 Implementation w ithin 12 months 5
Corridor "Gap Closure" - 5 Within 24 -months 3
Local TSSP Route / MPAH 0 Within 36 months 4
Maintenance of Effort Points: 5 Funding Match Points: 5
MOE after Grant Period Points Overall Match % Points
3 years 5 50+% 5
2 years 3 40 - 49% 4
1 year 1 35 - 39% 3
None 0 30 - 34% 2
25 -29% 1
* Points are additive to category maximum <25% 0

Note: recommended changes shown in bold/red.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

August 20152614

8-7



\;‘ﬂ

a\Reg

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program .

Application Process

Project grants are determined through a competitive application process administered by
OCTA. Agencies seeking funding must complete an online application, a supplemental
application, and provide supporting documentation that will be used to evaluate the
project proposal as outlined below. Key information to be provided as part of the
application process includes:

e Funding needs by phase and fiscal year

Percent match rate including funds type, source, and description (minimum 20
percent)

Lead agency Option 1 (default — local agency) or Option 2 (OCTA)

Lead and supporting agencies names

Supporting technical information

Project development and implementation schedule

Environmental clearances and other permits

e Any additional information deemed relevant by the applicant

Complete photographic field review (including cabinet interiors and communication
facilities) for all projects that either exceed one million dollars in capital
improvements or request OCTA serve as lead agency regardless of capital
improvement budget.

A call for projects for the funding cycle will be issued as determined by the Board.
Complete project applications must be submitted by the established due dates to be
considered eligible for consideration.

Applications will be reviewed by OCTA for consistency, accuracy, and concurrence. Once
applications have been completed in accordance with the Program requirements, the
projects will be scored, ranked, and submitted to the TSC, TAC, and the Board for
consideration and funding approval. OCTA reserves the right to evaluate submitted
project costs for reasonableness as part of the review and selection process and suggest
potential revisions to make the cost more appropriate. Grants will be subject to funding
agreements with OCTA.

Application Instructions

An application should be submitted for a single corridor project. Multiple corridors, related
systems of corridors, and corridors that form a “grid” must be submitted as separate
corridor projects. The following instructions should be used in developing project
applications.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-8



Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program .

&

a\Reg

OCFundtracker Application Components

Final applications MUST be submitted via OCFundtracker and in hard copy format.
Selection criteria must be inputted as part of the OCFundtracker online application and
includes the following categories of information:

Vehicle Miles Traveled
Cost Benefit

Project Characteristics
Transportation Significance
Maintenance of Effort
Project Scale

Number of Local agencies
Current Project Readiness
Funding Match Rate

Minimum Eligibility Requirements

All local agencies may participate in the RTSSP. Caltrans facilities are eligible for the RTSSP,
but Caltrans cannot act as the lead agency. Local agencies will be required to provide a
minimum of 20 percent matching funds for eligible projects (see definition of matching funds
below).

The goal of the RTSSP is to provide regional signal synchronization that cross jurisdictional
boundaries. To be eligible for funding through this Program, a project must meet the
following requirements:

1.

Be on a street segment that is part of the priority corridor network, signal
synchronization network, or the MPAH. The project must be consistent with Local
Signal Synchronization Plans and support the Regional Traffic Signal
Synchronization Master Plan goals.

Be multi-jurisdictional, have documented support from all participating local
agencies (cities, County, or Caltrans) and a minimum of 20 signals

or

Be multi-jurisdictional, have documented support from all participating local
agencies (cities, County, or Caltrans) and a minimum distance of five miles

or

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-9



Q‘iﬁ

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program '?

Include at minimum three local agencies, have documented support from all
participating local agencies (cities, County, or Caltrans), and have a minimum
intersection density of four intersections per mile with a minimum of eight signals

or

Include the full length of the priority corridor or signal synchronization network
corridor, or MPAH corridor

Matching Funds

Local agencies along the corridor are required to provide minimum local match funding
of 20 percent for each project. As prescribed by the M2 Ordinance, this includes local
sources, M2 Fair Share, and other public or private sources (herein referred to as a “cash
match”). Projects can designate local matching funds as cash match, in-kind match
provided by local agency staff and equipment, or a combination of both.

“In-kind match” is defined as those actions that local agencies will do in support of the
project including staffing commitment and/or new signal system investment related to
improved signal synchronization. Examples of staffing commitment include, but are not
limited to, implementation of intersection or system timing parameters, review of timing
documentation, meeting participation, conducting or assisting in before/after studies, and
other similar efforts. Staff time charged to a project is limited to the caps as described in
these guidelines. Allowable signal system investment would be improvements that are
“eligible activities” per the funding guidelines, which can be shown to improve signal
synchronization and would not include any prior investments made by the agency.

The specific matching requirement by project category type is listed below for city led
projects:

Project category Type of matching allowed*
Signal coordination In-kind match** or cash match
New or upgraded detection In-kind match** or cash match
New or upgraded communications systems In-kind match** or cash match
Communications and detection support In-kind match** or cash match

Intersection/field system modernization and | In-kind match** or cash match
replacement
Minor signal operational improvements In-kind match** or cash match
Traffic management center/traffic operations | Cash match

centers and motorist information systems

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-10



&

a\Reg

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program .

Real-time traffic actuated operations and | Cash match
demonstration projects
* Project match beyond 20 percent is limited to cash match only.
** In-kind services are subject to audit.

In-kind match must be defined for each local agency as part of the supplemental
application. In-kind match must be identified as staffing commitment and/or new signal
system investment. The supplemental application template will include a section to input
in-kind match type as well as additional data related to the match:

e Staffing commitment
o Staff position
0 Number of hours
o Hourly (fully burdened) rate
o Total cost

e New signal system investment
o0 Cost of any signal system investment
0 Benefit to project

Projects submitted as OCTA led require a 20 percent cash match for Primary
Implementation activities with a nominal in-kind allowance for local agency oversight.
Operations and Maintenance activities will be permitted in-kind match only for local
agency oversight functions. Contract activities will require cash match.

OCTA staff will review in detail the presented cash and in-kind match by local agency for
reasonableness. Additional requirements on in-kind match as part of the upcoming call
are provided in Section 8.2.

Other Application Materials

Supporting documentation is required to fully consider each project application. A
Supplemental Application Template is required to be completed for each project
application. The template is distributed with other application materials at the issuance
of the Call for Projects. In addition to the funding plan described above, local agencies
will be required to submit the following materials:

Lead Agency: Lead agency for the project must be identified: local agency or OCTA.

Participating Agencies: All participating agencies must be identified_and adopted City
Council resolutions or Minute Order actions authorizing the participating agency’s support

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-11



D

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program '%

of the project under the lead agency must be included. If a draft copy of these
resolutions of support are provided, the local agency must also provide the
date the resolution will be finalized by the participating agency’s governing
body. A final copy of the City Council approved resolution must be provided at least four
(4) weeks PRIOR to the consideration of programming recommendations by OCTA’s
Board of Directors.

Council Approval: A Council Resolution or Minute Order action authorizing request for
funding consideration with a commitment of project local match funding must be provided
with the project application from all participating agencies.—_If a draft copy of the
resolution is provided, the local agency must also provide the date the
resolution will be finalized by the local agency’s governing body. A final copy of
the City Council approved resolution must be provided at least four (4) weeks PRIOR to
the consideration of programming recommendations by OCTA'’s Board of Directors.

Project Support: If proposed project has completed initial planning activities (such as
project study report or equivalent, environmental impact report, or design), evidence of
approval should be included with the application. Satisfactory evidence includes project
approval signature page, engineer-stamped site plan, or other summary information to
demonstrate completion or planning phases. The applicant will be asked for detailed
information only if necessary to adequately evaluate the project application.

Lead Agency
This Program is administered through a single lead agency: a local city or OCTA.

Local Agency Lead: Only the lead agency will receive payments in accordance with the
CTFP Guidelines regarding payment for costs related to project for optimized signal timing
development, capital improvements, planning, and related design. Payments will be
disbursed consistent with Chapter 10. The lead agency is responsible for reimbursing
other agencies as part of the effort. Additionally, the lead agency is also responsible for
ensuring that all agencies participating in the project provide the local match proposed in
the project application.

OCTA Lead: OCTA may, at the request of the involved local agencies, act as the lead
agency for RTSSP projects. If the involved local agencies would like OCTA to implement
a project on the signal synchronization network, the local agency shall work cooperatively
with OCTA to develop the scope of work and cost elements of the project. The lead local
agency shall contact OCTA with a written request by September 11, 2015. Projects
nominated for OCTA lead must be discussed at the Traffic Forum. Applications must
include a complete photographic field review (as outlined above) when submitted. The

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-12



@iﬁ

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program '?

application will be scored using the criteria outlined in the previous sections. Based on
local agency interest and OCTA resource availability, a limited number of projects will be
developed and implemented by OCTA. Recent calls have resulted in OCTA implementing
seven projects per year.

If any projects that are designated as OCTA lead are awarded funding, OCTA will then
be responsible for implementation of the project including optimized signal timing
development, capital improvements, planning, and related design. OCTA will implement
the project based on the cost estimates developed in the application. Project elements
may be modified based on final costs with the agreement of all participating agencies.
OCTA will be responsible for ensuring that all agencies participating in the project provide
the local match as identified in the project application (minimum 20 percent).

Additionally, for projects designating OCTA as lead agency, a consultant traffic
engineering firm will be contracted to provide staff and services to implement the project.
Therefore, in-kind match designated as staffing commitment under an OCTA lead agency
option should be limited. The following will be used as a guide for staffing commitment,
when the local agency develops the application:

e Primary Implementation (12 months)

o Project Administration - Each local agency traffic engineer or equivalent
participates in approximately 10-15 hours per month of project administration
(meetings, review of reports, minutes, and other administration).

o Signal Synchronization Timing - Each local agency traffic engineer or equivalent
reviews consultant developed draft and final timing plans for intersections
within the local agency, approximately 2-4 hours per local agency intersection.

o Before and After Study - Each local agency traffic engineer or equivalent
reviews consultant developed draft and final project Before and After Study,
approximately 2-5 hours per local agency.

o Engineering design/review - Each local agency traffic engineer or equivalent
reviews consultant developed engineer design within the local agency,
approximately 2-4 hours per affected local agency intersection.

0 System integration - Each local agency traffic engineer or equivalent provides
support for this function (hours vary depending on improvements).

o Construction management - Each local agency traffic engineer or equivalent
provides construction management support including inspection (hour vary
depending on improvements.

e Ongoing Maintenance and Monitoring (24 months) - Each local agency traffic
engineer or equivalent participates in continued project level meetings of 2-5 hours
per local agency per month to review consultant traffic engineering progress of

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-13



D

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program 'E

Ongoing Maintenance and Monitoring. In addition, each local agency traffic
engineer or equivalent reviews consultant developed draft and final project report.

For projects designating a local agency as lead, the above may be used as a guide with
additional local match related to implementation, development, design, monitoring and
other costs that the local agency may choose to include as local match. For instance,
Ongoing Maintenance and Monitoring may be performed by in house staff and be
calculated using a different formula (e.g., 2-5 hours per local agency signal for 24
months).

Project Cancellation

If a local agency decides to cancel a project, for whatever reason, the agency shall notify
OCTA as soon as possible. Projects deemed infeasible shall bring that phase to a logical
conclusion, file a final report, and cancel remaining phases so that remaining funds can
be reprogrammed without penalty.

Cancelled projects will be eligible for re-application upon resolution of issues that led to
original project termination.

If a lead agency decides to cancel a project before completion of the entire project, for
whatever reason, the agency shall notify OCTA as soon as possible. It is the responsibility
of the project lead agency to repay OCTA for any funds received.

Project Extensions

Local agencies are provided 36 months to expend the funds from the date of
encumbrance. Agencies can request timely use of funds extensions through the SAR in
accordance with the CTFP guidelines. Local agencies should issue a separate Notice to
Proceed (NTP) while combining contracts for both the Pl and O & M phases. NTP
requirement should be identified in the initial contract/agreement to avoid obligation of
both phases at the same time. If this procedure is followed by the local agency the NTP
date will be considered the date of encumbrance for the O & M phase.

Audits

All M2 payments are subject to audit. Local agencies must follow established accounting
requirements and applicable laws regarding the use of public funds. Failure to submit to
an audit in a timely manner may result in loss of future funding. Misuse or
misrepresentation of M2 funding will require remediation which may include repayment,
reduction in overall grant, and/or other sanctions to be determined. Audits shall be

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-14



Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program '?

conducted by OCTA Internal Audit Department or other authorized agent either through
the normal annual process or on a schedule to be determined by the Board.

Data Compatibility

All count data collected as part of any funded project shall be provided to OCTA in one
of the two following digital formats: 1) NDS/Southland Car Counters style Excel
spreadsheet; or 2) JAMAR comma separated value style text file. The data shall then be
loaded into the OCTA Roadway Operations and Analysis Database System (ROADS). Any
data files containing numeric intersection or node identifiers shall use the same node
identification (ID) numbers as is stored in the ROADS database. OCTA shall provide a
listing of intersections and corresponding unique node ID numbers. Each count data file
shall adhere to the following file naming or csv. As an example, a turning movement
count file for the intersection of Harbor Boulevard and Wilson Street in Costa Mesa would
be given the filename CostaMesa_Harbor-Wilson_4534.csv.

All traffic signal synchronization data collected and compiled as part of any funded project
for both existing (before) and final optimized (after) conditions shall be provided to OCTA
in Synchro version 6 csv Universal Traffic Data Format (UTDF) format and version 7
combined data UTDF format. This data shall include the network layout, node, link, lane,
volume, timing, and phase data for all coordinated times. All such data shall be consistent
with the OCTA ROADS database.

Section 8.2 — 2645-2016 Call for Projects

The following information provides an overview of the 2645-2016 RTSSP Call for Projects.

1. For this RTSSP Call for Projects, projects totaling up to $12 million in M2 funds will
be available to local agencies.

2. Projects must result in new, optimized, and field-implemented coordination timing.
3. Project must be a single contiguous corridor. Multiple corridors, related systems of
corridors, and corridors that form a “grid” must be submitted as separate corridor

projects.

4. Projects selected will be programmed after July 1 of the programmed year (July 1
— June 30).

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-15



Q‘iﬁ

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program '?

5. Project delays resulting in a time extension request will fall within the process

outlined in the CTFP Guidelines.

6. Projects are funded for a grant period of three (3) years and are divided into two

phases:

a. Primary Implementation - includes the required implementation of
optimized signal timing as well as any signal improvements proposed as
part of a project. As an exception to Precept 16, Primary Implementation of
the project must be completed within one (1) year of the initial payment.

b. Ongoing Maintenance and Operations — includes the required monitoring
and improving optimized signal timing in addition to any optional
communications and detection support. Ongoing Maintenance and
Operations will begin after the optimized signal timing is implemented and
be required for the remainder of the project (typically 2 Years). A project

final report is required at the conclusion of this phase.

7. Projects shall include a Before and After Study. This study shall collect morning
and evening peak period using travel times, average speeds, green lights to red
lights, stops per mile, and the derived corridor system performance index (CSPI)
metric. This information shall be collected both before any signal timing changes
have been made and after the Primary Implementation. The study shall compare
the information collected both before and after the timing changes. Comparisons
shall identify the absolute and percent differences for the entire corridor, by
segment, direction, and time period. Segments will be defined by major traffic
movements as observed during the project (e.g. commuting segments between
freeways, pedestrian-friendly segments in a downtown area, etc.). The Before and
After Study shall be submitted after the Primary Implementation phase is

completed.

8. Any corridor or portion of a corridor funded through this call cannot re-apply for
funding until the three year grant period or commitment to operate signal
synchronization beyond the three year grant period is completed, whichever ends

later.

9. Section 8.1 identifies the selection criteria for projects, eligible activities, minimum
project requirements, data compatibility required as part of any funded project,

and other key information.

Applications

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152614

8-16



Q‘iﬁ

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program '?

In order for OCTA to consider a project for funding, applications will be prepared by the
local agency responsible for the project application. OCTA shall require agencies to submit
applications for the call for projects by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, October 23, 2015. Late
submittals will not be accepted. The local agency responsible for the project application
must submit the application and any supporting documentation via OCFundtracker as
outlined below.

Project Submittal

A separate application package must be completed for each individual project and
uploaded to OCFundtracker. Three_(3) unbound printed copies of each complete
application shall also be mailed or delivered to:

Orange County Transportation Authority
550 South Main Street

P.O. Box 14184

Orange, California 92863-1584

Attn: Roger Lopez

Application Review and Program Adoption

1. OCTA staff will conduct a preliminary review of all applications for completeness
and accuracy, may request supplemental information for projects during initial
staff evaluations, and prepare a recommended program of projects for the TSC.
In addition, OCTA may hire a consultant(s) to verify information within individual
applications including, but not limited to, project scope, cost estimates, vehicle
miles traveled, and average daily traffic.

2. The TSC will receive and evaluate the project applications and funding grants.

3. Based on recommendations from the TSC, a program will be presented to the TAC
for review and endorsement.

4. Recommendations from the TAC will be presented to the Board, who will approve
projects for funding under the CTFP.

5. OCTA shall distribute copies of the approved program to each participating local
jurisdiction with any qualifying conditions stipulated for the jurisdiction’s funded
project(s).

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-17



&

a\Reg

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program .

Checklist Guide

The "Project P Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program Application Checklist” has
been provided for the RTSSP (Exhibit 8-1). The checklist identifies the basic
documentation required for the program. In addition to items required at the time of
project submittal, additional items that are not specified may be requested later. The
checklist should be provided as a cover sheet for each application submitted. For any
items that are required for the candidate project or program that are missing or
incomplete, an explanation should be included in a cover letter with the application.

Sample Resolution Form

A resolution or minute action must be approved by the local agency’s governing body. A
sample resolution is included as Exhibit 8-2. The mechanism selected shall serve as a
formal request for RTSSP funds and states that matching funds will be provided by the
agency, if necessary. All project requests (i.e., multiple corridors proposed for RTSSP
funds) must be included in this action.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-18



4
Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program -

Exhibit 8-1
Project P Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program Application Checklist
Project P Application Checklist Included |

RTSSP Online Application — submitted through OCFundTracker
1. Vehicle Miles Traveled
Benefic Cost Ratio
Project Characteristics
Transportation Significance
Maintenance of Effort
Project Scale
Number of Jurisdictions
Current Project Readiness
9. Funding Over-Match
Section 1: Key technical information
a. Project limits of the corridor to synchronize
b. Designation of the corridor to synchronize: priority corridor, signal synchronization
network corridor, or master plan of arterial highways corridor
c. Project start date and end date, including any commitment to operate signal
synchronization beyond the three year grant period
d. Signalized intersections that are part of the project
e. Traffic Forum members
Section 2: Lead agency
Section 3: Resolutions of support from the project’s Traffic Forum members

i R

Section 4: Preliminary plans for the proposed project

The plans shall include details about both phases of the project: Primary Implementation and the
Ongoing Maintenance and Operation. The plan should be organized using the following setup.

Primary Implementation shall include details about the following:
a. Developing and implementing optimized signal synchronization timing {required)
b. Producing a Before and After Study for the proposed project {(required)
c. Proposed signal improvements {opticnal):
i New or upgraded detection
ii. New or upgraded communication systems
iil. Intersection/field system modernization and replacement

iv. Minor signal operation improvements
V. Traffic management centers
vi. Real-time traffic actuated operations and demonstration projects

Ongoing Maintenance and Operation will begin after the Primary Implementation of the project is
completed. It shall include details about the following:
a. Monitoring and improving optimized signal timing {required)
b. Communications and detection support {optional)
Section 5: Total Proposed Project Cost by Task
Section 6: Project Schedule by Task for the 3 Year Grant Period
Section 7: Matching Funds
Section 8: Environmental clearances and other permits
Section 9: Calculations used to Develop Selection Criteria Inputs
Section 10: Any additional information deemed relevant by the applicant

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-19



S~
Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program ,._:

EXHIBIT 8-2
Sample Resolution for Candidate Orange County Regional Transportation Signal
Synchronization Program Projects

A resolution of the City Council approving the submittal of improvement project(s) to the
Orange County Transportation Authority for funding under the competitive Measure M2 Regional
Transportation Signal Synchronization Program.

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HEREBY RESOLVES, DETERMINES, AND
ORDERS AS FOLLOWS THAT:

(a) WHEREAS, the Measure M2 Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Program targets over
2000 signalized intersections across Orange County to maintain traffic signal synchronization,
improve traffic flow, and reduce congestion across jurisdictions; and

(b) WHEREAS, the City of has been declared by the Orange County Transportation Authority
to meet the eligibility requirements to receive revenues as part of Measure M2;

(c) WHEREAS, the CITY must include all projects funded by Net Revenues in the seven-year
Capital Improvement Program as part of the Renewed Measure M Ordinance eligibility
requirement.

(d) WHEREAS, the CITY authorizes a formal amendment to the seven-year Capital Improvement
Program to add projects approved for funding upon approval from the Orange County
Transportation Authority Board of Directors.

(e) WHEREAS, the City of has currently adopted a Local Signal Synchronization Plan
consistent with the Regional Traffic Signal Synchronization Master Plan as a key component of
local agencies’ efforts to synchronizing traffic signals across local agencies’ boundaries; and

(f) WHEREAS, the City of will provide matching funds for each project as required by the
Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs Procedures Manual; and

(g) WHEREAS, the City of will not use Renewed Measure M funds to supplant
Developer Fees or other commitments; and

(h)  WHEREAS, the City of desires to implement multi-jurisdictional signal synchronization
listed below; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

The City Council of the City of hereby requests the Orange County Transportation Authority allocate
funds in the amounts specified in the City’s application to said City from the Transportation Signal
Synchronization Program. Said funds shall be matched by funds from said City as required and shall be
used as supplemental funding to aid the City in signal synchronization along the following street(s):

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 8-20



Al Rey e
! %

Chapter 8 — Regional Traffic Signal Sychronization Program .

This page intentionally left blank

8-21

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs

August 20152614



Chapter 9 — Application Materials ?

Project Submittal

RCP and RTSSSP calls for projects are planned annually. A separate application package
must be completed for each individual project and uploaded to OCFundtracker. Only one
application may be submitted for each individual project. Multiple variations of the same
application (e.g. with different local match rates) will not be considered. Three (3)
unbound copies of each application should also be mailed to:

OCTA

Attention: Roger Lopez
550 S. Main Street

P.O. Box 14184

Orange, CA 92863-1584

Hardcopy applications can be hand delivered to:

Attention: Roger Lopez
600 S. Main Street
Orange, CA 92868

Application Review and Program Adoption

1. OCTA staff will conduct a preliminary review of all applications for completeness and
accuracy, request supplemental information (i.e., plans, aerial/strip maps, CEQA
forms) for projects that appear to rank well during initial staff evaluations, and
prepare a recommended program for the TSC. In addition, OCTA may hire a
consultant(s) to verify information within individual applications such as, but not
limited to, project scope, cost estimates, ADT and LOS. These applications will be
selected through a random process.

2. The TSC will receive and evaluate the project applications and funding grants.

3. Based on recommendations from the TSC, a program will be presented to the TAC
for review and endorsement.

4. Recommendations from the TAC will be presented to the Board, who will approve
projects for funding under the CTFP.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 26342015 9-1



Chapter 9 — Application Materials ‘?

5. OCTA shall distribute copies of the approved program to all participating local
agencies with any qualifying conditions stipulated for the jurisdiction’s funded
project(s).

Project Guidelines

The following guidelines will be used in reviewing project applications. Any application
that does not meet these minimum guidelines must include an explanation of why the
guidelines were not met.

1. The travel lane width should be no less than 11 feet (12 feet if adjacent to a raised
median or other obstruction) for all arterial highways.

2. For divided roadways, the minimum median width should be no less than 10 feet to
allow for turning movements. Divided roadways are defined as those with either a
painted or raised median.

3. Arterial highways that are designated for uses in addition to automobile travel (e.g.,
bicycle, pedestrian, parking) shall provide additional right-of-way consistent with
local jurisdiction standards to facilitate such uses.

4.  An eight-lane roadway should provide for a continuous median, protected dual or
single left-turn pockets as warranted at signalized intersections, single left-turn
pockets at non-signalized intersections, and a right-turn lane at signalized
intersections where determined necessary by traffic volumes. Right-of-way for a free
right-turn lane should be provided at locations warranted by traffic demand.

5. A six-lane divided roadway should provide a continuous median, protected dual or
single left-turn pockets as warranted by existing traffic at all signalized intersections,
and single left-turn pockets at non-signalized intersections. A right-turn option lane
should also be provided as warranted by traffic demand.

6. A four-lane divided roadway should provide a continuous median, protected dual or
single left-turn pockets at all signalized intersections, and a left-turn pocket at all
non-signalized intersections. A right-turn lane should also be provided as warranted
by traffic demand.

7. A four-lane undivided roadway shall provide for a single left-turn pocket at all
intersections as warranted by traffic demand.

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 9-2



Chapter 9 — Application Materials ‘?

Application Instructions

A single application should be submitted for each phase of a project. If funding is
requested under multiple program components for a single project (i.e.,
arterials and intersections) a separate application must be prepared for each
request. Final applications MUST be submitted via OCFundtracker and in hard copy
format.

Checklist Guide

Since each funding program has slightly different application requirements, an "Internal
Application Checklist Guide" has been provided for the three programs under the RCP
(Exhibits 9-1, 9-2, and 9-3). The checklist guide identifies the basic forms and
documentation required for each of the program components. In addition, items required
at the time of project submittal are differentiated from supplemental items due later. The
appropriate checklist should be provided as a cover sheet for each application submitted.
For any items that are required for the candidate project or program that are missing or
incomplete, an explanation should be included in a cover letter with the application. In
addition to this checklist guide, please review the Attachments/Additional
Information section of each program component for a description of supplementary
documentation which may be required to support your agency's project application in
specific cases.

Attachments

OC Fundtracker Application

Agencies must submit a copy of the OCFundtracker application and scoring information
with all application submittals. This document is created within the OCFundtracker web-
based application.

"Project Cost Estimate" Form

Include a separate attachment listing all expenditures and costs for the project. Accurate
unit prices and a detailed description of work, including design, will be critical when the
candidate project is reviewed. For example, design applications should include major
tasks that will be performed. Right-of-way cost estimate should include parcel
information (including project area needed), improvements taken, severance damages,
right-of-way engineering, appraisal and legal costs. Construction should include a listing

Comprehensive Transportation Funding Programs
August 20152644 9-3



Chapter 9 — Application Materials ""2

of all bid items including a maximum 10 percent allowance for contingencies and a
maximum 15 percent allowance for construction engineering/project management. The
anticipated disbursement of costs (e.g., Agency, Other, Non-Eligible) must also be
completed. Agencies should reference the program from which funding is expected to be
allocated when completing this portion of the form. Each of the funding programs
described in these guidelines may have differing matching fund requirements.

If more than one project phase is requested to be funded, a separate project cost
estimate form is to be completed for each phase, or each phase must be clearly indicated
and a subtotal prepared on this form. Separate forms should also be prepared if funding
for project phases is being requested over multiple fiscal years.

"Sample Resolution” Form

A resolution or minute action must be approved by the loca